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HEARING - 488

injury from that weapon.

Are there other pictures that were taken that show aill
of the injuries as it relates to the shotgun? -

Yes.

Judgé; we would move State’s exhibit number ninety-

three into evidence.

Mr. Jenkinson: Your Honor, we will object.

The Court: For identification purposes only.

Ms. Barr: Judge my motion was denied?

The Court: Yes.

Q:

>

1O - OB

Okay, alright, I'm going to -show you State’s exhibit
number ninety-four and ask ydu to tell me what’s
depicted in that.particular photograph. Well, let me
do this;' let me gi&e you ninety—four; ninety—fivé)
ninety-six, ninetyvseven and ask you if’ you recognize
those particular exhibits.

Yes.

Alright, tell me what they show.

\

- Two of the photographs; I711 tell you what numbers..

Now, they’.re marked- twice, so make sure when you talk

about the particular exhibit number you use the white

tag, rather than the red tag.

Okay.

Alright.

State’s exhibit, it looks. like ninety-four amnd ninety-

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
(803) 436-2153
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HEARING 489
five.
Q: Yes ma’am.
A: ‘Show entrance gunshot wounds on the top of‘ the

decedent’s head, of his head.

Q: Okay.

A: And one this is after his hat, his hat is peeled away

so you can half way see that. And this is actually of
his hair and then exhibit number ninety-six showé a
closer up of one of the entrance gunshot wounds to the
right, to the central part of the head ovef the
hairline and this exhibit it”’s hard to see exactly what
this shows, but it does show a small, it does~show an
entrance gunshot wound to the‘right area.

Q: Alright, do thqée,photpgraphs'help you in describing

the pathway of the bullets into the head of Kenyan

!

Dorsey?
A: They_help to describe the entrance locations.
Q: Okay, alright. Judge'we would move State’s exhibits

ninety-four through ninety-six, am I. right? Ninety-
four through ninety-seven.

Mr. Jenkinson: Objection those are the same as we objected

earlier.
The Court: Sustain the objection.
Q: Judge, can she see them so she can testify

The §ourt: Yes.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
(803) 436-2153
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HEARING ‘ : 490

Let me start with ninety-three; kind of describe for

the jurors what ninety-three shows and what I may need

you to do is kind of stand up and kind of show the
injury as it relates to the shotgun. Just kind of

using

'~ You mean on my body? Okay.

Make sure tﬂé pictures are turned in toward you.

Okay, if somebody has a problem hearing me, just ask me
to speak louder. |
Don’t let them see. it.

Yes ma’am. :Tﬁis first picture tﬁat was juStAhanded to

me, shows it’s, it’s the side of his body as he’s lying

down on the autopsy table, right side:and I can see

that there are, there are shotgun pellet wounds

extending from here down to the right hip and then Ij

can’t see above that because there’s still a tee shirt
on. And I ;lso see some blood coming out of his'fight
ear. | |

Okay. Let me get that' particular exhibit. Tell us
about number ninety-four.

Okay, number ninéty—four is a photograph of‘the top of,
the top of the decedent’s head looking from the right,
okay, so 1it’'s kind of a shot looking from here énd I
can see that tﬁere’s an entrance wound about over here

and another

| THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
(803) 436-2153
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HEARING ’ 491

Now when you say ‘here’, tell me for the :ecord, what
you’re refer;ing to.

Alright, like toward:the front top’of the scalp.

Okay.

OkaY} like over beyond the hairline, like one inqh or
so into the hairline. Okay, and then there’s another -
entrance, gunshot wound around here.

Now tell, for the.reco;d.

Which is on the right side of the head, not far above
the ear; |

Okay, élright, tell us about number ninety—five. Let

me-get that and give it to the court.reporter. Thank

you..

So, this photograph, I guess it’s ninety-five, shows

.Just. the- same entrance, gunshot wounds. I Jjust’

described one at the top, front of the head; on the

~

t

" hairline and the other one to the right, abéve the ear.

Also on the hair, but it’s a closer up picture.
Okay, alright and was that ninety-five or ninéty—six?

Ninety-five.

-Alright. Tell us‘about'number ninety-six.

Okay, ninety-six is a close up of the entrance, gunshot
wound in the top of the head that’s 'about one inch
beybnd the hair line. Beyond the front of the

hairline.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
(803) 436-2153




10
11

12

136

14
15
16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

=

H- . @]

. Okay. I guess let”s start at ninety-eight.

HEARING 492

That’s  simply a closer up view of what you just
described in an earlier photo?

Yes.

'They are not -two separate injuries to:the top of the

head? -

No.

Just one to the fop of the head and one to the side?
That’s correct.

Tell us about number ninety~seven."

And ninefy—seven is a closer up view of the entrance,
gunshoﬁ wound that’s on the right side of the head, .
above the right'egr. | |
Alright. You”can-take a seat, although I may need you.
to stand back up again. |

Okay.

Let me hand you what’s been marked for identification’
purposes that the State submitted,‘nuﬁbér,ninety—eight,

ninety-nine, one hundred and one oh one and tell me if

you recognize what’s depicted in those photographs.

Yes.

~

Okay, ninety-eight shows an exit wound from one of

those gunshot wounds. /

Okay.

And at this point, because I have not yet done an

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
(803) 436-2153

~
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HEARING ' 493

internal exam, when I took this photograph, I could not
: s

tell whether it was the entrance wound to the top of

the head or to the right side of the head that exited

the left jaw. But this photograph, number ninety-eight,

shows the exit, an exit wound from.:one of those

entrance, gunshot wounds.

Ckay.

And it’s on kind of the left lower jaw area.

Alright and number ninety-nine?

And‘ninety—nihe is a photograph of the pellet shotgun

‘wounds that are streaming across .the front of the

decédent’s body from the left side to the righf hip and
}his is after he had been -disrocbed, so I can see the
injuries on the abdomen.

Okay, and numbef, I think we’re on one hundred.

One hundred shows thé shotgﬁn pellet wounds. on the,

again on the right side of the ébdomen, extending from

about the mid chest to the right hip and this

.'photograph just sths it from 1like, you know, the

camera at a different angle. It’s not from this right

side, but it’s taken from the top, like above the

- decedent as he’s lying on the table. And I can also

see some injuries that appear connected with those
injuries and those are on the left side of the upper

chest.'

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
(803) 436-2153
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Q:. Alright, now what about 1017
A: 101 shows some shotgun pellet injuries to the right
forearm, which were a result of the pellets continuing
beyond thé.right hip, while the deceaent’s.arm was next
to his right hip. So they kind of séraped fhe surface
of the right arm as well,.in addition to going écross
the abdomen. |

Q: Alright.

Ms. Barr: Judgé we would move State’s ninety-eight through

101.

The Court: Mr. Jenkinson?

Mr. Jenkinson: Judge, likewise

The Court: . Sustain the objection.

Q: Now Dr. Riemer, this time I’m géing to hand you‘whét’s
been admitted, not admitted, what’s been marked for
identification purpéseé as State’s exhibit nuﬁber one
oh two, one oh three, one’qh'four,~one oh five, one oh
six, one oh seven and one oh eight. You Eaﬁ Hold those
for just a moment. Let me ask you, first of all, the
previous exhibits were photogfaphs‘of the victim before

he was cleaned up so to speak, is that right?

’

-A:  Some of them were.

Q: Okay.

‘A: And some of them, that’s correct. ‘ : .
Q: Okay, this shows blood and so forth to the victim?

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
(803) 436-2153
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Yes, except this one doesn’t really show that much
blood.

And I just want to make sure these previous exhibits,

‘ ninety-eight through one oh one, do they also show the

body of the victim before he was cleaned up? It’s the,

term I hsed.

Yes.

Okay. Now, once you all get a body'in at MUSC in the
state that it’s presented, what do you all do to the
body? And when I say clean it up, kind of tell the
ju;ors what you do to help clean the body up and what’s

the reason for that.

.AWell, whenh there’s a lot of: blood on the skin and

“surrounding injuries, sometimes, frequently it’s not

easy to tell what kind of an injury it is. And so I
take a rag and I héve my assistant and you just put
some -cold water on it and wipe off the blood that may

have accumulated on -the - skin. wherever it is and then

. those injuries are not covered up. by a bunch of

bleeding and so I can see the injuries very clearly and
then I'm abie to describe them better.
Alright'nowf'as it relates to the victim’s héir, the
Victim sort of had long hair that appeared to be in
corn rows of some type?

Yes.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
(803) 436-2153
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Now, how do you extract the bullets and tell the extent
of the injury in the entrance into the head when he’s
got all the hair there?

Just like, like a lot of blood on the skin may obscure

‘an injury that’s within that blood, that bloody area,
‘when there’s a lot of hair; it may be very difficult to

' see.the characteristics of a gunshot wound and to see

P

if there is any close range fire or contact wound fire

~and for that reason, we, and also I want to get

accurate measurements of these wounds. I will fake a
disposable razor and actually shave the margins of. the
gunshot wounds to make sure I can tell with certainty
whicﬂ is an entrance and’ﬁhiéh is an exit. And so that
helpéAclarify and to make sure that I’m“not missing
anything. I_don’t shave the entire head out of respéct
for the decedent and the family. Just so much as is
necessary éo_I can evaluate thé“injuries accurately.
Alright; ﬁow as it relates to the third group of
photographs~that I gave you; it starts with exhibit
number one oh two, is that correct? The last group?
This? |
Yes.

It’s like one oh two.

One oh two.

One oh two to one oh eight.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
(803) 436-2153
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Okay, alright now are those photographs of the victim’s
injuries once the body’s in the clean state?

Yes, after I’ve already wiped all of the blood that's
accunmulated oﬁ the body and wiped it off so I can see
skin, injufies to the skin clearly.

Alright now, in those particular photographs, first of
all, yoﬁ talk about there being an external examination
of the victim’s body and you said you did an internal
examination of the victim’s body. Is that right?

Yes.

_ Alright, kind of tell theljurors how you go about doing

an internal examination of a victim’s body.

Well, after a thorough, external examination in'which
I evaluate all ' of the injuries that are present
extérnally, I dd'an iﬁternal examihation,'wﬁich eﬁfails
from the. neck down, it entails making a central
incision through the skin and muscle of the chest and
abdomen and’tﬁen I, after removing the ches£ plate, I
can take out all -of the organs in the chest and ébdomen
and see if they suffered any injuries that weré related
to the injuries that I observed externally or perhaps
maybe 'some other injuries or other abnormalities in any
internal organs. For instance, in ordér for me to

determine the cause of death, I need to rule out all

other causes as well. And when I evaluate internal exam

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
(803) 436-2153
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of the head, when there are apparent gunshot wounds and
shotgun -wound ground the left eye and a gunshot wounds
to the head, it ﬁakes it a possibility that the gunshot
caused some injury that may be significant or otherwise
to the brain and in order to do that, without
mutilating the body before the funeral, but I need to
be through, there’s an incision in the back of the
scalp and then thé scalp is carefully peeled toward the
face- and then the skull, the top of the skull is
removed and that allows me access to the brain and

other cranial contents within the skull. And I remove

‘the brain and evaluate its weight, as well as, any

injuries: that-are present and when there are defects in

~the brain I can‘see the exact pathway of different

bullets. ForAinstance, that may have gone thrpugh.the
brain. |
And ma’am, as it relatés to other. vital organs in
Kenyan Dorsey’s body,'like the lungsrand the heért, you
would have done that same typé of internal examination?
Yes, I evaluate every internal organ.

Alright and you all,A.sometimes you all photograph
internal organs of the body? You actually photograph
that sometimes?

Not: frequently. Infrequently, only if it’s extremely

importanﬁ. I don’t frequently photograph internal

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
(803) 436-2153
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organs for the reason that, you know, most individuals,
other than the physicians don’t really know what the
difference between a normal and abnormal organ would
look like.

Okay-.

They don’t really know what, you ‘know, and I can
document these things without taking photographs. So
sometimes I do and sometimes I don’t. =
And you certainly, you don’t have any photographs that

you’ré intending to talk about as it relates to the

internal examination of Kenyan Dorsey?

No, I don’t believe that I took any of those.

Okay, alright now as it relates to exhibits numbér one
oh two through .one oh eight, tell me what’é significant
about those particular photographs.

Okay,.well all of these photographs showrthe‘injuries
that he sustained with increased clarity and that’s
because I already wiped the blood-off; the blood that
had accumﬁlated on his skin that’s no longer there, so
I can see the outlines of the injuries and I can‘also
see thé héad, -the areas that I shaved around the

entrance wounds, so -those are depicted clearly: and

.that’s it.

Okay, would those photographs of the cleaned up state

of Kenyan;s body help you to explain to the jury youf

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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testimony, your findings and your conclusions?

A: They show, yes, .they show the external injuries.

Q- Those photographs will be helpful in allowing the jury

-

to see why you came to the conclusions that you did?

A:  Yes.

Q: Alright, Judge as it relates to exhibits number one oh -

two énd one oh eight, may counsel and I approach the
bench?

(COUNSEL APPROACHES BENCH)

Ms. Barr: Your Honor, at thissfime we wéuld movekétate's
exhibits, one oh two, one oh three, one oh four, one oh
five, one oh six; bné of seven and,one oh. eight into
evidence.

Mr. Jenkinson: Objection.

The Court: The objection is sustained to all the
photographs, except for one oh three..

Q: Dr. Riemer, let me get.- you to step. down from the
witness chair pleaée. Let me figure out how thié_works.
Thank you. Come over here by me please. You can leave
your purse there, we’ll take good care of it. Alright
yoﬁ'stand 6ver there so that the jury can see clearly

103, this is a top view of the head of Kenyan Dorsey?

A Yes, it's a view from the top like toward the right of

the head. So you can see this is his right eye, this is

the top of his nose, so we’re taking the photograph

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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from the tﬁp and this is his .right ear over here and
then that’s a left shoulder and a right shoulder and
it’s illustrates the location of the entrance Wounds.'
Now, you talked about earlier how there was what
appeared to be injuries from shotgun pellets so forth
on his, near his eye. Can you see that injuryvfroﬁ
that photograph? | |

I said there was shotgun pellet entrances.

I understand, I'm sorry. Can you see those injuries to

the eye and face in that particular photo?

No, because the left eye is not displayed in the

photograph.

Alriéht, alright now!tell us.the significance oflthat
particular, well first of all, is that an injury?A
Yes, that’s a gﬁnshot woundf that’ s-an entrance gﬁnshot
wound on the top of his head.

Alright and tell us about this particular . exhibit, I.

mean this injury.

" This .injury, above the right ear, 1s another entrance

gunshot wound and that’s to the right side.

Alfight now you told me eariier that when you simply
looked . at the Dbody and you did the internal
examination, you were not able to determine just from

the external examination which gunshot wound actually,

- which injury. actually caused the exit here near the

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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chin or the neck. Were you able to determine after.you
did the internal examination?
Yes.

Alright, tell us about that please.

Well, after I did the internal examination, or while I

was doing the internal examination, and evaluating the
brain and the.skull it was, I was able to determine the
pathways of these perspective bullets through the

brain. I was able to complete that this bullet, this

" is the one above the right ear, traversed, went across

the brain and his -head and exited in the lower, the

left side of theAjaw.

Where did it continue from that point? Did it continue"

to gé back into the victim’s body?

Yes,.EO'this was after the bullet actually exited the
left jaw, itldid not continue to the air  or to_fhe
floor, it actually went into, and. I'1l have to
demonstrate .on my own body. After it exited the left

jaw, it went into the front of the left shoulder from

back here and then went into the left side of the ?hestg

where it injured the left lung and the heart.

Alright, you can have a seat. Now were you able to view

a couple of the crime scenevphotographs of the victim
sitting in the chair?

I did.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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Okay, now you talked about the pathway or the
projectory of the bullets to the top of the hgad, was
the péthway and projectory of those bullets consistent

with soméone, the shooter, standing over the victim at

‘the time he was shot?

Yes.

Alright I’'m going to hand you, at this time, what’'s
been admitted as State’s exhibit numbers eighty—six,
eighty-seven, eighty-eight ‘and eighty-nine, ninety,
ninety-one and ask 4if yéu recognize'whdf’s depicted in
thoée photographé and I ﬁay have to get you to stand
brack up again for me. 7

These are photographs of the, looks like the skull ---
péth. AHowever, it’s very hard to see, however I can

actually Visuaiize the defects in this path.

Now when you say'the'défects,’you’re talking about the
holes?

The holes;“the“holes-that“correspond"to"themihjuries~tbw'—

the head.

Alright, comeé on down here.

And there’-s another couple of more. -

Alright we’ll talk about that as we go along.

Alright. | '

Bring those with you please Doc£or’Riemer. Can I get

you to stand back here? Alright we’re going to publish

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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étate’s éxhibit eighty—six. Is that the bail' cap
you’ re télking about?

Yes.
Alright take your pointer for'me.. You said it’s kind
of difficult to see because the cap was black, did you

see the defects, or what you call the defects, what I

;call'the holes, in- that particular photograph that

corresponds with.the injury to his head?
Yes, it looks like this is one of the holes in the cap

that corresponds to one of the injuries in the head.

: Do ydu see the other one in that photograph?

Yeah, I think it’s hard for me to tell. .I’m not even

sure if I can see it. I can’t see it clearly; it looks

\

like it ﬁay be over here, so there’s actually the two

entrance gunshot wounds on the head and so this»would
be the one to the top and this would be the one to
above riéht here. | ‘

I'm going to show you eighty-seven, ;’ll publish it,

what appears to be a hole in the cap as it relates to

. that particular exhibit.

Yes, I do.’

Weli, let me do this
AN

Yeah, it looks like it’s up there. It looks like it’s

ups-side-down. So this is the one of the holes in the

¢

hat.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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Alright‘tell us about ...

This is the bullet that I recovered from the left éhest
cavity of Mr. Dorsey'and this is the bullet that after
if went through the right side of his head, above the
right ear, and went through the brain and then exited-
the left jaw_énd then went back into the chest, right
beyond the left shouider, it injured-the-heart and lung

and then terminated, it was ended its path in the

chest, left chest cavity around the lung.

Why is the number one there? What ié-that‘sdppose to

tell us?

:.  Ohy, it’s the first bullet that I recovered from the

body.

Alright and this is of that same bullet?

'Yes, this is from the under side, sc based of the

bullet --- This is the second bullet that I recovered
from the body and it actuall?, I rgcovéréd it-in thg
sinuses,-which are all those inner spaces that help us
to breathe and when they’re all clogged up with mucous
we feel terrible and gét-sinusitis and colds, but that
was on the left side of the fact and inside the face,
behind the cheek and that was the bullet that went to

the top of the head.

Alright now what 1s the significance of the number,

cha;acters FA091857

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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That’s the unique identifying number of Kenyan Dorsey,
so even though he is a human being, an individual with

human qualities when he comes into the morgue, he gets

assigned a unique identifying number so that any

documents that I have, whether it be photographs or my
report, all have that number on there. So, let/s say a
photograph endéd in the wrong place, I can always, this
is from this partiéular autopsy.

What does 09 represent?

It is tbg, FA means Forensic Autopsy and 09 is 2009, so )

this was the 185%™ person deceased to have been
autopsies —--- in USC in the year 2009.
And with what we have admitted as State’s 'exhibit

number ninety-one.

Yes, this is the different. view of the bullet recovered

from the left side.

Thank you ma’am; you may be  seated. Now, in your:

report ... In your feport you. talk ébout an injury to
the victim’s left .eye. Can you tell us a little bit
about that particﬁlar'injury?

Yés; ?here’s an injury starting at the left eye, near
the left orbital region.. The tissues around the eyes
that show injuries from shotgun, the shotgun'belleﬁs to
the left eye and go-down the —--- direction. |

Okay, what is the extent of that injury to thé eye?

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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Jenkinson: Object to this line of questioning.
Court: Go ahead.

Jenkinson: Relevance.

Barr: Your Honor, it is tied to a specific wéapon

Court: Objection is overruled.

The extent of the injury to the eye?

I saw shdtgun pellets actually going through the left

eye and go down the --— direction...
Now, when you all do the internal examination and the
external-examination, you all are trying to determine

the cause of death, is that correct?

"Yes.

And you determined in your - expertise in your

‘examinatidn of Kenyan Dorsey what the causé of his
'death'was?'

Yes.

Al;ight, tell the jury whaf was the cause of tﬁe deathn

 of Kenyan Dorsey?

Kenyan Dorsey died of multiple gunshot wounds.

Alright and you gll have different classifications of
death in South Carolina, 'is that correct?

Yes.

Alright tell us about the classifications of death?
Well, any time an individual dies, youvneed to classify

it as either a natural death or a homicide, suicide or

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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an accident., In cases that we can not tell, we call
‘them undetérmined. |

Qf. And tell us about how you classified Kenyan Dorsey’s
death? ,
A: I classified Kényan Dorsey’s death as a 'homicide

because these were fatal injuries conflicted by others.
Q: Ckay, alright, now ma’am, all of ﬁhe opinions that you
have rendered in this courtroom today, they are to a

reasonable of medical certainty?

A: Yes.
e
Q: Thank you ma’am. fPlease answer the questions of Mr.
Jenkinson.

CROSS EXAMINATION OF DR. RIEMER BY MR. JENKINSON:

Q: Just a couple of questions. Nothing in youf
examination, nothing;in your two hours of testimony has
ever said thaf tﬁe defendant in this case, KeiinB

had anything to do with murder of Kenyan Dorsey.

is that a fair statement?

Q: Are you aware that the three people who did participate
in this trial, in this event, pled guilty or one of
them, or two of them pled guilty and one has been tried v

and found guilty?

Q: No further questions.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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The Court: . Anything further? |
Ms. Barr: No sir Judge.
The Court: Alright thank you. You may step down.
Dr. Riemer: Thank you very much. :
The Court: The witness is excused
Ms. Barr: Thank you ma’am.
The Court: Next‘witness.

‘Ms. Barr: We call Justin Whack.

Mr. Jenkinson: Judge, can we just také a short break?

The Court: Yes sir. |
.

Mr. Jenkinson: It’s been é couple of hours.

The CouftiA Yes sir. Ladies and gentlemen, I'm going to
have you go to the jury room for a few mihutéé and tﬁen
press on a little bit.

{(JURY EXITS THE COURTROOM)

Mr. Jenkinson: One of our'éxperts is in Santee aﬁd I told

him to hold off because it looked like it was going to

~be two o’clock. Some indication from ‘the Solicitor,

e ey

y?sterday it was two witnesseé, now she.says, I’ﬁ just
trying to figurerﬁt when to get my witnesses. !
Ms. Barr: Judée I think
The Court: You can’t-give them appointments to come £o
court

Mr. Jenkinson: I know that, I know that John, but he’s an

hour, an hour plus away.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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1 The Court: It’s.Thursday afternoon. They got to come on

at this point, wherever they are, if they’re gding to
be witnesses. You might have to wait five, ten, fifteen

. or.an hour or two hours or whatever, but when we’re
ready for them, we’re ready for them.

Ms. Barr: Your Honor, Jjust very quickly Judge. As it
relates to whaf’s, been marked for 1i.d. is State’$
exhibit one hundred and one oﬁ eiéht.x Judge, we would
ask the court, in light of the fact that the firearms
expert from-SLED testified that the firearm that was
recovered from the defendant’s bedroom was the‘fi;earm
that fired the shots that, ﬁhe shotgun shells that wére
recovered from -the crime scene, we would subhit that
those particular photégraphs would show'the shotgun
pellet wounds. to the body of the déceased_gre nore
appropriate‘and more relevant to establish that, that

gun created that injury. So Judge, we would Jjust ask

the Court to .reconsider 1its ruling denying the

admission of those particular éxhibits.

The Court: Mr. Jenkinson?

Mr. Jenkinson: Your Honor, I'm sure the Solicitor isn’t
intentionallytHds—speaking. They éaid tﬁey removed
them from his bedroem.A There has been no showing ever
that this was his bedroom. It shows some men’s*items,

just two or three. A baseball cap, which would be male

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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or female, some Budweiser underwear, could be male or
feméle, some deodorant, Which was female'upon closer
examination and three pieces of paper that did live in
that bedroom. But the' physical presence of the
defendant in that bedroom has not beén established that
he lived there, other than three pieces of paper. You
kKnow, I’ve asked, you know, where was his.toothbrush?
You know? A few other things iike that would indicate
living, you say .that he lived there, the Solicitor’s-
idea, there has. been no proof that he lived there and
for that reason, that“ is .not present and it is no
guestion that the shotgun was found there, but there’s
no proof that he owned that shotgun, therefs not evén

any proof that he spent the night in that bed.

The Court: Alright. "Well,. sometimes in the attempt to

engage 1in overkill vyou. lose credibility as to -

. everything you’re seeking to get and I think that the

State, in this case, in seeking to admit twenty—f}ve,
thirty, hbwever numbér of picturesAinvolvéd is clearly
excessive and perhaps led to the Court over looking
specific ones thaﬁ mighf perhaps should be admissible,
but that’s the way it gées. The, speaking eaflier
about the Tgrres cése, trying to get the specific
language from the qourtAand this is December 2010 and

the Torres decision says we strongly encourage our

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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Solicitor’s to refrain from pushing the envelope on
admissibility in order to gain a victory, which in all
likelihood 1is already asgured, because of other
substantial evidence in the case. Of vcourse, 'ﬁot
referencing anyghing to assume that any victory 1is
assured, but the courts, court further went on té talk
about the growing concerns this court regardiﬁg the
efforts of the State to excessively admit pho£ographs
that are~not.esséntial to proving material elemeﬁts in
the case. I do find however, that number.one hundred,

which along with the other one already admitted, should

be ' admitted. Reconsidered on that particular’

photograph.

Ms. Barr: Thank you.

. The Court: One hundred. The ruling stays. What says as

to number 108.

Ms. Barr: Th@nk you Your Honor.

Court Reporter: These two are in?

Ms. Barr: No, this one is not in. This one is not, this one
is. |

Ms. Shuler: What two photogréph numbers were those?

Ms. Barr: One hundred and 108.

‘Court Reporter: - The one that’s in is one hundred. The

one that’s in is 6ne hundred and 108 is for i.d. This

one’s in, this one’s out.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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Ms. Shuler: Thank you.

The Court: Bring the jury.

(Jury Enters Courtroom)

Bailiff: Do you solemnly swear or affirm to tell the trutﬁ,
the whole truth and nothing but ﬁhe truth, so help
ydu God?

Mr. Whack: . I do.

DIRECT EXAMINATION OF INVESTIGATOR WHACK BY MS. BARR:

Please state your full name for the record.
" Justin Whack.
‘Okay and sir tell us where you’re employed.-

Williamsburg county sheriff’s office.

Q:

A

Q

A

Q: Are you a certified_pﬁlice officer?

A That’s correét.

Q Héw long have.you been with the Sheriff’s department?

A Sincg 2001.: -

Q Now, you assisted, or was a part‘of>the invesﬁigation
surrounding Kenyan Dorsey in 2009, is that corregt?

A: That’s correct. |

Q: Now the address where the murdér-occurred, was it in
Williamsburg county? |

A:  Yes it is.

Q: Alright, what time did your all get the 911 call?

A The call came in around two thirty a.m.

Q: And how long did it take for the deputy to arrive at

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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the scene?

-Approximately fourteen minutes.

Alright, you actually went out to-fhe residehce where
the victim was killed?
That’s correct.

Did you go inside the residence and in various rooms?

Yes I did.

‘Alright I'm going to hand you what’s been admitted -as

State’s exhibit number one oh nine, one ten and one
eleven. Does this photograph, or these photographs of

the residence of Annette Bradshaw?

Yes they are.
"Alright, ‘can I get you to step down Off the witness

-stand ‘for me? I’'m going to publish State’s, exhibit 111.

Tell, using the pointer, tell the jury what’s that a
view from and what’s depicted in that photograph?

This will be the master bedroom of the residence.

Okay.

The front door.

Just make sure you show them.

I'm sbrry. Thé front door would be back«overlto this
side. This is the living room area.

Okay. | |

Like I say, this is the master bedroom this is the wall

that separates the master bedroom and the kitchen area.

- THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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So as it relates to the dimensions, wherelwere the
victim’s body have been on that kitchen

It would have been over in the kitchen area back off to
the right.

Tell us about State’s number 11072

This is the hallway ofvthe residence that leads to a

bathroom and three other rooms. Three more bedrooms.

- Okay. State’s number one oh nine, is.that a closer.

view of the aﬁgie that you just described?

That’s correct.

So that, the opening there would be the opening for the
back bedroom?

That’s correct, this is a bedroom.

Alrighf lead us'in on the opbosite where what’s called
the master bedroom was?

On the oppoéite side.

Alright and you, you can stand right thefe. Yéu wére
able to see the victim’s body? |

Yes. |

Alright, I'm going to hand you what’s been admitted as
State’s exhibit number one hundfed. You all recovered
certain ammunition projectiles from the scene?

That’s correct.

‘Shotgun shells, fired shotgun shells?

That’s correct.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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And that resulted form the shotgun wound?,
. . 4 .

‘Yes it is.

%

I'm gbing‘to‘publish Staié’s exhibit number 100. Does
it show the shotgun shell wouﬁds?

Yes. |

Alright did you also see ..

That’s correct.

Alright you can take a seat sir. Of course at some

_point during the investigation, you all developed a

suspect and you arrested Antonic McClary?

That’s correct.
How old was Antonio at the time it happeﬁed?:

Nineteen.

‘Alright-nineteen yeérs old. How old was Ronald Mack?

Ronald Mack was seventeen.

Alright, how old was Tawanda Allen?

- " She was thirty-six.

Alright and how old was KelinB. at the time?

Thirty-one.

‘Alright and what is the address for the information

that‘you had as it related tp his ‘address as listed on

his identification?

A Kelvin B
Q: Yes. v 1
Mr. Jenkinson: I object.

.

' THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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The Court: ‘Ms. Barr?

Ms.

Barr: I' think one of the identifications was in

evidence.

Mr. Jenkinson: T object

Ms. Barr: Judge, I’1l1 withdraw the question. Sir I’m going

‘A

Q:

And what type of phone ...

to hand.you what’s been admitted. as State’s exhibit
number sixty-two. What .is the city and state upén.
which Mr. Bowen was issued an identification card?
Long Beach, éalifoénia.

Alriéht. Now dﬁring the course of ydur:investigation;
you heard .certain people.talkﬁaboué cell Rbongs?‘
That’s correct. ;

Alright, did . you lalllvattempt by usearch _warrant 'd;\

subpoena to get cell phone re¢0rds as they are related

4

~to some of.the~pléyers involved? .

Yes ma’am.

-

Were you successful in terms of text messaging and so

'forth?

The text meSSaging we weren’t able"to‘géf.'

9

Mr. Jenkinson: I object.to that question) Your Honbr/ that’s.

hearsay and should be stricken.

.The Court: The objection is sustained.

_Mr. Jenkinson: Move to strike that Your Honor.

The Court: Yes sir.

N
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“Alright, what typeé of phones were these involved? Are

these reéular cell phones wﬁere‘pepple have accounts
whén you .pay, like to Verizqn'or ATT& T evefy month?

They‘were.\ One of them was a Verizon‘phone,.ATT&T and
some:éf theﬁ were actual contract phoneé and séme of

them were not.

Now when they, if they’re not contract phones, what

kind of phones would you call them?
Prebays.
The prepaid.phones?

Correct.

Now sir you’ve been with theASher;ff’s department how .

long?
Sinqe 200L.
Alright afé>you,familiar with the jail records theré?

Yes. . \

Okay and at my réquest, did you go and get. certain -

. copies. of jail records relating to KeninB, _ in-this
case?

Yes I did.

-

. Okay I'm going to hand you what’s been marked for

identification purposes as State’s exhibit number one
twelve,’asking you’if you .recognize that particular

document.,

Yes, I do.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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Alright, how is it that you recognize it? Is it a form
only associated with the Williamsburg County Detention

Center.

‘Yes it 1is.

What type of form is it?
It’s an inmate property release form.

A property release form?

That’s correct. - - S

Alright and what is the date on that . particular
exhibit?

The date on the letter is September 28%.

‘Oka'y &

And the date on the release form is October 10, 2009.

Altight, why .is it important to'keep documents of that

'ntype'information?A
Sol‘wheh 'anr inmate Qlaim53 that his property was
destroyed or stolen or something like of that nature,

we have documentation to go back to and say hey, you

know{ you-requeéted that we give this to such and such
person. | |
Okay, alrighﬁ and Was a request made by Mr. Béwen to
give éroperty to somébody?

Yes it was..

Alright what was the request by Mr. Bowené‘To.give what

item to who?

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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It was to give |
Speak up and make sure the microphone.
It says pleaée give my aftorney, W.‘JenkinsOn, my cell
phone, Samsung model.
Okay and is it signed by KelinB.
Yes it is. ‘
Alright-ﬁow, and the date on that?
September 28, 2009.
-Airight and at somé point, did Mr. Jenkinson come to
the jail and. pick up that %;em? '
Yes he did.

Jenkinson: Your Honor, I object to this kind of

" testimony.

Court: Basis for the objection?

Jenkinsoﬁ:'Now, I'm going to have to be a witness.
éourt: Okay.

Jenkinéon: This testiﬁony is

Court:r' Is there a fact that’s an iésue or subject to
dispute>

Jenkinson: Pardon me, I'm sorry?

Court: vIs that a disputed issue? -

Jenkinson: Yes sir.

Courxt: I overrule the objection.

Bar;: Yes Sir, thank you Your Honor.

Investigator Whack tell me: what item was . released to

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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whom on what day.

It says that a Samsung model cell phone was released to
W. Jenkinson.

Are you, okay, what date did Mr. Jenkinson pick up a
cell phone?

October 13", 2009.

Alright and he would have'gotten a cell phone from the
jail? |

That’s correct.

Alright, Judge we would move State’s exhibit number, I
think it’s one twelve, into evidénce ét this time.
Jenkinson: Over our objection.
Court: Exhibit Numbér 112 is‘in.

Barr: Thank you, Judge.

-Court: " It’s admitted.

Barr: Sgt. Whack let me get her to mark that please.

(State’s Exhibit Number 112 was entered)

Q:

Now are you, would you have been the officer that

released the cell phone to W. E. Jenkinson?

y

Yes I am.

He’s the ve£y- able lawyer that’s. sitting with the
defendant, is that correct? |
Yes; that’é correct.

~

And he’s represented him throughout these proceedings?

. That’s correct.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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Alright now, since the date that the cell phoﬁe was
released to Mr. Jenkinson, have you~all been able to
get. that phone back?

No ma’am, not to my knowledge.

Alright, now one other,.one last question, if I may.
Investigator Coilins, Lt. _Collins testified about
interviewing Ronald Mack in connection with the casé,
I think back on May 28 of 2009?

Okay.

‘- Does. that sound right?

That sounds alright.

Do you have a tfanscript ofi that taped interview?

Yes I do.

Were you there wheﬁ that was being recorded?

Yes I was.

Now we heard a male’s voice on that tape’and befofe’I
ask you this, wefe you in the courtroom when part of
that tape was played?

No ma’am, I wasn’t.

Do you dispute'_thét the male’s voice, ﬁpt the
defendant’s voicé, but the male ' voice from the
sheriff’s department 1s your voice?

\I don’t dispute that.

Alright. =~ Judge we would move to publish certain,

relevant portions of un-played Ronald Mack’s statement

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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that’s in evidence.

The Court: Alright.

Mr; Jenkinson: We object Your Honor. The State had that
opportunity and Has taken advantage of that opportunity .

to play and include the portion.

The Court: Ladies and gentlemen, we’ll break for lunch
now. Please go to the jury room and return at two
thirty.

(Jury exits courtroom forNLﬁnch Break)
The Court: Alright what wéuld you want to play for the
jury now?
Ms. Barr: The part where:it left off. I’m not going to re-
play anything else.
The Court: How long is thété'
Ms. Barr:ATen minutes at the most.
The Court: - And what’s on it?( What ‘else do you want fhem
- to hear?
Ms. Barr: Do we have another copy of the transcript to give
| -the judgé?- |
The Court: - Do you kﬁow what you want them to hear or you
just want to play it?
Ms. Barr: Yes Judge, I know what I want them to hear.
The Court: That’s the question, what do you want them to .
-hear? |

Ms. Barr: Yes sir.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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The Court: - What else?:

Ms; Barr: Will you hand ybur<copy, Sgt. Whack to the judge?
Judge, I think based'on reading the transcript, we
stopped the tape on page fwenty—three, somewhere around
line fiftéen and Judge we would like to play it through
the approximately page twenty-six. I'm sorry, page
twenty-seven, line twelve.

The Court: - So you want the Jjury to hear that the
defendant might be on the fun out. of California and
came to‘be in a gang, where he was living in Maryland?

Ms. Barr: Yes sir:. |

Mr.‘Jenkinson: Which page is that on Your Honor?

The Court: The bottom of twenty-four.

Mr. Jenkinson: Twenty-four?

. The Court: Bottom of twenty-four.

Mr. Jenkinson: That'’s already been played Your Honor. It

just, -they played through twénty-seven.

Ms,’Barr: It has not been Judge. As a matter of fact, Lt. -
Collins testified and Mr. Jenkinson '‘was clear that I
‘stopped on page twenty-three at line fifteen, because
'the last thing I played was Ronald Mack stating we

either go to jail or we.die or we either we’re Qoing to

“end up having riches and everything.

Mr. Jenkinson: And what you want, what was Your Honor

referring to? What page was that on?

THIRD JUDICIAI CIRCUIT .
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The Court: Twenty-four, the bottom of twenty—~four and
the top of twenty-five.

Mr. Jeﬁkinson: That is simply being offered for prejudicé
and probative value. This is not a gang murder. There’s
no gang activity, there’s nbfhing in furtherance of
gang activity. There’s just purely being offered to
prejudice with saying he was at one time in his life he
is a crypt, but again, we can’t cross examine him and
I can’t cross examine about it, whatever circumstanced,
because this is a tape ‘and wé’re b?ing denied our
rights under the fifth ana sixth amendment; sixth the

confront, fourteenth to due process.

TheVCourt: * So the ruling of the Court is this, she can

play the tape, but- you have to read back or turn the

tape down -around beginningAaround line fourteen or so

-on. the bottom of --— the last thing that he can play;

that you wanted to play is my gang originated out of
.California. | -

Mr. denkinsdn: What wé'd like to do 1is start>‘at line

N thirteen, where the question was is Jason in San Diego?

Thén,that is the response that goes all the way through

. and we would ask that thirteen

"The Court: No, she can play down to the first word on

nineteen as my gang originated out of California, you

can even, I mean, you can, in fact 'you can play the

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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entire answer to thirteen, but you must stop before

number twenty-four and so I’mlstriking lines twenty-
four, twenty—five and then on page twenty-five, the
continuity starts on lines fourteen, how long has your
mother dated Callie? Got it?

Ms. Barr: Yes sir.

The Court: If you inadvertently play any of the other then

we have to pause we have to maqagé the volume. We're
going to break until tw&-thirty.

-BREAK-

The Court: Mr. Jenkinson you were asking about a copy of
é motion that you filed?

Ms. Barr: We found it Your Honor.

Mr. Jenkinson: Twenty-four, Your Honor.

The Court: Okay. You’'re going to stop on what page again?

Ms. Barr: Judge I think you said what page am I going to

stop at”?

The Court: - Yeah, where you going to stop at?
Ms. Barr: I think you instructed me to stop at page

twenty~-four, line twenty-three.
Thé Court: ' Yeah, and then after\you start it back, where
do you press play after that té the end or?
Ms. Barr: No sir, I don’t think I’1l play to the end.
The Court: Do you knoﬁ when or at what point you plan to

stop it after that?

~

\
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Ms. Barr: Paée Twenty four. I don’'t see me going beyond

that.

The Court: Twenty five, you’re not?

Ms. Bafr: Yes sir and Judge we would éimply just place on.
the record that the particular exhibit has already been
entered into evidence and we would, the State takes the-
position that we’re entitled to.play'more of it, butvwe

understand the Court’s ruling.

The Court: What, what éxhibit is into evidence?

Ms. Barr: The recorded statement of Ronald Mack.

A

Mr. Jenkinson: I don’t have it. I have it as being

introduced into exhibits.

-Court Reporter: It’s number sixty.

Mr.'Jenkinson:'Your Honor -it’s onlyﬂplaying partially. Now
how we’re going to handle that because I ‘was unaware
that that tape was in. ‘

Court Reporter: No, you égreed.

Mr; 3enkinson: Okay if it’s in. When -they played it I
assumed .they were going to ?lay ﬁﬁe tape, but they 6nly
played part of the tapeiand now it is in we would ésk
that it not be sent to the jury room. If they want to -

‘hear it, then they have fo hear it in open court and
only thatvportion that’s been in evidence. They can’t
go in there and liéten to the whole tape.

Ms. Bérr: And that’s a problem Judge. The whole tape is in

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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evidence and the ‘tape is.like any other exhibit. We
can chose to use part of it. Some of it or none of it.
Apd that therein creates problems because the entire
fape is in evidence. So we take the position that we
can ... ) !

Mr. Jenkinson: It was over our objectibn at that particular
tiﬁe‘Yqur Honor. We -did not --- we objected to the
tape and_we'6bjected to that wholé line of testimony so
now in view of the position of the Solicitor Qanting
fhe whole tape‘going when they only played half, we
would then objectito the unused portion Eecause it
défeats what the Court haé ruled as admissible.

The Court: The jury caﬂ.listen to any of the)tape, but
it will be in the courtroom and it will be in thé bagis
on what they aré allowed to here;

Mr. Jenkinsbn:.Thank YOu.

The Court: Alright, lét’s bring the jury in.

(Jury enters courtroom)

Ms. Barx: It pleaée the Court, Your Honor?

The Court: Yes.

DIRECT EXAMINATION OF SGT. WHACK BY MS. BARR:

Q- Sgt. Whack, I think when we b}oke, I was talking with

you about the taped statement of Ronald Mack, do you
remember me asking you about that?

A: Yes ma’am.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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Q:" And I think at that time I moved to publish a'portiqn
of thaf statement. I’'m going to do that at this time.
And Judge, based onAthe Court’s ruling, I’11l stop it at
a point in time that’s I’ve been instructed to do so.

(TAPED STATEMENf OF RONALD MACK IS PLAYED)

Mr. Jenkinson: Your Honor, characterization that it was
court ordered that she stop there, so

The Court: Alright.

Q:  Alright, now sir I’m‘going to ask you one or two more
follow up questions and Ivthink I’11 be done. At scme
point, were you notified that Tiffany Bowen maybe a
witness to this case?

A: Yes.

Q: Okay. Did you make an attempt to contact Ms. Bowen to

interview her?

A: I did.

Q: And 'did you actually have a conversation with Ms.
Bowen? |

A: Yes ma’ am.

0 Alright, tell me what you asked her.

A: I

Mr. Jenkinson: Your Honor, I objecﬁ onltﬁe basis bf‘hearséy.
Ms. Barr: It’s his statement Judge. |

The Court: Pardon me?

Ms. Barr: It’s his statement; he can testify about what he

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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said I would assume.
The Court:  Objection overruled.
Q: Tell me what you asked: of her;
Ac: I asked her what was testified to in reference tp;this
case?
Q: Alright and what was, her respdnse?

Mr. Jenkinson: Objection. Heafsay.

The Court: Msl'Bar;?

Mé. Barr: Judge, it’s not being offered except forztruth of

;the.matter it serves, we take-theypoéition it;s not:

hearsay; |

The Court: Weli what’s the point of it?

Ms. Barr: Your Honor, may we approach briefly? Yés sir, yes
sir. Let me back up for a minute Sergeant Whéck did
you identify yourself to her?

A: Yes I did.

Q: You tell her where you work for?
A: Yes I did.
Q: And you told her you were calling about KelvinB.
‘case?
A: That’s correct:
Q: Did she aéree to talk to you or did she refuse fo,talk

to you? Don’t tell me what she .said, just tell me
whether she agree to talk to you or

The Court: Overrule the objection.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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Q: Did she agree to talk to you or did she refuse to talk
to you? | ‘
A: She refused.

Q: That’s all the questions that I have.

CROSS EXAMINATION OF MR. WHACK BY JENKINSON:

Q: Mr. Whack, let’s Jjust start where you left off. You
ever heard the expression, do you agree to tell the

whole truth and nothing but the truth?

Ac: Yes I have.
Q: Have you just told us the whole truth in this case so
far?

A:r  Yes I have. o -

‘Q: . Well did ydu tell us when you calléd Tiffany Bowen to

talk to her?

A: No, sir. .

Q: Didn’t bother to tell us it was Friday afternoon, Jjust
a few days ago when she was getting feady to get in a.
car and come to éouth Carolina, did you?

Ms. Barr: Objection Your Honor. The question assumes facts

that are not in evidence. We don’t know where she was.

The Court: The objection is sustained.

‘Q: You called her this'past Friday afternoon?
A:+ Yes sir.

Q: She had never seen you before in her l%fe?
A: I guess not. I’d never seen her before.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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i

" You’d never seen her before and she has never seen you

before?

Not that I'm aware of.

And aanody can say I'm a Sheriff’s deputy from

Williamsburg county over a telephone can/t they?
Yés'sir.

In fact, Ms. Bowen said, officer if you want to taik fo
ﬁe, you can talk to me Monday, I’1ll be glad to talk

with you, Mr. Jenkinson, in your presence and you can

‘ask me whatever you want to ask. She told you that

twice didn’t §he?

It wasn’t exactly like that.

Bﬁt she told you she’d meet with you on MondayAand talk
with you didn’t she? |

She said that she would be-here Mdnday‘tb,answer any
questions.

And on Monday did you ask her any.questions?

I didn’t see her Monday.

Did you walk up to her and ask hef any questions
Monday? |

No sir..’

\

- Did you walk up Tuesday?

No sir.
Did you walk up Wednesday?

No sir.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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Did you walk up.this morning?
No sir.
Did yoﬁ walk up to her anytime up until you took the
sfand today?
No sir.
You saw her stand up in court and identify herself on
Monday?
That’s correct.
And you didn’t make any attempt} cause all you wantéd
to do was take the stahd so'you coula tell‘us she was
not cooperating. That’s thé only reason you even
called her Fridéy»afternoon, isn’t it?
No sir; IR
Well‘YOu certainly had Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday and

half a day Thursday to talk to her if you wanted to in

- the courtroom, didn’t you? Live and in person. . With

a uniform on.and proper identification.

Yes sir.

wa, I want to understand something about the two.cell
phones. I'm going to show you what is exﬁibit a
hundred and twelve that was introduced through you and
it says  to whom it may concern.  Please give my
attofney W. E. Jenkinson, III my éell bhone, Samsung
model to my attorney. He has myvauthorization to get

custody of it. And that was back ‘on September 28,
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2009. You remember that?

A: Yes sir.

Q- Was the Samsung.phone ever given‘to me én that day or
any day éince?

A: According to

Q: Sir?

A: According to this paper you received it on October 135?

Q: Where does it say on the second page anywhere where I
got a Samsung telephone?

Ac: It doesn’t say that but there;s the explanation.

0: Well it doesn’t.say that does it?

A: No sir, because I Qas informed that you brought this
letter to the jail from,‘because he was in Abrahaﬁ at
the time.

Q: Correct, but it doesqft say I got the telephoné‘does 
it?

A: Not on that form.

Q:  Well, you don’t Waﬁt'the jury. to think that4I ﬁaVe been
hiding this cell phone, this Samsung cell phone from
anybody from this day forward, do you?

A: -Well, that’s why I didn’t attach .that form, that;s why .
I didn’t attaéh(that sheet that’s handwritten'to that
inmate property sheet. |

Q: So you’re accusing me of hiding ...

Ms. Barr: Judge, I'm sorry, objection. . He’s interrupting

,THIRD-JUbICIAL CIRCUIT
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the witness.
The Court: Objection sustained. Let him finish the
answer. sir. .
Q: Were you back in court

The Court: Just a moment Mr:. Jenkinson.

Mr. Jenkinson: Oh I’'m sorry, sustainedé Is that whét youfre
trying to do? |

The éourt: Just a moﬁent. He’s answering your question.

A: They attached, that hénd written sheet to the inmate
property sheet‘becauée Mr.‘éowen-wasn’t there at our
detention center to sign our sheet for you to get the
form.. You presented our.jail with that form while the
hand written néte sheet requeéting the Samsung phone'to
us. in'turn, they,got you to sign our sheét with his
‘name at the top because you’re hig attorney and one of
our C.0’s witnessed you signing the form and reéeiving

his property.

Q: Doesn’t say I got thé Samsung phone, does it?

A: ~On our sheet it does, but the paper you have vyour

client statement on that piece of paper.

Q: Were you back in court on August 30, 2010 when we were

trying to find the Samsung phone?
A: Not sure.
Q: You weren’t? ' You weren’t in the same bourtroom when

we were trying to get the Samsung phone and had.been

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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*asking for cell phone records? -

Ms. Barr: Judge, we would object to this question, the

question calls for hearsay.

Thé Court: The objection is overruled, continue..

Ar I'm not'sufe Your Honor.

Q: Well, let me refresh youf recollection. There were two
Saﬁsung, ‘there. wérev two phones in Mr. Bowen’s
possession when he was arrested. You heard that

testified to yesterday.

A No sir, I didn’t hear it.
i

Q: Well, I’'m going to tell you he had two phones;"a
Samsung phone and he had a second telephone.

Ms. Barr: Objection, counsel is testifying.

- The Court: ~ Objection sustained. -

Q: Well, did you know he.had a Sprint Nextel greyish white

phone?

A: I'm not aware.

Q:A Okay, did you:know he had a Samsung phone?

A Yes from the processing.

" Q: Alright, I’'m a show you a motion that was filed in
connection with this phone back in August.26, 2010.
You see that?

A: Yes.

Q: And who’s name appears there?

Ms. Barr: Objection, hearsay Your-  Honor.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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Okay and there was a hearing‘held on this very matter
by the Honorable Clifford Newman, you recognize his
name, don’t you?

Yes sir.

And this is his. Okay and I want to show you page two
of the top of the page and you can read it to yourself

the first time.

(Witness reads)

Q:

o

o0

Were you in. court vyesterday when Athe detective
testified that the Samsung cell phone was last seen in
the Kia Sportage?'

No sir, I wasn’t.

Or AntonioaDorsey or Dontrey Barr who saw it or Mr.

‘Wilson who saw it. He would certainly be. able to

3

verify it -hadn’t he?
Possibly.
Well, they would come from the -cell phone company

wouldn’t it?

" Yes sir. -

‘Okay.. Alright, all you know we haven’t seén ény of

that yet have we?

Not that I'm aware of.

Not in three and half days.
Not that I'm aware of.

For that matter we haven’t seen any evidence since Mr.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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Bowen was arrested either, have we?

No.

‘About twenty-two months ago. Twenty months ago. Now,

Dontrey Wi;son‘and Dohtrey Barr gave you statements,
didn’t they?

Yes sir, I believe they did.

They could, they have never been able to identify Mr.
Bowen as Callie have they?-

Not to my knowledge; ’

When Ronald Mack gave you the sfatements, yoﬁ were
there for e&ery statémenf he gave, Qeren’t you?

I believe I was.

Sir?

I believe I was.

Well do you know? There was three. One the day of the
crime and two on the thir?eenth of May and then a
fourth one on the twenty eighth'of May.

I'm not sure. You”d have to check the Statements to

see.

Sir?

You don’t ‘remember?

I céh’t say that'I was there for every one of them. I
would have to check the statements to see. |

Do you remember the first statément they gave that
\ :
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Mack, Ronald Mack. and Antonio McCléry requesting
separately? o

We alwaysAquestion fhem separate, we don’t ...

You always question witnesses separately to make sure

they’re telling the same story, aren’t they?

"To make sure that there’s, that each story is original

But you don’t let them listen to each other, so and

then you can compare if the stories are the same,

right?

‘No sir.

You ‘don't do that? Well you questiocned those two
sepérately, didn’t you? o

Yes sir. |

Okay.  And, they gave consistent statements back in

April, didn’t they?

» I would have to read their statements to see.

Okay. Well, I'm a help you out. I'm a hand:you, this

_is the incident report. Y’all aetually write out

everything,; don’t you, that occurs in an investigation?

Yes sir.

But I’m a show you your incident report entries of 04-
06-2009. 1Is that what I have here?

Yes sir.

And do you see where at two pm Mr. McGee arrives with

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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' . his son Ronald Mack and gave a statement?

A: Ckay.

Q: - And then you met with Antonio McClary who lives out at
] ———‘and he gave you a statement? That’s
correct? That’s whap I say éeparate and then also
Dontrey Barr was questioned and Mr. McClary was
quesfioned. Do you see all that?

A: Yes sir.

Q:. And what was the entry date after you léft Mr. Barr’s
residence all stétemepts appear,tb be'consisfent. Is
that what it says?

A: - Yes sir.

Q: That meané‘all of them are_telling tﬁe same story,
separately,'rigﬁt?

A: Yes sir. ‘

Q: Nobody ever said KehinB. had anythihg to do with
this éasir did fhey?

A: Not at that time.

Q: And let’s go;forward as late as'the thirteenth and
including the thirteenth in ﬁhé statements given by Mr.
Mack and a portion that was played, he never, ever said
Kelvin B. ‘ is.Callie, aid he?

A: In his statement )

' The Court: Respond to the question.
Q: That’s my question. He never,'ever said that Kelvin

‘ .
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Bowen was Callie, did he?

A: He said Kelvin, his mom’s fiancee.

Q: Kevin is what he said. Kevin, K-E-V-I-N. You remember
that?

A: I don’t know. I mean I can’t say he said Kelvin or

Kevin. We understood it to be Kelvin.

Q: Want me to show it to you?
A: Yeah.
Ms. Barr: And Your Honor, we would object to hearsay if

he’s going to ask him questions about a tranécript,
obviously tape is the bést.
Mr.:Jehkinson; Your Honor. please, when the tape w;s played
for Investigator Collins. ‘she-had‘thé transcript, she had
the transcript and she said is this a true and correct

transcript at the time.

‘Mr. Jenkinson: That it was not introduced into evidence.

The ‘Court: Go ahead and find it. -
Q: - Let me show you Mr. Mack’s statement give on May twenty
) . ] -

eight.

A: Alright.

Q: At 2:09 pm.
A Okay.
See it?
Yes.

What is Callie’s real name? What did he say?
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He said Callie name Kelvin.

Spell it.

K~E-V-I-N

Okay, that is not Kelvin, is it?

That’s what the traﬁscript éays.

He did not, that is not, Kevin is not Kelvin, is it?
No sir. |

You knew somebody real well by the name of Kelvin right
in your own officg building, didn’t you?

Yes sir.

What’s his name?

Kelvin Washington.

Your sheriff. And if he’d a called the sheriff’s name,

you’d a known that, wouldn’t you?

Yes sir.

You  remember him saying, that only Ronald Mack, I'm.

sorry Antonio Dorsey only said Ronald Mack wore gloves

" into the crime scene.. Remember that?

Say that again.

That only Ronald Mack wore gloves into the crime scene,
youlremember‘that? |

I don’t right off.

You.wouldn’t doubt that would you?

I can’t confirm it eithef.

You want to see that one too?

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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SureJ'

Okay. You remember Antonio McClary giving you. a
statement on May thirteenth 2009, six seven twenty-
four, second statement?

Let me see.

Remember that?

Yes.

You were standing right there weren’t you? Or sitting
right there.

Yes sir.

Db you remember, you-asked the»qﬁeétion,~did they have
gléves on or anything and.what did he say?

I think Ronald'did;

And what did you say?

Ronald did. |

And what did ﬁe say?

I_think Ronald did.

He 'didn’t say anything about .anybody else having
gloves, did he?" | |
ﬁo éir;' '

Because if .you don‘t have gloves on you leave
fingerprints.

That’s true.

Is there any fingerprints of KelvinB. found at the

crime scene?
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I’'m not aware of any.
You’re not aware of it are you?
I'm not.

Now, Antonio McClary referred to Callie as Ronald Mack

Step father, I believe.

Never calling a boyfriend. He said he’s a step father
of Ronald Mack, right?

That’s correct.

Nowhere is it written, or nowhere is it shown that
Kelvin Bowen is his step father, is there?

No sir.

How many step fathers does Mr. Mack have?

. Oh I don’t know.

More thah one isn’t it?
I don’t know.
Well, his mama’s name is Tawanda Mack Allen isn’t it?

That’s more thén, if you’ve got a Mack and an Allen

‘that’s at least two. He’s got one real daddy and at

\

least one step daddy.

Okay;

Have you made any invéstigation into the two step
fathers as to wheﬁher orrth they fit the description
and could in faét,lbe this person identified as Callie?

No sir.
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Didn’t bother to check did you? ‘
Is Mack her maiden name or is that her?
I don’t know. You’re the investigator. Have you made
aﬁy inquiries?
I know of her guess it’d be her ex husband, James
Allen.
But shé’s been married more than once.
OhAI don‘t know how many times she’s been married.
That.woula fit the description of step father wouldn’t
it?
Mr. Allen would, vyes.
And.KﬂWﬁB _ wouldn:t fit the description of s£ep
father would he?

It all depends on what he’s been. told.

Well if they’re not married he couldn’t be hiS'étep

father could 4t?

He may have been told they’re married.
" Do you remember Antonio McClary giving you a'drawing as

‘to where he stood outside of the residence while the

shooting took place?

I don’f remember. I regember him telling. me, saying
where' he was, but the drawing, I don’'t recallq-the
drawing. ~

I'm a show you page seventeen of that statement, okay?

I

Questicon; and tell me where y’all got on the gravel
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rdad‘and draw it on this paper and talk a?,the same
time. How did y’all go in the house. I'm a make a

diagram and this is going to be, and then there’s a

diagram.

Ms. Barr: Judge, may I inquire counsel as to which statement

he’s referring to and which page”?

Mr. Jenkinson: It was done on’Méy 13%", 7:24, the second one.

Ms. Barxr: Thank you sir.

Mr 'jenkinson:.It’svcélled the confession.

A: No sir.

Q: Hetnever} meaning Antonio McCiary, never told you he
went inside the house in this confession statemént( did

A he?

jA: No sir.

Q: If he didn’t go inside the house, ‘he can’t tell us who
shot or fired the shots that killed Kenyan Doréey,,éan
he?

A: Not in that statement he'didn’t.

Qr Well, did you believe‘hiS‘statementé

The Court: Objection. This is irrelevant to what he

believes. Next question.

Mr.

Jenkinson: Yes sir.  When you questioned Ronéld Mack,
did he try to pin the mutder, that he admitted doing,
on a guy named Tom Tom and one named Bam from

Eemingway?
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Seems like I do remember him mentioning those others.
Now, you investigated of course, and talked with Tom
Tom and Bam to find out if they were iﬁvolved?

I don’'t remember. I don;t know if we ever figured out
what their real names were.‘

Did anybody make ény investigation in it, to it?
Certainly did.

Who did? I haven’t seen any notes; I’d just like ﬁo
see éomethiﬂg or hear §émething that somebody did check

out a murder suspect or two.

Barr: Objection Judge, counsel is testifying.

The Court: Objection- sustained to all counsel making random

statements.

Q:

On the 28%™ of May you got a statement from Ronald Mack -
énd Tawandé‘Allen, remembér that? |

Yes sir.

And' do you reéall right before the stétement, let me
ask, Ronald Mack and his mother were faken over to the
shefiff’s office fof-these statements, weren’t they?
Correct.

You ﬁoqk them, didn’t you?

I, think -I did.

And they were together when you were with, when they
were with you, weren’t they?

I don’tithink so.
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Do you remember them talking and between themselves and

-having a conversation about what they were going to

say?

I don’t recall.

Do you recall hié mama éelIing him to make sgmething
up, but make sure that it’s relating to the story?

No sir.

To put Kelvin in it?

No sir.

- You don’t remember that?

I don’t remember that.

. But right after that they would have, they did get a

recorded statement. Right?

Like I say, I don’t remember them talking about that.

- Were you present when Antonio McCléry identified the

photograph on the computer?
Yes sir.

He was taken over to see a lineup?

No sir, I think he was being brought over for an

interview.
He was taken over for an interview?

Yes sir.

.And also to look at a photograph?

No sir, we brought him over for interview.

Okay so, so he had no idea he was going to look at a
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photograph?
That’s correct; not to my, not fo nmy knowledge.
Okay. But he only saw one photograph?
He saw one when she was downloading the email.
Okay, Antbnio McClary’s description of C;llie, do you
remember that iﬁ his statement?
No sir.
You were present on May 13 and 7:24 pm for the second
confession statementAof Mr. McClary weren’t you? Sir?
Am I on the transcript? |
I'11l let you‘look at it.
Yes.
And do you remember Investigator Lail asking Mr.
McClary, what does Callie look like? Do you remember
that questioﬁ?’ |
Yes sir.

And what did he say?

He had told him he’s scrawny.

~What kind of hair?

Peezy like, real peezy.

Ié that low cut?

No, abéolutely not.

Not iow cut like'an Afro. In other words, he’s got a
full Afro?

He didn’t say that; he just said peezy.
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Well it’'s not low cut, right?

That’s what he said.

Alright, that was a complete description, well I take

-it.back; there’s one. 1Is he light skinned or not? It

said, what dées it say?

Brown skinned.

Okay, other than that, there was no description given
by Mr. McClary, was there?

Just ... ’

That was the complete description.

Yes sir. .

That was all. he knew, wasn’t it?

Yes sir.

When‘yoﬁ saw Ronald Mack, I'm sorry, when“you saw Mr.

Bowen for the first time when he was brought to South

Carolina on the 28t" he didn’t fit that description(

did he?

Partially.

Well he was tall.

Yes sir.

He”s not: scrawny,’ is he?
Yeah he is.

Sir?

Yes he is.

And, well, depends - -on who you. call, want to call

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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) scrawny right? |
Ci" :2 A: That’s right.
3 Q: ‘He’s got a mustache and had one then.
4 A I'm not sure whether he had one then or not. .
5 Q: Well I’11 help you with the computer pictufe. Do you
6 | remember State’s exhibit number 677
7 A: Yes.
8 Q: That’s the-.one that Mr. Dorsey identified him by?
9i A: That’s Mr. McClary. |
16 Q: I mean Mr. McClary, I’m sorry. Antonio McClary.-
11 ‘A: Yes sir.
12' ek That’s the one he identified gim by?
. - /
(i} 13 A: Yes sir. ' : | . |
7 . 14 T Q: And how tall is he in that picture?
K 15 A: Can’t tell.
16 | Q:. Can’t tell can you?
1~ | A th'by the picture, no sir.
.18 Q: ' How scrawny is he in that picture% Don’t -look like
i9’ : he’s scrawny does it?
20. - A Well
21 Q: Got a mustache doesn’t he?
27 A Yes sir.
23 Q: Did he tell you anything about a mustache?
24 A: No sir.
C:f 25, Q: That’s pretty prominent, isn’t it?
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I "‘suppose. ’ -

Did he tell you anything about a scar along his jaw

"line that he identified while he was in court?

No sir.

None of those

I don’t know wﬁat he testified to in court.

Well, none of those, virfually none of this photograph
matches the description he gave you in that sworn

statement does it?

It’s not a full body photo.

" He identified him from the photo?

“Well, he‘recogniéed him from the photo.

I understand ' that. o Is there anything‘ from his
description that fits this photo?

Brown skin. I gueés you could say he’s scrawny.

You don’t know that thougﬁ'do you”?

Not just by the photof

And he wasn’t shown but one photo.

Well he wasn’t shown that. He happened to come in to
the room when it was being downloaded.

He stumbled into the room?

He was brought into the room by the policé.

Just walking around looking at computers?

Well in a way, vyes.

He went over there to look at that picture didn’t he?

L
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A: No sir.

Q: Y’ all brought him over there to iook at that picture?
A: No sir.

Q: He just happened to see it?

A: Yes sir. ’

Q: Okay. Thank you sir.

The Court: Any reFdirectionév

Ms. Bar}: Very brief Judge.

RE-DIRECT OF SERGEANT WHACK BY MS BARR:

Q:

-z

| @)

>0 - O]

Sergeant Whack, would .you agree or disagree with the
characterization of Callie being tall?

Yes.

Alright and thé‘géntiemaﬁ who was arrested and brought‘
frpm Maryland, Mr. Bowen, is he-tall -to you?

Yes.

Is he scrawny to you?-.

Yes.

Is he 5£own skinned'ﬁo you?

Xes.

Now, this whole notion abou£ kélvin Versus Kevin, your
former sheriff, oui fofmer sheriff of Williamsburg
county was named Kelvin Washington, or is named Kelvin
Washington? \

That’s correct.

You’ve heard him called Kevin before?

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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Yes. | -
People mispronounce that word all the time?
That’s correct.
Now when you called Ms. Bowen, where did‘you call herxr
from?
From here at the\éourthouse.
The courthouse? Right?
That's correct.
And when you asked her why you weré-calling, what did
she:say? |
She said that she’d be here oﬁ Mondéy to----her
attorney édviséd her to tell us fhat she’d be here on
Monday to-answer any gquestions. .

Her attorney?

Mr. Jenkinson: Wait a minute, don’t interrupt him. I want

to hear what he's got to say.

Q:

“A:

I'm sorry, please continue.

She said that her attorney advised her to tell us that
she could answer any questions on Monday;

Did -she say who her attorﬁey.was?

No ma’am, she didn’t.

Now, one quick‘question. Mr. Jenkinson asked youzhave
you collected any evidence against KelinB. in the
twenty two months since -he was arrested. _Remember.him

asking you that question?

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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CA: Yes.

Q: Did you in fact, collect any evidence on Mr. Kelvin B.

since he been arrested?

- A: - Yes we did.

Q: Is this part of that evidence this shot gun?

A: Ye% ma’ am.

Q:. That’s ali the questions I have.

Thé Court: lAnything further?

RE-CROSS OF MR. WHACK BY MR. JENKINSON:

Q: Did you ever find any fingerprints on that shotgun?
A:  No sir, I .didn’t personally.
Q: Did you ever find any documents indicating. his

'ownership of that shotgdn?

A: No sir, the serial numbers were

" MR. JENKINSON: Nothing further.

A::~‘..; scratched off. -

The Court: . You may step down. Next witness?

‘Ms. Barr:vJudge that’s the State’s case. The State will

rest.

The Courti_;Alright,'ladies'and gentlemen the State has
rested. Please go to the jury foom and do notAdiscuss the
case. 1 ' : .

(Jﬁry exits courtroom)

The Court: Matters of law.

Ms. Barr: None on behalf of the State Judge.
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Shuler: rYour Honor, at this time_the Defense would
‘move for a directed verdict. The State has failed to
produce any competent eVidence‘that would tend to prove

each and e?ery element of the crime beyond a reasonable

doubt. - It is your, the Judge must grant the motion

where circumstantial evidence merely raises a suspicion

of guilt and we wouid assert that there’s 'only a
 suspici5n of guilt. in this case; there’s not competent
evidence fé suggestv that 'Mr. Bowen was in _Sogth
Carolina ' in the time"thét the murder, had ény
conneétion.to South Carolina at the time,éf the murder,

had any gohnection with anybody "at the time -of the

murder... Ronald Mack testified that the first t;me>he'

had ever met Mr. Bpwén Was in May.of 2009, which’was

- well after Mr. Dorsey had been murdered. . He said the
first time he ever laid eyes on him was the day before

~5Mdther’svDaylin May of 2009.- Whenever he .and his,

whenever KelinB.

Carolina to pick him up and carry him back to Maryland.

Antonio McClary’s description does not’ fit: the -

deécription, ddes'not fit what Mr.‘Bowén looks like and

nondy has identifiedAvhim pdsitivelyjfas being the

" individual who has been alleged to have committed these

crimeé.~ Multiple Wwitnesses have given multiple

statements on various occasions; Mr. McClary has given

and his mother came down to.South -
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at least four statements that we know of. Mr. Mack has.
given two. They have interviewed multiple people on

multiple occasions with different stories. There’s a

failure of competent -evidence to tend to suggest the

Defendant’s guilty in this qése. No fingerprints on
the gun, nothing linking him to.the gun, othér than,
other than the ‘fact that it was_in the room pf his
girlfriend’s house. It’s mere presence is insufficient;

does'not connect him directly to- the crime. So we would

suggest that the Court grant the directed verdict in

this case. Your Honor, I would also .add that there was.
nothing to suggest that KevinB. . . ,.everASpéht the

night  in Tawanda Allen’s .home. No toothbrush, no

clothing, no shoes, no razor, no hailrbrush.

1" The Court: . Rule 19 piovides/thatvin rulind'on a motion -

for directed verdict, .the Court shall'gonsider only fhé

existence or non existence of the evidence and not

it’s wéight.A There is evidence. in thefrébord that the

 Defendant killed Mr. Kenyan Dorsey and the Defendant,

along with Mr. Mack, they both shot him after breaking

into the house, further evidence that thié‘was>plan36d

sometime beforehand and that they were all armedlwith
. various. weapons: when the murder was committed.” If:the

Jury is to'believe that evidence,)then the Defendant

will most likely be found guilty and therefore, I dehy
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your motion for directed verdict.

Shuler: Thank you Your. Honor.

Court: Anything else before we proceed with the

. Defense?

Jenkinson: I’d just like about two or three minutes to

re—-group if we could ﬁake'a'break.

Ccurt: _ .Do you want me to question Mr. Bowen as to
his right to testify or not to testify?

Jenkinson: Yes.sir. He has chosen not to testify.

Court: Alright, we woﬁld like to examine him on the
record regarding that before the_jury.comes back. Mr.
Bowen at this fime I’m going to explain to you certain
of your righté. If you do not understand anything that
I "said, please let me know and I will explain it
further. Do.youvunderstand?

Yes sir.

Court: .= We have reached the stage of the trial whére
you have the right to present your defense and;you have
the right to‘claim the proteétions by the 5% Amendment
to the Constitution of ' the United States. = This
amendment states, in part, no person shall be compelled
in.any criminal case, to be a witness against themself.
This means éhat you cannot be required to testify in
this case. No one Cén, you do have the right to

testify, but you cannot be- compelled to testify. No
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(803) 436-2153



10

11

12

13

14~

15
16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

HEARING - 559 -

one can make you testify. This 1is a personal right

and no one can waive this right but you. If you decide
to testify, you’ll be subject to the same rules that
govern other witnesses who have taken the stand and yéu
may be examined or cross examined on any relevant issue
in this case. 1In addition, if you have any convictions
involving dishonesty or faise. statements or crimes
punishable by imprisonment for more .than oné year and
I determine that the quote.is value of admitting this

evidence outweighs.its prejudicial effect to you, the

‘State then would be able to introduce your .record to

attack your credibility;‘ If you -decide to testify,
this decision on your parf, must be fréely, volunta;ily
and intelligently made. The full. knowledge of the
protections given you by«;he 5th amendment, as well as
the:consequeﬁces of §our'decision £o testify. If you
decide npt to testify, I will instruct the jury that
they'can‘not give tﬁe fact tha£ you did not testify any
consideration) whatsoever .ih their determination of
whether you’re guilty or not guilty;i And thatvthere is
to be'ébsolutely no prejudice’ to you becauée'you did
not testify. It is left entirely up to you whether or
nof you testify. You may_talk with your lawyer, Mr.
Jenkinson, Ms. Shuler, family, friends or anyone else

you’d like to talk to,. but the final decision is left
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entirely up to you. Do you understand what I've
explained?

A: Yes sir.

The Court: Do you have any questions about that?

A: You said I can talk to my family?

The Court: You can talk to your fémily.

A: . So I can speak to my wife?

The Court: You éan speak to your wife ‘and they’ll

-arrange to have you do that in‘just a minute. But you
have discussed, have you discussed -with your lawyer
whetﬁe? 6r not you should testify? |

A: I éan talk to him again té right?

The Court: . - You can talk with him again as well.

A: Alright. |

The Court: " So you.want to confer with yéur iawyer and
your wife before deciding whether you should testify?

A: Yes sir.

The Court: Alright, we’ll take a break.

(Court breag was taken)

The Couft: | Mr. Bowen havé you had enough time to decide

whether or not you’re going to testify?

A: Yes sir.
The Court: | Are you going to testify?
A: No sir. |
'~ The Court: Alright anything else on this?
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Mr. Jenkinson: No sir.
The Ceourt: Alright thank you. Alright, ready for the
jury?
Mr. Jenkinson: 'Yes sir.
The Court: Bring them on.

(Jury enters the Courtroom)

The Court: How’s the jury doing-?

A: Doing alright.

The Court: Doing alright?

A: Yes sir. =

The Court: Okay. You'’ve heard:the State’s case; it’'s

now the defenses tﬁrn.
Mr. Jenkinson: May it please the.Qourt?
Tﬁe Court: Yesvsir{
Mr. Jenkinson: First order of business Your Honor, we would
move3int0'evi§ence exhibit marked ‘for identification as
Defense exhibit number13 which- is the Anne Arundel County
police tow vehicle form,: Next we would méve into evidence

Defendant’s exhibit number 2, the statement of Antonio

McClary. -

(Defendant’”s Exhibit Number One was entered)

Ms. Barr: We object to that one.
The Court: Mr. Jenkinson?
Mr. Jenkinson: It was authenticated by Mr McClary as what was

prepared and presented to him.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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HEARING , 562

The Court: The objection is sustained.

Mr. Jenkinson: The third item is Defense\exhibit number 1,

the identification which Ronald Mack signed and autﬁenticated
by Mr. Mack. | |
Ms. Barr: Objection, hearsay. And Your Honor, also we are
not sure that that exhibit is properly authenticated. .

The Court: He’s testified to by who?

Mr. Jenkinson: Mr. Méck. He authenticated and said he

signhed, that was his signature and that was his statement

he provided;

Ms. Barr: Judgé, we would Simply take the position it’s an »

out of court statement offered --- There 1is not any

,applicabie héarsay rule that applies-and therefore it should

be excluded as hearsay.
The Court: Sustain the'objection at this time.
: : N

Mr. Jenkinson: I call Mr. Scott Palmer.

-WITNESS IS SWORN IN-

DIRECT EXAMINATION OF SCOTT PALMER BY MR. JENKINSON:

‘Q: ?ou.Scott Palmer?

A: I am.

Q: Mr. Palmer tell the jury wheré you live.
A: I'live in Charleston, South Caréiina.

You practice law? -
I do. .

How long have you been licensed to practice law?
N

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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HEARING 563
I'm iﬂ my 23% year.
And where is your office located?
I actually have two offices; one is in,Saﬁtee, South
Carolina and the other 1is in Ridgeville} South
Carolina.
How long have you been practicing in the state of South
Carolina? SN |
Since August of 1988. | :
Does your practice include representing criminal
defendants?
It does sir.
Have you represented.élients in Williamsburg county?
I have; nqt'that many, but I have on occasion, yes.
Where did you go fo law school?

University of South Carolina.

- And what year did you ‘graduate?

1988.

Are you-a member of the South Carolina bar association?
I am.

And you’re famiiiar with the ethical rules that govern
lawyers iq éourt and in'representing cliénté?

I am. |

Antonio\McClary, do you know him?

Yes.

Did you represent him?

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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HEARING | 564
Actually I represented him on séveral different
métters.
You’ve known him some time?
I have indeed.
Did you have the occasion to represent him in criminal
charges for murder, for possession of a weapon during
a violent crime and burgiary first in Williamsburg
county, South Carolina?
That’s Eorrect.
What did, what did, -tell. the jury what was the nature

of -those charges and what" incident occurred out of

which he was charged.

-Well he was alleged to have been involved in the case

[y

thét we’re heré about . The murder of a guy named
Dorsey.

Kenyan Dorsey?

Yes: |

And did you represent him throughout until-tpat case
was disposed of?

Yes.

How was the case disposed of? By trial or by pleading?
He pled.guilty. | _ £ | |

He pled guilty when?

"I don’t know. It was in 2010 sometime. I believe it

/

was probably about six months ago.
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HEARING ' 565

)

Back in October?

October, yeah.

And that was in this courtroom?

Yes.

And before Judge Newman?

Iﬁ was.

And you were his lawyer of record at that time?"

I was.

When those charges were brought before this: court,
would he plea guilty to murder?.

You know, I’ﬁ‘going to have to look in the file,‘bgt I.
believe it was a reduced charge, but, yéu‘know, there’é
a lot of cases since then, so I bélreve, weli, thefe
was a plea negotiation, so

There was negotiations with whom?

With the Solicitor’s office.

And as a'result, did he plea guilty to -burglary second?
Again,'I don‘ﬁ know if the burglary was dropped or if

that was part of the plea deal.

#

If I show you the transcript, would that refresh your

recollection?

Yes and I would go with whatever that said.
I”11 ask you if this 1is copy of the transcript of the
guilty plea on October 14, 2010 of Antonio McClary?

Yes that is.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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HEARING ' 566

I call your attention to the first two pages. You may
want to glénce at it to refresh your memory.

Okay, yeah, looks like he pled té second degree murder
and that looks like the only charge on here. It looks
like he pled to secona degree and that was 1it.

Alright then what was he charged with at the beginning
of the plea-?

First degree ‘and then there were some other charges.

I think it was

The murder -charge.

A burglary first and-some weapons cﬁargeS‘I fh;nk were
in there.

Wés that a negotiated plea with the Solicitor?
It . was.

And was. the murder charge dropped?
The first degree was ...

And therg was

dropped.

one murder charge against him in the ultimate plea'

was there?

Right.

First degreé bufglary, was it dropped?
I believe it was, yes. |

And he only pled ﬁo second degreé?

Right.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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HEARING ' 567

That carries up to fifteen years?

Right.

Did he get a fifteen year sentence?

No.

What did he get?

I think he got twelve.

In the plea negotiations with the Solicitor, was there
any disqussions with the Solicitor about his tesfifying
at thié trial with Kenyan Dorsey?

I can’t say that that'was a condition of the plea. It
was probably brought up and I know when I talked to
McClary, when we were»discussing the plea, I told him
that if he would probabiy be asked to testify in’ahy of
these other charges on any other defendants that Wenf
to trial, that he would be expected to testify.

i

And he agreed to do that?

He did.

. And as a result, his, he only pled quilty to twelve

years? .
Yeah, I don’t know if it was as a result, but he
understood that when he pled that if any of the other

cases came to trial thatihe would be called to testify.

- Let’s go back; did you receive, did you request from

the 'Solicitor’s office what we call Rule 5 or Grady

Motion Discovery on his behalf?

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
(803) 436-2153




10

11

19

13

14

15

16

17*

18

19
20

21

22

23

25

HEARING A : 568

Yes.
Did you receive his statements that he had given law
enforcement in April and two in May of 20097

Yeah, as I recall, they were in the form of a

‘transcript. of a recording. There may have been some

other written statements that he prepared, but the main
statements were transcripts, transcribed recordings;
Now, do you recall asking for a preliminary hearing
before this Court to determine-whether or not'theke was '’
probabiy cauée? Co B ‘ :
Yes.

When was that hearing held?

That was. earlier in 2010. I believe it was May or June

June the 10%™, dges that sound

(No response)).

Tell us what time the preliminary hearing wés suﬁposed
to begin.

I think we were called to appear maybe mid day, maybe

“right after lunch and there was some other proceeding

.

going on in an unrelated case, so it was quite a way.

. Where was McClary and the other Defendants sitting from

mid day .until the time of the preliminafy hearing?
They were over in this area.

All sitting together?

. THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
(803) 436-2153, :




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
i8

19

20

21

22
23
24

25

>

(@) N )

>

- @ Zrooo B0

2 0 :P'IO

HEARING ' 569

I believe they weére, yeah.

And the preliminary hearing took place around four pm?
That sounds right, yeah.

That was before one.of our local Magistrates?

That’s correct. |

After that hearing, was there a meeting in.the grand
jury room of the lawyers and the Defendaﬁts?
Yeah,‘there was, they had all the Defendants staged up
in the room up  here and there was obviously léw
enforcement there and then I think I was there, you

. . “,\' . ° .
were there sir, and Mr. Fender who represented one. of

" the other Defendants was also there.

Who was that?

Legrand-Fender.

Cafrowéy? The public defender?

I'm sorry. I know Someoné named Legrand Fender.

Is that him right there?

. Mr. Carraway, of course, yes.

Yes, okay. He was in, the.lawyers were present?
Yes.

Was Mr. McClary present with you in this meeting? o

Yeah, and McClary and I were standing in the far corner

'

of the room, standing up, talking about his case.
Okay and at one point in‘time did we sit around the

table together?
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Yes, you came over and ésked us to sit at the table ...
Let me ask this, was Mr. Bowen preéenf?

Yes;. |

And was Ronald.Mack present? Mr. Carraway’s priéoner?
Uﬁ, client?

Yes.

And'you and your client?

Yes.

So there was three lawyers and three'parties in this-

case? -

Right.

Tell QS'what.happened.

Well, you épproached me -and asked if you éQﬁld ask my
client a -question. ‘Naturélly, I wantéd‘tb know what
the question was, because ofténﬁin.caseé co,Defgﬁdaﬁts

may. have conflicting interests aﬁd;ydu told melypu just

:wanted to ask one simple question. Now, as I recall,

Mr.--Bowen'‘had- .not nadé»aﬂy stateméntS'in the_case;

especially any .that incriminated.my client, so we sat

.at the table and you asked him,'ydu asked Mr. McClary,

I was right next to him, ready to stop‘you if you went

past what you told me you were goiﬁg to do, and you
asked him a simple question. You asked him. to. look
across the table at Mr. Bowen and said, is this the guy

they call Callie? And my client said, Mr. McClary said

583
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 HEARING . 571
no, that’s not him. Callie’s different; he's tall,
taller, much taller. He’s got some piercings and, in

his face I think he said and he’s got an Afro hairstyle
and Mr. Bowen didn’t have any of thoée. - 0f course,
Bowen was sitting down, so I couldn’t tell how tall he
was, but I lookea across and he didn’t have an Afro énd
he didn’t have any earrings or nose rings or whatever

other piercings one might have. He didn’t -have any.

.Anything else happen?

Excuse me?

- Did anything else happen?

Um

- Let me ask you this, were you surprised that that

developed?w

I'm ﬁofg'i’wouldn’t say; I wouldﬁ’t call it surprised
and }Ifll jtéil yéﬁ why . I'm 'éé;inga-that; B was
relatively nQW‘in3the casé,-énd after a while you don’t

get éﬁ:@rised~byla‘lot of thinés.in ﬁhese cases, but I

was a'little‘puZZled,that, you know, that he said that,

bﬁt the way he-reaéted-and the waY'he said it, I mean,

I was.pretty much convinced that he didn’t believe that

" that was the guy...

Was he asked to sign a written statemenf'COnfirming

- that later?

Yeah, you had talked to me right after that. I said

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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well, if you prepare one, 1’1l present it to him. You
did that and emailed it to me and we came back to couft
some time after that, it wasn’t too long for a bond
hearing and at that point, on that occasion, I had the
statement with me and asked him if he would sign it, if
he wanted to sign it and he said he did ﬂot want to
sign it.

Okay, now let me back up to that meetingql And I take
you back to June the 10" and ask you if you recognize
what has been marked for identification as Defendant’s
exhibit nuﬁber 1?2

I believe I have this particular statement in my file
and it was prévided as a result of the discovery métion
that‘Ivserved on the, oh no, I’'m sorry. I’m mistaken.
This is a statement that I actually notarized.

Whose sta£ement is-it?

RQnald 'Mack’s. " Yeah, :there’s my éignafureu and mny
printed name below it in my handwriting. |

On what day?

Weli it’s

If you look above your signature, what date‘did you
notarize it?

Actually it’s not dated. It says June 2009, but the
actual day is left blank.

Let me, okay. Okay, now do you recall ~that this was

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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HEARING ' 573

the same day that we were back in the room with your
client on the 10 when this was signed?

A: Yeah, that statement you had that already prepared, and
the only reason I signed it is just to notarize Mr.
Mack’s signature, because I'm a Notary and I was, and

you asked me toc notarize it.

Q: Okay.

A: So I observed him sigﬁ it and ...

Q: Did you observe him put anlinitial on each page?

A: feah and ‘I

Q: And then

A: I saw him dnitial the'pages.

Q: Did he and Mr. Carraway get a copy of this statement on
the same time we signed it? |

Az I think, I can’t really remember that.

Q: 'Okay, Your Honor we would now offer this statement.

Ms. Barr: Judge, would object same grounds. It’s 'still

hearsay. 7

The Court: Counsel approach. Mr. Jenkinson I notice in the
statement that you are‘offering into evidence and the State
has objected to on page twelve, Mr. Mack said that you
received a warrant from Florence county charging with assault
and battery and intent to kill. KelinB. . and Tawanda
Allen shot the victim James Allen. That they drove from

Maryland to Florence in January 2009 to an apartment on West

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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-Palmetto Street and found him and killed him; found him and

shot him, but didn’t kill him. I just want to be certain
that you have considered it and you are aware that his also
implicates your client in another shooting in South Carolina,

specifically Florence county.

Mr. Jenkinson: I didn’t recall that, but at the time we did

put both statements together.

The Court: Well this is an exhibit that'you’ve offered into
evidence and the State has.objected to.

Mr. Jenkinson: Wéll, I will withdraw at this time.

The Court: If you’rée going to withdrawrit, then you need ﬁ5
withdraw it in the presence of the jury.

Mr. Jenkinson: Can I consult with my partner for just one
second? , |

The Court: Alright. What’s your position Ms. Barr? Mr.
Jenkinson do you wish to withdraw your request

Mr. Jenkinson: Yes si;;

The Court: A;.. your exhibit. The State’s‘position?
Mr.~ Jenkinson: Yes sir.

Ms. Barr: Judge I don’t have any objection to that.

The Court: Alright bring the jury back.

(Jury enters courtroom)
. J

Mr. Jenkinson: What number is that Your Honor?
The Court: Page twelve.

Mr. Jenkinson: I mean what number?

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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The Court: The exhibit number is Defense exhibit number .
Court Reporter: One.' It’s one.
The Court: . Mr. Jenkinson?
Mr. Jenkinson: We withdraw that exhibit.
The Court: Alright, ladies and gentlemen of the jury Mr.
Jénkinson has elected to withdr;w his request to have the
statement of Ronald Mack, dated June 2009 at this time. You
ﬁay proceed. {

Q: Now, that’s all' the questions that we have at this

time.

CROSS EXAMINATION OF PALMER BY MS. BARR:

Q: Good afternoon Mr. Palmer. - ' .

A: Good afterncon. .

Q: I imagine you probably don’t like being on that hot
seat.

-~

Mr. Jenkinson:- Wait a minute, I'm sorry Your Honor. I do
have one more question to ask him.
The Court: Yes sir?:

CONTINUE EXAMINATION BY MR. JENKINSON:

Q: I’'m going to show you what has- been >marked as
Defendant’s exhibit number 2 andAask you if that is a
statement that was prepared of the convérsation with
Mr. McClary back in the grand jury room that you

described to us?

A: This is the statement, yes.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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HEARING . 576

Aﬁd did you find it accurate and a true‘repres§ntation
of what took place in the grand jury room?

Prefty much, yes.

And did you have any problems abogt having it signed by
your client based on the wording? |

I had no problems Fresenting it to him to see if he
wanted té sign it.

That an accurate of what took place thoughé

I believe it is, yes.

We move as Defense exhibit number 2.

Ms. Barr: Your Honor, we would object under Rule 613, being

Mr. McClafy«has admitted the main statement and_theréfore

astringent evidence of that statement is not admissible.

The Court: Objection sustained.

Mr. Jenkinson: Answer any questions they.have.

CROSS EXAMINATION OF MR. PALMER BY MS. BARR:

Q:

-

Mr. Palmer, you testified earlier that you were
relatively new to the case back in June of 20092

That’s right.

Alright and if Mr. McClary was .arrested in the middle

of May of.2009, the. case. would have been about a month

- o0ld?

Right.
Alright and in June of 2009, when you appeared at the

preliminary hearing, of course you had not been, at

3
)
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HEARING _ . 577

that time, seen all of the evidence in connection with
the case?

That’s correct.

You had not reviewed any pictures, any incident
reports?

Right;

Any statements?

Right.

And you knew, gquite frankly, very 1little about the
facts of the case; at that time. Would that be fair?
Yeah, other than what McClary had related to me.
Alright, now when you were at that preliminary hgaring,
all of the lawyers aﬁd all of ’the defendants were
seated at that fable over there? |
That’é right.

Close, fair to-say that you all were kind Qf‘close and
huddled together'because of'limited‘space?

We were.

Okay and following that preliminary hearing, you ali
went into a room in the back in the courthouse?

Right, that’s correct.

~And of course, all of the defendants and all of the

lawyers were back there too right?
That’s right.

And Mr. McClary certainly did not wvolunteer to you or

- THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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HEARING 578
to Mr. Jenkinson any identifying or identification
information about Mr. Bowen did he? He didn’t
volunteer that on his own did he?

No, we were in the corner discﬁssing his caSe;

Right and Mr. Jenkinson is the one who actually came toO

you and asked permission to talk to your client, right?"

Right and then he invited us-to be seated at the table
with the other defendants and the other counsel.

And at that time certainly, sir, tﬂere was nothing
improper about -Mr. "Jenkinson asking youf ~client a
Guestion with your permissioﬁ, right?

Right.

Now, the entire .time that Mr. Jenkinson was' talking.

with you and talking with your client, Mr-. . Bowen was

just a few feet awéy from Mr. McClary wasn’t he?

"He was ‘across e table from him.

About as short a distance as you and I are now?
Well I think it was-closer fhan‘that. It was
Maybe about right here? . | |

tablés maybe.three feet wide. -

Okay,'and the entire time that Mr. Jenkiﬁson was éSking

“you a question, asking your lawyer question, Mr. Bowen

was staring your client down wasn’t he?
He was looking at him yes.

Alright now, Mr. Jenkinson ésked you, curiously, at
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HEARING 579

some point in time he prepared a statement for your
client to sign. |

Right.

You remember him asking you that?

Yes.

And he bresented that type written statement tc you?
He first emailed it to me.

Ogéy, alright and you said that you had no problem
presenting it to ybur client and let your client make

the decision as to whether or not he wanted to sign it?

Yes, that’s correct.

Alright and you testified that “you ppesented the

‘statement prepared by Mr. Jenkinson to your client, Mr.

McClary right?

ACtué;ly,i‘did“thét Sn two different occasions.
Alright and. you testify that .he did not want to sign
it, right?

That’s right.

And you were, at that time, kind of confused as to‘why

he wouldn’/t want to-sign 'it?

I wouldn’t call it confused. I, you know, I, it was

the kind of thing that, you know, I presented it to him
and I said you don’t have to sign this.
Yeah.

Nobody can force you to sign it. It has to be your'
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HEARING 580

~voluntary act and I'm just going to leave it up to you.

You’ ve already made the statement, the written
statement just memorializes what you said. If you want
to sign it, fine,. you know, that’s fine with me too.
What did he say wheniyou presented it to him to sign?
He said I'm not going to sign it.

Why?

He said because it’s not the truth.

What else? He saidlhe’s.kiné of scared of that gquy

didn’t he?

Well he didn’t say at the first time when I came back

from the bond hearing.

Okay. E : o ;}
He just said he didn’t want to sign it.

Said it wasn’t the truth?

Right he saiarit wasn’t the truth and the other time I
breseﬁted it to him was aétually in the jail.

Yeé sir.

I had gone to seé him, not for that Speéific purpoée,

but when I went to see him and meet with him, about his

* case, I had the statement with me.

Okay.

And said, you know, here’s this statement. Have you
decided to change your mind about signing it? And he

said no, I don’t want to sign it.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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Alright.
And he never did sign it. A
And during that second time \thaf he presented the

statement was when he told you I'm scared of that guy.‘

r
"Right.

Bnd when he said I'm scared of that guy, he was talking
about KelinB.

Well he didn’t say that name.

Well that’s who you all-were talking about right? In

terms of that not being the one that was with me that

" night, you all were talking about' KelinB. right?

Yeah, that .was the subject in the statementﬁ he just

didn’t say the exact name.

- Now, as any good defense attorney. may be,‘which you

clearly are.
Thahk you.

Absolutely, you deserve it. You want to negotiate, try

to negotiate the best possible deal for your client,

right?i

That’s right.

And by the time Antonio McClary.piéd guiity, of course,
you had seén the evidence in thq case, fight?

That’s right.

You reviewed the statements?

Right. o

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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The incident reports?
Right.

The SLED reports?
Right.

Photogfaphs?‘
Correct.

And -you basically, as part of your representation of

_him, wanted to try to get him as little time as you.

could possibly get.

That'’s.correct.

Now you have had, during the course of your career, to
actually write out. formal plea agreements with clients
Oh'yeah.

with clients and with the State or with the

~ Prosecutor?

Sure, yes.

And in those plea agreements,.ybu spell out your client

"is going to -do this for the State and in return for

that the.State is going.fg do is for your client,
right?‘

Corfect.

There was no such agreement in this case, was there?
No. |

And Mr. McClary was not made a condition of his plea

" THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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that he testify for the State?

No.

Alright and you certainly, having revieﬁed all of the
evidence in the case, you didn’t have any reason to

believe that he was a shooter?

" There was no evidence he even had a weapon.

No evidence that he even had a-weapon?
No and there were some other factors that I think were

persuasive in getting the plea agreement that he got.

You viewed him as less responsible then some of the

-other co defendants, is that fair to say?

Yeah, he - was among the youngest and there was no

" evidence he ever had a weapon. It was, you know, not

really certain whether or not he even entered the

~ dwelling. Now ultimately he admitted to entering the

, \ .
dwelling, but those were some facts. that we talked

about.

And he admitted to eﬁtering the dwelling duriﬁg the
course of his plea when he put his hand on the Bible
back in:Ochbei? |

That’s correct. . ‘ -

And you stood right next to him when you entered that
plea? '

That’s right.

Mr. Palmer, thank you so much for helping us.

THIRD JUDICIAIL CIRCUIT
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The Court: Mr. Jenkinson?

Mr.

Jenkinson: Yes sir.

RE DIRECT EXAMINATION OF PALMER BY JENKINSON:

Q:

In Mr.’McClary’s plea, did you learn‘for the first time
ffom the words of his own mouth, he did go inside and
participate in this crime-?

Well, if I can.just comment on that, the answer is yes,
but to explain that answer, you know, I’ve learned ove?
the years thgt it’s importanf when you’re dealing with
a criminal defendant whether oan§t to plea‘guilty. I
always emphasis a couplé of tﬁings. Number one is, I

never push anybody to plead guilty. I might make a

recommendation, but:I do stress the importance of if

you decide to plea guilty, it’s fundamental that you

realize that you should be prepared to admit that you
did what you’re pleading guilty to. I think we’ve all
been there, the client decides to take a deal and then

gets up there and says well I didn’t-really do it, I

'just ‘wanted the deal. Of course the plea won’t be

accepted. So, in that sense I knéw-he was going to
admit what he was charged with or‘what he had agreed to
plea to, however, having said that, there were some-
facts that éame out in his testimony, when he was
p;eading, he hadn7t told me. Specifically,' I'm

réferring to the fact that he admitted entéring the

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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dwelling, but he went on to say that he had disguised

his face with some type of mask. I believe he said it

was a tee shirt. He had covered his face so he
wouldn’t be recognized. I wasn’t aware of that fact
and I don’t think it was in any of the statements, so

in that sense, yeah, he did say some things that T

- wasn’t expecting.

Did you hear him say for the first time that he went in
the house and I saw him, meaning Kenyan Dorsey, sitfing
in théfchair and I pointed right_at him. In‘other
words, he identified him for the shootér?

Yes.

First time you learned that too.

I think that’s the first time I heard him say that.
Now, there wére some information in the case that maybe
there was some allegations by someone else.  Witnesses

or co defendants' that that’s what happened. That set

,of facts, in and. of itself wasn’t a surprise to me,

because it had been alleged by someone else. But yeah,

he said at for the first time at the guilty plea

'proceedings.

He never admitted holding a shotgun and being the
shooter of the shotgun?
No. He never admitted that.

Are you aware and do you advise their clients under the

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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- 1 new act that passed in June which would had been before
_ Q;f > this plea that he’s eligible for a sentence reduction

3 if he cooperates with the State?

4 A: We did discuss that, yes.

< | Qi You did discuss at with him?

6 A: Yes. ‘

7 Q: And that is a possibility; you may file that motion for

g him?

9 A: It’s possible, yes.

10 Q: Which would reduce his sentence even further for his
11 _ £estimony?

12 A: Yeah, i honestly don’t think it’s likely that he would
13 get-that under -the circumstances, but it is\somethihg
14 that’s available.

15 Q: You didn’t think he was going to get twelve years

16 : . eifher, did you?

17 A: Well, I knew he was, ‘I knew that would be the
| lé : récommendation after I had negotiated the plea with the

i9 Solicitor/? |

20 Q: ‘)When you started the negotiations you had no idea it

21 would be reduéed down to twelve years, did you?

22% A: Thé ériginal plea offer entailed a higher sentence.

93 Q: No further question.

24 The Court: Anything further?

25' Ms. Barr: Not from the State Judge.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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The Court: Thank ydu sir.
Mr. Palmér: Thank you Your Honor.
The Court: Next witness. Next witness.
Ms. Shuler: The defense calls Kelvin Michael Bowen, ITI.
~WITNESS IS SWORN IN-
DIRECT EXAMINATION OF MR. BOWEN BY SHULER:
Q:' Good afternoon. Can you tell everybody in the
coﬁrtroom your name?
A: My name is Kelvin Michael Bowen, III.
Q: I'm going.tO’aék,you tbvspeag up real loud into-the

microphone, so put it up closer to your mouth.

Q: What is the truth?

A: Okay.
Q: What do people call you? Do you have a nickname?
A: Yes.
Q: What’s that nickname? >
A: KB.
Q: Is it okdy if I call you KB? ,
'A: Yes. \
Q: ‘Did you éome down here and put your hand on the Bible?
A: Yes ma’am.
Q: Did you sweér'to tell the truth?
A: Yes ma’am. |
V'Q: Do you know what the truth is?
A: Yes.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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Are you a good,student?

‘Yes.,

- ‘HEARING S - 588
Thentfuth is being honest and not telling a lie.
Do you know what a lie is? )
Yes:

What’s a lie?

A lie is when you .dishonest and not telling the truth.

" Do you know why we’re in court here today?

- Yes.

Why are we here?

2
Because of my dad’s case.

" And are you here to -tell the truth today?

Yes. S

Are you in“school?

N
Yes.

What grade are you in?

"The eighth. o e e ~ N

iy

KB- what kind of thiﬁgs do you do for fun?

Sports.

‘What kind of sports?

Football and basketball. .

What position do you play?
o
Defensive lineman.

Is at in football?

Yes.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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You don’t play any other position?

No.

If you’re not playing sports, what kind of thipgs do
you do with your friends?

Play video éémes.

~

What kind of video games?

Sports.

I'm going to ask you about the weekend of April 3%, 4th

J

. Okay.

-

Do you remember that weekend?

- Yes.

Why do you remember‘thaﬁ'weékend?
Because the 4th was a,Satﬁfday and it was my cousin,.

Denay birdayf

Who’s your cousin Denay? ..

My cousin Denay is my mom’s cousin and is my cousin too

and she lives in Texas.
What’s Denay’s last name?
Holmes.

Where does she live in .Texas?

. In Austin.

And you said it was her birthday?
Yes. ~ i S

Did you talk to Denéy at day? °

|

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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 HEARING 590

Yes.
When did you talk to her?
Around eight thirty, nine o’clock.

Did anybody else talk to her at day too?

Yes.

Who talked to Denay?

My mom and my dad. Well we all did, we talked from a
speaker phone. -

Why did y’all call her?

Because it was her birthday.»

Did you call to wish her-a~happy birthday?.

Yes.

Did y’all sing happy birthdayito'her on the phone?

Yes.

When’s your birthday?

April 18.

Did your mom and dad give you something the weekend of
April 3¥, 4 .and 5 of 20097

Yes. |

Do you remember what they gave you?

Yes.

Whaﬁ did tﬁey give you?

They gave me an electronic basketball court.

What does at look like?

It’s one back board with two rims on it and it’s two

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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nets on e side and a net at e bottom, so when you shoot

it and it goes in, it comes back out to you so you can

shoot it again.

Is at a big piece of equipment?

Yes.

Where is at?

In my room.

Did you get at present early?

Yes.

Do you know‘why you got it early?

Né, not really.

But do you remember getting it early?

Yes.

Did you and your dad put at together?

Yes.
What day did ya’ll put at together?
Saﬁurday.'

Do you remember what date at was?

The 4.

When did you start putting it together'>

When my dad got home around two o " clock after
finished cleaning up.

Where'was your mom at at time?

At e hair Aresser.

Were your dad and you at home alone?

we

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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Yes. '
Did ya’ll play at game after you put- it together?
Yes.
Did it take,youva long time té put it together?
Yes.
About how' long did it take you to put it together?
About an hour because we kept having to find 1little
rleces. |

Did it have a lot of nuts and bolts?

Yes.

How long did ya’ll play it after you got done putting’

it- together?

Yes.

How long did ya’ll play it?A
’Abdup‘anlhour or so.
Did ya’ll do anything after you played your electronic

~basketball game?

Yes.
What did ya’ll do?
We watched t.V.

How long did ya’ll watch t.v.?

We watched t.v. until we sung héppy birthday to my

cousin.
Did you do anything after you sang happy birthday to

your cousin?

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT »
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Yes.

What did you do?

Me and my dad played video games.

How long did you play video games?

Until I fell asleep. -

What time did you fall asleep?

I .don’t remember, but I ink it‘was around two o’clock.
Do youvnormally stay up late on the weekend and play
vidéo games with your dad? J

?es.

Was your dad with you all day{long on Saturday?
Yes.

Whenever you went to bed wés he there?

I think so;

Whenever you woke up e;next‘day, was he thére?

Yés.

On Sunday he was thefe?. 0

Yes;

What.did va'll do_on Sunday?

My dad got me and my mom.up and he cooked.breakfaét.
What did he cook for you all?

He made waffles, bacon and eggs.

Beg the Court’s indulgence. Did you speak to anyone

.about your testifying today?

My dad’s lawyers.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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HEARING 594
Did you speak to your mom?
Yes.{
And you spoke to me?
Yes.
Did I tell you what to say?:
No.
Did your mama tell yoﬁ what to say?
No.
Are you telling the truth today?
Yes. \
Anything other than the truth?
No.
And nobody told you what to say today did they?
No ma’am. ‘ |
If you will ask any, answer any questions that, did you
discuss your 'téstifyiné today with your mom back
whenever your dad was arrestéd?
Can yéu‘repeat the question?
Did you talk to your mama about your testifying today

whenever your dad was arrestéd back in May of 20097

Yes.

Did she tell you what to say then?
No.
If you will, ask, answer any questions that Ms. Barr

may pose to you.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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CROSS EXAMINATION OF BOWEN BY BARR:

Q:

N

» O

©

Z

>
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Young man, I’ve just got a couple of questions, is it
okay if I call you KB as well?

Yes.

Okay, now you go to School in Prince George County?
Yes.

So you’ re missing school this week?

Yes.

Okay, you and your mom, how did ya’ll get down here to
South Carélina tﬁis week. Yé’ll drove?

Yes.

it tobk you what about seven hours to get down here?

No, -eight.

Eight hours to come down to Kingstree?.

Yes.

Okay ﬁow you said youf cousin Denay, her bi;thday is
when?

April 4.

Okay. KB you know Téwanda‘Allen don’t you? You’ve
seen her before? |

No.

She never brought her kids by your house?

No. |

Are you sure? ‘ p

Yes.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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She’s never picked:you up?

No.

Now youf moﬁ and your dad didn’t live together during
this time did.théy?

Yes.

How long had they been married?

I'm thirteen so I’m guessing thirteen years.
They héd separated at some point in 2008?
No. |

Had they ever separated?

No. /

Your dad had a girlfrieﬁd?

Not that I know of.

Are you tesﬁifying that your dad speﬁt every night the

thirteen years that he lived with your mom, married to '

your mom ..

Shuler: Objection Your Honor. Your Honof, may we
approach?

Court: ' I guess you want an answer as well ﬁuh? Oh
you don’t want an answer?

Shuler: I would liké an answer. May I approach Your
Honor?

Court: Sure.

Céurt: ~State the question Ms. Barr.

Yes sir. KB, are you testifying that your dad and your

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT ‘
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-mom spent every night together that they were married,

are you saying that?

A Yes.

Q: Evefy single night they were married they were living,
they were, they had spent the night at her house?
That’s what you’re telling us?

A: My dadlstayed with us.

Okay that’s all I have Your Honor. Well I'm sorry
Judge. A quick questioﬁ. Your dad is from California?

A: Yes. '

Q: They call him Callié‘sometimes?

A: No.

Q: Airight, that’s éll I have.

Ms.‘Shuier:, I have no further quesﬁions.

e Court: Step down. Next witness.

Ms.

Shuler:  The defense calls Tiffany Bowen.

-WITNESS IS SWORN IN-

DIRECT EXAMINATION OF TIFFANY BOWEN BY SHULER:

Q:

A:

Tiffany will you state your: full name for the court?
Tiffany Monique Bowen.

I'm going to ask'you to speak up real loud into the
miciophone.

Tiffany Moniqﬁe Bowen.

Thank you Tiffany. HOQ old are you?

Thirty two.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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‘Do you work?

Yest.

Where do you Qork?

At Keiser which is a health insurance company. I’'m a
lead member service representative which means when
people call in about their insurance I verify benefits,
whether or-not they have prescription coverage, how
much it>cost to go to the doctor, how much it is for
surgery, things of that nature. ‘
How long have you been there?

Four and é half months. |

Prior to wérking at Keiser where did you wbrk?

I -worked at a company called Atcom Worldwide, thch is
an international company.

How long were you there?

Two and a half years. : - ~

Why did you leave that company?:

* ~For better benefits and better pay.

Are you married?
Yes.

To whom are you married?

-Kelyin Michael Bowen, Jr.

Is he here today?
Yes ma’am.

Is he the defendant in this case?

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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Yes ma’ am.

How long have you been married to Kelvin? .

For thirteen years.

Do you guys have any children?

Yes ma’am.

How.MEny children do you have?

One.

What’s his name?

Kelvin Michael Bowen, Jr., I mean Kelvin Michael Bowen,
IIT.

Was he the young man that testified  prior "to 'you

testifying now?

_Yes.

What do you guys call Kelvin Michael'ﬁowen, ITT?

KB. K |

When ié KB's birthday?

April 15.

Do you and your husband have a good relationshié?

We use to.

What happened in your marriage éround-about April or
May of 20097 B
I noticed that he started putting ‘passwords on his
phone, so I couldn’t look ;t it if I wénted to go to
his phone to play a game I couldnft go on to it. He

started having conversations, if I walked into the room

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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he would walk out of the room, things of fhat nature.
Did that make you think that he was seeing ébmebody
else?’
Yés.
Did you find out if he was seeihg somebody else?
Yes. |

Who was that person?

Tawanda Mack Allen.

How did that.make you feel?\

T was hurt and betrayed. - I felt betrayed.’

Did ya’ll ever argue about Tawanda?

Yes ma’am. |

Did your husband have a number of cell phones?
My:husband had two cell phones. |

Why did hé have two cell pﬁones?

Well the first cgli phone he had was a t-mobile Samsung

phone, - which is a contract phone that hé does have a

'bill on, that he did have a bill on. He just didn’t

pay(the bill'on‘it, so then he didn’t have a phone for
a period of time. And then in May he purchased a Razor
Booéf Mobile cell phone.

I'm going to ask you about the weékend of April 3%, 4%

and 5% of 2009. What happened that weekend?

"Well, he just got back from California.

When you say he, who is he?

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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My husband, Kelvin, Jr. Okay, so he just got back from
California. He left March 22™ to go to his cousin’s
birthday party. She was having it in Califernia. He
arrived back April 1°. When I came home from work, he
was there. We talked, he showed me pictures, I
unpacked, I cooked dihner and that’s our. routine
because he was unemployed at the time. He had reeenfly
left Wal-Mart. éo when I go to work he stays‘at home. -
He he}ps my son with his homework so when I come home
he has meat leid out for me. So, I cook. That’s just
our roﬁtine.“

On Friday, April 3%, did anything significant happen at

.your house or was it just a regular day? -

Just a regular day.

What about Saturday, April 4? »Whaf did you do that
day? »

I got up and went to my hairdresser appointment. I
have a regular appointment‘at ten a.m. every Saturday;
Whenever you left the heuse, was Kelﬁin and YOur son at
home?

Yes ma’am.

Whenever, whet time did you get back from your hair
appointmenﬁ? |

It was about two thirty in the afternoon. . v

Whenever you came back from your hair appointment, what

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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did you discover had happened in your house?
That he had given my son his basketball court eérly.

Did y’all discuss giving that to him early?

No ma’am.

Why did your husband give that to him early?
Because he wanted to play with it.
Did ya’ll do anyﬁhing later on that afterndon as a

family?

We just watched t.v. I cooked dinner while fhey were
finishiﬁg watching t.v. = About eight thirty or nine
A.thirty at night. I cailed my cousin Denay aqd wished
"her a haépy birthday. I wés”originally supposed to g§~
.to Texas. for her birthday party, buf I was sick, -so i .

didn’t go.

What did that conversation between you and Denay
entail?

We called her, I called her on my phone; on speaker e

When you say we, I want you to tell everybody’s. name.

Me, my son and my husband called her on speaker phone

andeé saﬁg happy birthday to her before she left to go

.to the party.

What happened Mother’s Day weekend of 2009 if you
recall?
That Friday me and him got into an argument. Me and

Kelvin, Jr. got into an argument regarding Tawanda. He

PTHIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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HEARING | 603
left that Friday and he, I talked to him again Mother’s
Day, which was that Sunday and he told me he would be
home and I spent the majority of the day at the
cemetery becanse at was the first year since my mom had

passed that I had to have a Mother s Day without her.

Did he come back home on Sunday?

Yes ma’am. He came back late that night.

Do you recall what occurred the following weekend?

The following weekend, again 'we argued about Tawanda.

I told him that, you know, you got a choice to make.
I* can’t keep going back and forth with letting you

know, keep- seeing her :and she’s calling you, I can’t

- deal with-that. So he left that night. He, told me

don’ t WOrry ‘about it, he was going to end- the

“

relationship with her and that we were going to ‘go

ahead and go to marriage counseling.

When was the next tlme that you talked to your ‘husband?
Well that would have been Sunday night when he called
back - to -say that he was on hls way home and that
everything was going to be okay. .Well then after that,
I‘didn’t talk to him. :I stayed up late fot'him. He

never returned home and the next time I heard from him

. was Tuesday morning.

What did you find out whenever he had called you that

Tuesday morning?

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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HEARING . . 604

He called me and told me that he had been arrested.
What was your response?

Arrested for what?

And did he tell you, did you find out what he had been

arrested for?
)

Yes, he had told me that he was érrésted for murder.

Whenever he told you that, what did you say?

Wnen? When did this take place? Who did you murder? .

What is thisé How could you have done this? You knowL

when.

Did he tell you'when this allegedlylﬁappened?

Yes he said this happened either'that Saturday April 4

inté early Séturday, I mean Sunday morning.

Whenever he told you thé dates, what did you say?

I said you couldn<t have been there»beqause you had

beep home all that weekend.

What type‘of haircut does your. husband ﬂaVe?

I call it a cezar. He keeQS'it low cut.
' ‘ N

Does he have an,Afro haircut?

No, he’s never had an Afro haircut. He doesn’t like

‘hair.

Have you ever seen him with braids?
No ma’am.
Have you ever heard anybody call him the name Callie?

No ma’am.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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Q: ‘You said a few moments ago that the Samsung phone was
furned off.
. A: Correct.
Q: Do you remember what day that was turned off?
A: The billing cycle would have been April 9, so we were

J

to pay the bill by April 19, but we didn’t.

Q: I“m going shéw you.'what‘ Has been marked' as, for
identifications purposes as Defendant’s exhibit.é and
I ask you do you recognize that photograph?

A Yes ma’am.

‘Ms. Shuler: Your Honor, at is time I would ~move ‘this
. photograph into evidence.

Ms. Barr: Judge we would object on the grounds of ;elevénce.

The Court: Do yoﬁ ha?e some foundation of‘relevanCe‘you want

to state before you question the Witness?

Ms. Shuler: Yes sir Your Honor.

0: I asked you a.few moments ago, what type of hair cut
YOuf husbaﬁd has and what did -you tell me? |

A: It’s a low cut cezar.

Ms. Shuler: BAnd Your anor, I would now move this photograph'

into evidence. - ” ’ o

(Defendant’s Exhibit Number Six was admitted)

Q:  I'm going tb show you this, what has been marked as
| Défendant’s ekhibit, for identification purposes as

Defendant’s exhibit number 6.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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HEARING T 606

A: Okay.

Q: Is that a éhotograph of your husband?

A: Yes ma’ am.

Q: When. was at photograph taken?

A: This was taken in March when he went béck té California
to go to his éousin’s birthday party.

Q: March of what year?

A:  '09.

Q: Is that an accurate representation of what your husband
looked like in March of 200972

A: Yes ma’am.

Ms. Shuler: Your Honor, I would move at is time to have at -

photograph placed into evidence.

The Court: What says the'State?

Ms. Barr: Without.objectiOh Judge.

The Court: Submitted without objéction;

Ms. Shuler: Thank you.lh

Q: Tiffany I'm going to ask you to step down if‘you don’t

mind, or can you see the t.v. from where you are?

A: Yes ma’am.

Q: Is that é photograph of your husband?

A: Yes ma’am.

Q: Is that aniéccurate reéresentation of what he loocked

like in March of 20092

Ac: Yes ma’am.

'THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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HEARING 607
Doces. he have an Afro haircut in that photograph?
No ma’am he does not. |
I'm gging to show you what’s been marked for-
identificatiénApurposes as defendants exhibit number 7.
I’m going to ask you if you recognize that photograph?
Yes ma’ am.
Is that a photograph of your husband?.
Yes ma’am.
When :was that photograph téken?
It was taken in 2008.
Is that an accurate representation of what your husband
looked like in April 20082 |
I can’t say that was April 2008, but it was 2QO8{
Is that an accurafe represéntation of what your husbahd

looked like in 20087

Ms. Shuler: Your Honor I would move to have this photograpﬁ

‘placed into evidence. .

Ms. Barr: Judge, that’s without objection.:

e Court: Okay.

Qi

A:

Tiff@ny do you recognize that photograph? .

Yes ma’am.

Is that an acéurate representation of what your husband
looked like in 20082

Yes ma‘’am.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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HEARING 608

Doesvyour husband have an Afro haircut in that picture?
No.

Does he have braids?

No ma’am.

I'm going to show vyou what’s been marked for
identification. purpoées only as- Defendant’s exhibit
numbér 8. Do you recognize that photograph?

Yes ma’amn. | ‘

Is that a photograph of your husbénd;

Yes ma’am. |

When was that photograph taken?

This was taken in the summer of ‘08.
. N

Ms. Shuler: At this time I would move-Defendant’s exhibit

number 8 into evidence.

Ms.

Barr: No objection Your Honor.

The Court: Without objection.

(Defendant’s Exhibit Number Eight was admitted)

Q:

I can’t, Your Honor, may I ...

The Court: You can give it to the jury.

Q:

give it to the jury?

The Court: And the jury will have it in the jury room, it’s

in evidence.

Q:

Tiffany, did your husband have a Afro haircut in that

picture?

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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HEARING . 609

No ma’ am.

Does he have braids in that picture?

No ma’am.

I'm going to show you Defendant’s exhibif number,
what’s been marked for identification purposes. only
Defendant’s exﬁibits 11 and 12. Do you recognizé those
photographs?

Yes ma’am.

When were those pictures taken?

These pictures were ~all taken March of 2009 in
California at his cousin’s birthday party.:

Is that an accurate representation of what your husband
iooked like in March of 20097

Yes.

;Ms. Shuler: At this time I would move.those photographs into

evidence as well.

Ms. Barr: Judge these are ﬁithout‘objection.

The Court: In without objection.

(Defendants Exhibit Numbers 11 and 12 were admitted)

Q:-

o

O MO

Tiffany, does your husband have an Afro haircut in any

of these pictures?

No ma’am, he does not.

Does hé have. braids?
No ma’am he does not.

Does he have facial hair in those pictures?

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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, HEARING ' 610
A: - Yes ma’am.
Q: Does he have é mustache in the other:pipture that I
’éhowed you? |
A: Yes ma’am. -
Q: I'm going to show you Defendapt’s( What’s been marked

for %dentification purposes as Defendant’s exhibits 9

and 10. I’ll ask, yQu\ if ~you recognize these
photographs? |

A: Yes ma’am.

Q: Wheﬁ were those pictures takéh?.

A:’ In the beginning of November. \

Qr Whiéh ones?. | .

A: The, number id and_ﬁpﬁber 9 was ﬁéken,in,the beginning
of November. |

Ms. Shuler: I move Defendant’sléxhibits é and.ld into

| evidence.

Ms. Barr: Let me see them please. No objection.

The Court:’ Without objection.

- (Defendant’s Exhibit Numbers nine and ten were admitted)’

- Qs Did - your hqsband have an .Afro haircut in ‘thesé
pictures? :
A: ‘ﬁo'ma’am. ; - \ \
Q: Does'he have braids? )
'A:‘ No.
- Q: Does hewhave facial hair?

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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HEARING 611

Yes.
Shuler: Beg the Court’s indulgence. ’
On Friday, did you receive a telephone call. from an

officer by the name of Justin Whack?

I received a phone call, but I can’t recall if his name

was Justin Whack.

Did you know who had called you? r

No ma’ém.

Did you know‘what agency they were wi?

I ink he said hé worked with the court, but I wasn’t
suré‘whoxhe was. Y

Had you ever spoken to this-personAbefore?

No ma’am.

What did you tell him whenever he called?-

He asked me my name, he asked me if he could ask me a

couple of questions, he,asked me tovverify~my,address.

' that f'étay at.. I gave him the address. He asked me

some questions-about the court caSé and I told him that

- I was more than willing -to- speak’ with him on Monday

when I arrived into Kingstree with my busband’é lawyer.
Eas he tried to speak to you ‘at any time since that
phone cal;?“ » N \

No ma}am.

Would you have discussed 'anything that. he had to

-discuss with you?

_THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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HEARING ‘ - 612
A:  Yes ma’am, in the presénce-of Mr. Jenkinson.
Q: Tiffany, if you had any idea, or any doubt in your mind
‘thét your husband was not with you.on Apfil 3“,44 and
5 of'éOO9, would you of come here today?
A: No ma’am.
Qs Would you have put your child{on the witness stand?
A; No ma’am.
'Q: Rre you telling the truth téday?
LA fhe God’s honest truth..
Q: Did yéu speak with anYone about your testimony on tHe
stand today?“
A: Yes ma’am.
Q:  Who’d you épeak with?
A: You(and'Mr. Jenkinson and my husband.
Q: Did anybody told y@u what to say?
A: No ma”am.
Q: Did I tell you what to say?
A No ma’am.
Q: Did Mr. Jenkiﬁson tell you what to say?
A:  No ma’am.
Q: I have no further‘questions; If yoﬁ'will, answer any"
questions that Ms. Barr may have for you.
The Court: Ms. Barr?

"Ms. Barr: Thank you Your Honor.

CROSS EXAMINATION OF MS. BCWEN BY MS. BARR:" /

THIRD JUDICIAL CLRCUIT-
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HEARING | 613’

Ms. Bowen let me ask you about some of those defense
exhibits 1f I may.

Okay.

I'm sorry, ma’am may I see those please? Right there.
Ma’am I'm going to hand you what’s been admitted as
State’s exhibit numbers 11 and 12. You said these
pictures were taken in March of 20097 |

i

Alright so that would have been like a ménth, as you’
understand'it now, -before the muf&er of %enyan Dofsey?
It would have been a week or so. fhe'pictﬁre was taken
March the 8th of 2009. |

And that’s Tawanda Allen in'tﬁat ﬁicfure’isn’t it?
Unfortunately it is.

Not you?

No.

So if this is.not.you in the picture, how do yoﬁ know
when it was taken?

Because those are tﬁe pictures that were taken.afﬁer
the birthday party. v

I thought I understood you to say when Ms. Shuler was

asking vyou questioﬁs that this was you and vyour

husband?
Ne ma’am, I never said that that was me with my

husband. She asked me if I,recégn;zeithg photo and I

THIRD JUDICIAIL CIRCUIT
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HEARING ' EGT
said yes. |
Well you said just now that’s  when he brought the
picture back, but you actually don’t know when it wés
taken, do you? |
The birthday party was March 28 2009.
I understand when the birthday party was, but you don’t
know when he took that picture with Tawanda Allen, do

you?

That’s from, the pictures that he brought back.

He took her to California?
I;don’t/kpow if he took her but she went.
Now, when did you find out that.ydurfhquand was having

an affair with Ms. Allen? e ,

I started to suspect in March, at the end of March, but

it wasn’t.;confirmed until I saw tﬁose pictures ~in
April.

Ana in addition?to your husband using”the Phone outside
your bresence.and doing some - other things like that, he

was also showing you signs that he was cheating on you

" before then?

No ma’am._t

No?

No.

Well wasn;t He staying out from the house ét night?

He would go out on weekends.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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HEARING ) 615
Yeah.

That doesn’t mean he’s cheating. He has friends he can-

go out to the club, he couid be anywhere.'

I understand that, but wasn’t he staying away from the
house?- Regardless of where he was, theré were times
that he was staying away frbm'your house during the
weekend( right?

Yes.

Contrary to what your son said, right?

Yes, he was staying, when you say staying out do you

mean going out and not coming back until 4 or 5 o’ clock
in’ ‘the morning or do you'mean staying 6ut the whole
night? :

Sfaying out the whole night. There were timeslwhen'he
wés doing thét because he' was éheéting on you?

Yes. | A

And  ma’am I'm gQing'td show- you, publish what’s been

- admitted aé'Staté’s exhibit number 67. Can you séev“

that from over’ there?

I can see it, but I can’t read it.

That’s a letter dated April the 13 of 2009, isn’t it?

Yes.
That’s a. letter addressed to your husband, KeinB.
right?-

Correct.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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HEARING 616

And the address that it’s give\n to is - -

Glen Burnie, Maryland, right?

Yes ma’am it 1is.

And you didn’t live at that address did you?

No ma’am. |

and have you reviewed this document?

No ma’am.

Okay, would if sufprise yqﬁ to know that thi; is a
letter congratulating him on géttihg a job? }
No it wouldn’t surprise me.- ‘ ) kR

And it wouldn’t surprise ypu,to_know at Tawanda- Allen

. was working at is company?

No.
Okay, wouldn’t surprise you to know that she would help
get her man get a job?

That’s not her man, but okay.

Well, I understand that, that’s fair encugh.

Shuler: Objection Your Honor, 1if, if,' I would

appreciate it if

l The Court: I heard you object. - What . did you not

appreciate?

\

I’'m sorry, nmy client’s wife.

The Court: Okay, thank you. Don’t . interrupt the

witness.

g ' THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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HEARING 617
Ms. Barr: Yes sir Judge. Mr. Bowen, I shouldn’t say her

man. She got Mr. Bowen a job, the defendant.

A: - Correct.

Q{' Now, you said that when Sergeant Whack from the
Sheriff’s Department called you last weék,'he askéd you
for your address?

A: Correct.

Q: And you wouldn’t give that information to him?

A: No, I did givé himkmy‘éddress.

Q: Where did you tell h%@ you lived?

A ac N - .

Q:) .Where is thét?' | |

A: Temple Hills, Maryland.

Q:  How long have .you lived at that address?’

A: Three or four years.

Q: Off and on have you always live tﬂere?

A: Né, I always lived there. |

Q: Now, when.you found out that your husband had been
afreétedffor murder, you came dan to visit hiﬁ'didnft
you?' AA

A Correct.

Q: .And you céme té see him at the jail, right over here,
right?

A:  The first time I visited him?

Q: Yeah.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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THEARING 618

No, the first time I visited him he was at Anne Arundel

County.

.Okay, no I mean down héreAin South Carolina.

Oh yes.

The first time you came down to visit him while he was
in our jail, this was May 30, 2b09, is that right? |
YesL |

Okay alright. And the Jail has pretty .strict
procedures in terms of signing in and.when yoﬁ go seé
an‘inmate, right?

Yeah. |

And you came down here‘énd you had to sign in when you
went to go see your_husband‘right?

Correct.

Alright and you signed a log dated May 30, 2009,

Tiffany Bowen.

shuler: Objection Your Honor .
Court: What’s your objection?
Shuler: I have not seen that document.

Barr: I’m not offering it into evidence at this time.
Court: The objection is overrﬁled.

This is youf name TiffanY»Bowen,‘tﬁis is your writing
righf?

Correct.

You came to see him May 30, 20097
’ /

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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HEARING : 619

Correct.
You identified yourself as the wife?
Correct.

And you said that the inmate you came to see was KelinB.

Correct.

You said you always lived at St. Clair Road in
Maryland, right?

Correcf.

But yet you put down,he're that you 1lived at‘_
-, Southeast in Washir{gton, DC?

No that’s my driver’s license address. .That’s my
father’s house; | -
Somebody took this down, they Qot that informafion from
you? |

I showed him'my Ariver’s license.

Now what ebout this «c¢ell phone number, telephone
numbef? Where’d they get ﬁhat from? . You gave them
that right? |

Which number are you referring to?

That particular. cell phone. You gave tﬁem that

information?.
Yes.

Now, during the time that your husband was creeping

around with Tawanda, he was lying to you?

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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Yes ma’am.

He’s a ;iar right?

You could say that.

There’s a - part bf him that .you did not know about in
April and May of 2009, right?

Yes.

Part of him that he kept hidden from you, right?

Yes ma’am..

Stuff, he did stuff that ﬂe didn’t want you to know
abéut? ‘

Correct.

Now, your husband, during this time, liked to lift

weights?

No ma’ am.

Never lifted weights? .

He has lifted weights but not at this time.

And sﬁmetimes he takes protein to help build muscle
right?

No ma’am I”ve never seen him take anything.

You’ve never seen him do that? Is that somethiné that

he did that you didn’t know about? Is that possible?

" It’s possible.

Now, did you and your husband ever argue about any of
the other activities that he did that you didn’t

approve of?’

HEARING 620
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HEARING 621
A: What other activities?
({TT‘. 1
L\ 5 Q: I’m sorry, where are the photos? I'm going to hand you
o 3 whét’s been admitted as State’s exhibit number 12. This
4' is a photograph with him and Tawanda, is that right?
. A: Correct.
5 B
. Q:. He’s got a tattoo on his arm?
; Az I guess so.
] Q: Alright State’s exhibit number 6, he has tattoos on his
arm? And in addition to having tattoos on his arm,
9 . , : ' . ;
Lo he’s got tattoos all over his body doesn’t he?
A: Yes.
1l$ -
' 1é' Ms. Shuler: Objection Your Honor. May we approach on is
13 matter? The basis of the objection is .relevance.
(:> o 14 The Court: VObjection is overruled.
15 Q: He’s got tattoos .all over his. body doesn’t he?
A: Yes ma’am.
1o ‘
19 Q: ~ You all never had an argument about kinds of tattoos he
has on'his body?
18 .
Lo A: No ma’am, because that’s his body.
26& Q: - He’s got tattoos with gang 'insignia on his body,
doesn’t he?
21 |
- Ms. Shuler: Objection Your Honor, relevance? And may we be
- heard on that outside the presence of the jury?
5 The Court: Ladies and gentlemen, I’11 have you go to the
4 N
jury room.
<~x 25
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HEARING ‘ . 622

(Jury exifs céurtroom)
Ms. Shuler: Last night at approximately nine o’clock, law
enforcement officers went to, particularly the
gentleman from Lake City went to Effingham jail,
approached our client and said, "“You’ve got to let'us
take pictures of the tattoos on your body.”'Solicitor
Barr has said, “We need those pictures and either you
let ﬁs take those pictures or we going to hold you down
on the ground, two officers are going to hold you down
and we going to take £ho§¢ p;cfures ourselveé. | He
said, “I Qant to speak to my.lawyer”! He attempted to
contact Mr.‘Jenkinson at nine o’clock last night to no
avail. They said, “You going to give them to us or we
going to pin you down”. And at that point in time, he
had—no‘choice, because if he didn’t, théy wére going to

rip off his clothes and take those pictures and hold

him down. Your Honor, first of ‘all, any sort of .

i

evidence as to the tattoos on his body is hearsay. It

is markings on his body, what those markings mean,

O

anything along those lines, 1is hearsay. It 1is

testimony on the nature and is now a court statement

made for court used for the truth of the matter
asserted. Secondly, this is a violation of the Rules
of Professional Conduct Rule 4.2.  The lawyer’s Rules

of Professional Conduct, the communication with a

; ’ THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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HEARING - 623
perscon represented by counsel. Solicitor Barr sent
this officer to get these pictures. She  knew he was

represented. She didn’t tell us fhat she was goinglfo
do thié, did not give us time to prepare for this and
here we are in the middle of trial, and she didn’t
obtain a court order. Pursuant to the State versus
Simmons, it’s a Court of Appeais case, 384 SC 145.
Protects an individual against the fourth amendment,
protects £hem against unreasonable searcheé and
seizures,'@hich is guaranteed by the'four:amendment.
‘She had the’opportunity to get that~information, she
-would have had to come to you fqr a court order.
First, establishing probable cause. Second there must
.be a clear indication that relevant materiai‘evidenqe
will be found. And, third, the_method used to secure
it is safe and reliable. Your Honor, there héé been

absolutely no testimony that would suggests thaﬁ Mr.

Bowen is in a gang. Nobody has ‘said he is in a gang.

- In fact, you excluded that testimony that was on the

tape from Mr. Mack. The evidence of him being in a

-

gang, is extremely prejudicial and any“...

The Court: There’s a lot of evidence that he’s in a gang.

The question is. whether. it’s relevant to the murder in
this case.

Shuler: Absolutely. There is no

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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The Court: Thank you for agreeing, bgt what’s your point?

Ms. Shuler: Right. The motive in this case has been
testified to by Antonio McClary, the motive is money.
There has been no way linking

The Court: What’s your point? You wanted the jury to go

out to tell me»something. You’ ve told me they’ve took-

his picture. What else.
Ms. Shuler: We would object to the piétures. We would

object to any showing

The Court: - But she hasn’t offered any pictﬁres.
Ms. Shuler: Your Honor.
'The Court: . You objected to -- the Questiéh,was you hage

a tattoo on you, it says gang on-your chest. or on your body'

and you objected.

Ms. Shuler: Your Honor, she has a number of pictures that

she - showed us earlier today that she intends on

producing and .

‘The Court: Alright I’m going to let you and Mr.

Jenkinson confer while we take. a break and then we’ll.

come back.’ _— ' : .

(There was a court*b;eak,ﬁaken)

The Court: © Alright, anything further?

Ms. Shuler: Yeé sir, YourAHonof. " 'The Solicitor gained
" this evidence through, its tainted. She-gained it through

4

" b
illegal activity. She had no court order. This was against
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fourth, fifth, sixth and fourteenth amendment rights.
Court: All right. .Thank you. What sayeth the State?
Barr: Judge, I haven’t, I didn’t offer the pictures: I

just asked the witness about the tattoos on her

husband.
Court: Alright.
Shuler: Your Honor, any sort of evidence that refers

to‘gang'related'materialAon his body, .although it may
be relevént, relevance, it’s not, probative value of
that does not outweigh the prejudicial value of that.
Court; ; Alright. |
Barr: Yoﬁr Honor, we had an @xpert, a person who was
qualifieg as-. an expert 4on yesterday - regarding gang
activit;, gang writings, gang signs, their code of
ethics, if you will and Judge we bélieve evidencé.that
the Defendant is a member of a gang 1is entirely]
appropriate Because it'sért of corféboraées‘one, we
believe a part of the motive and his parficipation in
the crime and number two it corroborates the testimony
of Ms. Harding who was qualified as an expert witness
in gang activifies4§nd gang writings.
Court: That corroborates his participation in what way?
Barr: To the extent that we have Ronald Mack who is an
admitted gang member testifying that he contaéted the

Defendant who agreed, with no questions asked, to come |
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dohn and bring him guns and help him kill somebody.
Judge, éuite frankly that’s just not sdmething the
average person bught to.do and so it’s important for
the jury.to ﬁnderstand the mentality of gang members so
they understahd why this Defendant became involved in

killing somebody that he didn’t even know..

The Court: I sustain the objection.
Ms. Shuler: Thank you, Your Honor.
The Court: Bring the jury.

(Jury enters:courtroom 5:27 p.m.)

The Court: The objection is sustained. Next question.

CONTINUATION OF CROSS EXAMINATION OF MS.. BOWEN BY MS. BARR: .

Q: Ma’am you testified about the photogréph thét{s
admitted as State’s twelve. The picture thaf he took
‘with Tawanda .and we' talked abqut ‘thaﬁ particular
photograph iou can seé a tatt06 on his'arm and you.know
‘about it because you havé seen it.

A: Cén I see the picture again. .There’s two tattoos on
his arms. |

Q: What’s that a tattoo of? .

A: My name.

0: Okayﬁv What about the other arm you talkéd about?

A: I éan’t see. I can only see a piece of it.

Q: I ‘mean, ‘you know it though, because you’ve seen him

obviously with no shirt on.
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A: Well, I haven’t see him in twenty months with‘no:shirt
on.

Q: You said something interesting. You said that the cell

phone was turned off April the 9%"?

A: Right.
Q: 20092
A: - Right.

Ms. Barr: That’s all the questions that I have. .
The Court: Anything furthex?

Ms. Bowen - Recross Examination by Ms. Shuler:

Q: Where did your husband keep his toothbrush?

| a: In my bathroom.
Q: Where did he keep his shoes?

. A: InAthe'closet.

The Court: This is improper redirect.
Ms. Shuler: I have no further quéstions; Your Honor.
The Court: You may step down. - Next witness.

Mr. Jenkinson: That is the defense case.

‘The Court: All right. Ladies and- gentlemen, you have heard

the defenses case. Any repiy by the Staﬁe?

Msl Barr: Yes, sir.

The Court: Call your witness.

Ms. Barr: Your Honor, can Mr. Jenkinson and I approach very

briefly?
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(Counsels approach bench)
Ms. Barrf Judge, no other evidence.
,Thé Court: Alright ladies and gentlemen, you have heard all
of the evidence in this case. I'm going to let you go now
until tomorrow morning at 9:15. You will comélin, no 9:30
tomorrow morning, when you come in at 9:30 it will be time
for clOsing*afgumenés. 1’11 give you the charge on the law
and YOu will deliberate. Tomorrow morning. What time did
we say?
Jury: 9:30.
The Court: 9:30.
(Jury excused fo£<the evening 5:31 p.m.5

The Court: Ahy additional matters of law?

- Ms. Barr: None from the State Judge.

Mr. Jenkinson: Your Honor we do have a motion. ' Just one
moment.

The Court: Yes sir.

Mr. Jenkinson: Your Honor, on behalf of the Defendant, we

move for a directed verdict at this time. There’s been
a failure bf any, well fhere’é been- a failure by the
State to broduée any competent evidence of thé
Defendant’s guilt taking into consideration all of the
evidence -and testimony presented;> There were three
people on the planet tat put the Defendant KelvinB.

in South Carolina in the early morning hours on the sth
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of April 2009. Those are Tawanda Allen, she did not
testify. That is Ronald Mack and he testified at
length in court tha£ Kelvin B. Bowen who’s name was
never called, was never in South Caroliqa. He referred
to somebody named Callie. There’s not, the only person
in the court room that has called the Defendant Bowen
Callie is the Prosecutor and she probably done it two
dozen times in the course of the trial: The only
identification Antonio MéClary provi?ed was there was
a step daddy by the name of Kelwvin, Kelvin, Kévin, not’
Kelvin, who he identified as‘.béing Callie.l' He
identified Callie_as‘being é tall, scrawﬁy person. A

person who had an Af;olhair cut, a person who had brown

skin. When we :saw the only photograph, which we had

asked the Coﬁrt to rule previoﬁsly as inadmissible
because if the only photograph showing about a Qeek-
later, when shown that.photograph in coqit he can say;
this person, I can’t teil if they got a.Afro haircut(
or it doesn’t appear to be. This pérson I can't tell
whether he‘S»téllAand sC:awny or not, you know. He
never would say whether he had brown skin or not. But
yvet, he‘says that’s him. Well it’s-the same pergén'
who later testified that he did maké avstatemeﬁt in

front of his lawyers and others that KeNinB. was

not the Callie who appeared in Kingstree. So, he is
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the only person who identifies the Defendant -in this

‘case. Possibly, remotely by a different name, by

improper description and more and if anything in the

law, as we all know, an eye witness ‘description is

probably the worét type evidénce, testimony anybody can
give. 1It’s been evident in the festimony in this. case.
He in no way, shape or form resembles him in name, in
description, in appearance. We’ve got multiple

pictures showing he’s never had anything but a close

-hair cut. Prior to the coffense.and after the offense.

We ‘have a failuge of any competent -‘evidence,
whatsoever. ~“All of the other attempted evidence)
there’s been no proof that he was living with: Tawanda
Allen. No proof to his living, there’s not oné”person
on the plénét whé's come 1in this courtroom and said
he’s ever spent the night there. There’s not one
person who’s ever seen him inside that apartment.
There’s not one persﬁn who said they found his personal
belongings thére, other than a baseball hat, which they
didn’t say it was his. It could have been a males and
Ronald Mack, by the way was living in the apartment at

the time with his mother. An eighteen or nineteen year

old who has confessed to murder and his role .in this

case. And he’s been sentenced in this case. There was

some underwear, which anybody could have worn. There
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was not a fingerprint in that apartment. There was not
a personal, there are three pieces of paper with his
name on it at that address. Well three pieces of paper
in an apartment don’t create a person living there.
It’s not even an inferénce because anybody can create
or have f%ose documents sent there by giving, Tawanda
Allen could have doné it. There’s no evidence that the
Defendant himself caused these three letters to'comé
there. Itzs just a failure of any competent probf that

the State made any effort. in the world, but the problem

is, they had a botched investigation. They did not get

- cell phone récords, they didn’t have .the lead

investigator even testify,in-this case beéause'l’m
certain that she, on cross examination of a bunch of
items, would-have testified iﬁ effect in favof.of the

Defendant and she didn’t take the sﬁand. The Samsung
phone which would have placed him .in South Carolina wag
lost by law enfbrcement. . Any ‘chance to get
fingerprints off of the murder weapon was lost by law
enforcement . ‘And all of these lost opportunitiés aré

being suffered at the hands -of Mr. Bowen because he’s

-on trial for a crime he didn’t commit. To put up

competent evidence of his alimony. There’s just no
competent evidence presented to this Court and as such

Your Honor, we would move for a directed verdict of not
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guilty.

e Court: Well, it sort of sounds like a jury argument and

maybe the jury will buy the argument, but it’s not for\thev

Court to weigh the evidence. There 1is. evidence that if
- believed by the jury, would clearly show that the Defendant
is guilty and I deny the motion. Anything else regarding the
requested jury charges? |
Mr. Jenkinson: Yes sir. We will bring the actual one but I
know the court has them. Eirsf, we wéuld want a
charge about the non testiﬁying Defendant. Undér our
.rules, the Ervin charge, the standa;d ErvinAcharge that

I think the court uses that he is not required to

testify and as a matter of fact under our law he does

not have to testify that.the Defendant does not have

any burden of proof

The Court: I told you I would tell them. T will tell the

jury that.:

Mr. Jenkinson: Yes sir. Charge the usual. reasonable doubt
that I explained to the jury in my opening argument and
the definition of a reasonable doubt.. A doubt which
would cause a reasonable person to hesitate to acf.

The Court: '-Alright. From the State?

Ms. Barr: Judge, we don’t have any extraordinary request.
Just &our standard request about the elements of

defense and Judge we would request hand of one; hand of

- THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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all, The standard ones, Judge, we don’t 'have any
special requests.

The Court: Allright. We’'re shuttinq down.

(Court adjourned for the evening)

The Court: Good morning. Request to chérge?

Ms. Barr: Judge we would just ask the Court to charge
constructive possession.

The Court: Constructive possession.

Ms. Barr: ?es sir. - '

The Court: Of wha£§

Ms. Barr: In ﬁhis case we’re concerned about the shotgun.
It'actually wasn‘t found in- actual possession of:the
Defendant, but ‘the State intends to offer it as
constructivelpossession.

The Coﬁrt: Ih relation to what charge?

Ms;'Barr: Possession of a Weapon During the Commission of a

| Vioient Crime. Pending that the murdef weapon was found

inside of the bedroom that we believe he shared with
Tawanda Allen.

The‘Court: So the charge 1is possession duriﬁg the

commission of crime not months later.

Ms. Bar: Yes.

The Court: . It’s not a constructive possession charge
case. I'm not going to charge that. Yes ma’am, Ms.
. Shuler?

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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Ms. Shuler: = The Defense would like a charge on the
: /

confession by co-defendant, the non testifying

Defendant charge, reasoﬁable doubt charge,

circumstantial evidence charge and alibi charge that I

passed up Your Honor. All of those were taken from

Judge Ervin’s book.
The Court: Okay, them individually now. The first one

you saild is what?

Ms. Shuler: The confession by co-defendant.
The Court: Confession by a co-defendant. What says the
State? \

' Ms. Barr: Judge on the second paragraph on that particular

proposed charge I’11l object to, because I think it
contemplatés where co—defgﬂdants are tried ﬁogethef.
And so that’s élearly»not a situation thét we have
here. :

The: Court: They deleted the sécond,paragraph.

Ms. Barr: Okay, alright Judge. And Youf Honor, there was,
the only‘cohfession that was admittéd in the triél of
thé case, was the taped confession of Ronald Mack and
Your Honor instructed the jury that they could only
consider that for impeéchment puréoses, SO we would
think that the first paragraph is therefore obsolete,
it’s moot at this point and we would object to that.

The Court: All right. Ms. Shuler.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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Ms. Shuler: We would just like the point reiterated that
it shouldn’t have been for impeachmént purposes iny
and to be cons£rued aé to tﬁéf Déféndénﬁﬁgﬁly.

The Court: Alright I'm going to think on that for a-
minute and move to the next one. |

Ms. Shuler: The next one will be the non testifying
defendant charge. We would just ask that the jury be
instructed that they cannot consider his lack of
testimony agéinst him that he has to offer the evidence
to - pursuant to the fifth amendment of the
constitution and that that cannot be discussed in the'

Jury room.

The Court: Alright, I have a charge for that. It’s not

"this, but I have a charge that I give in every case-

where the Defendant does not testify.- That tﬁey héve
the Constitutional right fo remain silent and it can
not be held against them or uéed against them in any
way.

Ms. Shuler: We also have a reasonable doubt charge as
well that the State has to prove each and every element
beyond a reasonable doubt.

The Court: Alright, not a problem.

'Ms. Shuler: And reasonable doubt is the kind of doubt
that would cause a reasonable person to hesitate to

act.
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The Court: I charge reasonable doubt in every criminal
case, so that’s not a big thing.

Ms. Shuler: The next charge that we have 1is an alibi

charge. The Defendant has entered an alibi defense.

sayiﬁg that he was not there at the time he committed,
at the time the crime waé cémmitted, that he had
nothing to do with the crime. Since the law proposes
no burden upon the Defendant to'prove that He was not
at ‘the scene, it is still the State’s burden to prove

that he was there.

The Court: Not.é problem.
Ms. Shuler: ° And we would‘also ask that Your Honor charge
"direct versus circumstantial evidence. They have.

offered a great deal of circumstantial ewvidence that

‘would suggest, that they say suggests that he lived in

the home with Tawanda Mack Allen. We would like to

charge that limits that based on the circumstances that
they argued thatfsuggests that he lives there. They
did not, they have not offered any direct evidence on

tha% matter.

The Court: ‘Alright, I won’t comment on the facts, but

I’11 charge direct, the law regarding direct evidence

N

and circumstantial evidence..
Ms. Shuler: Those are all our  proposed charges Your
Honozr.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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The Court: That will be the very first one that he

Ms.

The

Ms.

The

Ms.

mentioned Ervin’s book, of course, he retired from the
bench in abbut 1995 or 96 or something and I don’t use
his charge book as a basis for the charge. This very-
first charge, do you Have a case authority for it?:
Because'I’m going to say, you want ﬁe to tell the jury
that  they cannot consider any confession that any of
the co—defendants made against this Defendant.‘ So are
you telling me that where Mr. Antonio McClary said that
this Defendant committed tﬁe crime, for the jury not to
consider that? Or where Mr. Mack said in his recorded
stétement that is Defendant committed'the crime but the
jury is not to consider'thaf? I’m ﬁrying to interpret:
what you’re asking me tQ‘téll the jury.
Shuler: Whenever Ronald‘Mack’s statement was played
Your Honor gave a limiting inst;uction at that time,
that that was to be used as impeachment evidence oﬂiy.

b .
We would just ask that be reiterated.

Court: What do you want me to tell them?.

Shuler: I’ve provided the. name of the case at thét
time:énd I can find it again.

Court: Aifight we can. ‘Ms. Barr what’s yéurv
pqsition on all is?

Barr: Judge, I think that} of course, Your Hono; has

already given an instruction to the Jjury that the

recqrded statement of Ronald Mack _can 6nly be

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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considered by them for impeachment purposes only and we
would object tc the propoéed charge number one in it’s

entirety.

The Court:\ . I can certainly understand that if a person

confesses to committing a crime, says.I confess, I did

the crime then that cannot be used as evidence that

_someone else committed the crime, but if the statement

is that we committed the crime, then how can I tell the
jury or why‘should:I tell the jury that they cannot use
that evidence against the co—defendant. So that’s what
I'm trying to'get-a handle on; I don’t, if there is
some case that kind of clearly talks about it, then I’d
like fo look at, it. I'm not disagreeing with you, I

just don’t have a handle on what you want me to do.

Ms.‘Shuler: ' Case sited as State v. Chaffee 285sC21.

The Court: Alright. | |

Ms. Shuler:- And that has been oVerruléd on other grounds.
The Court: Alright, 1984. .Well, that case is so, I mean

- it’s 1984 and my computer doesn’t pick up cases that long,

- that old. But let’s see what you have here as far as .

structure. Must not and cannot consider any confession that

a co-defendant -makes, a co-defendant made against any other

defendant. You will consider any ‘confession only as to the

principle of law.

'pefson making it. I’11 tell the jury that, .I guess it’s a

Ms. Barr: And Judge, I think that that was prior to US v.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
(803) 436-2153 .



652

e
BN
H
-

18

le

10
11

12

137

14

15
16

17
19
20

21

22

23

24

25

HEARING | 639
Bruton who had issues of non testifying co-defendants

confession being used against person at trial and I
don’t think that’s applicable here. And we all know
you can’t have a confession admitted against a
defendant, a confession of a‘non testifying defendant
against a»défendant and so that law might have been
appiicable then, but we.take the position‘it’s not
épplicablevnow.. y

The Court: - Well you could be right. I mean the case,
the iine‘théy drew.éhrough is, it sayé Chatfey and
Ferrell, which suggests tﬁat there were two defendants
in trial at that time. |

Ms. Barr: Yes sir.

ThevCourt: . Let me jdét fake é break and look it up as
qppdéed to attempting to'wihg it. Any othe£'¢omménts?'

J
Ms..Shuler: None Your Honor.

The Court: - Let me just take, let’s take a break because

it is important.

(There was a court break taken)

‘The Court: Alriqht.Ms. Shuler any other thoughts?

Ms. Shuler: Your Honériwe would be ——-itfs our argumenf
that the statement being offéred for impeachment
purposes only: is consistent with that principle of law.

The Court: Alright. The question at this point is
whether the other people are co—defendants. They were

all charged toqéther, but they’re not co-defendants in

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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a trial and that’s where the Bruton issue came up. But
where the one defendant or both defendants charges are
now disposed of, they’re simply witnesses and their
téstimony stands. along for the jury to believe or not
to believe. I'm going to charge the jury on prior
inconsistent statements, but they may use the evidence
of ‘the earlier contradictofy statements to determine

the truth of the statements that they are curfently

making. But I’m not going to chérge that they are to

. committed the crime. Particularly ’whéﬁe they are

not consider the testimony of witnesses who said we

A

.charged with conspiracy and the statements can be used

under the rules concerning- co-conspirators, statements

of the co-conspirator can be used against them. A co-

conspirator is made in furtherance of the conspiracy,

so what I’m going to charge is prior inconsistent

statement. Alright, anything else?

- Ms. Barr: Not .from the State Your Honor.

\

The Court: Alright, bring them on. ‘ :

The Court: - Are ybquoing to start Ms. Barr?

Ms. Barr:.Yes sir.

(Jury enters courtroom at 10:25)

Jury:

. The Court: Alright the jury is here, good morning.

Good morning.

The Court: Day number 5. Ladies and dentlemen, you’ve

~
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heard all of the testimony, you’ve received all of the

evidence. It 1is now time to hear arguments from
lawyers, first from the State, Ms. Barr.

CLOSING ARGUMENTS BY MS. BARR:

Thank vyou, Your Honor. Ladies and gentlemen, good
morning. I’m going to start today like I started on Tuesday

with thanking you. And when I say that, Mr. Jenkinson, Ms.

. Shuler, that’s probably the only thing we’re going to agree

about in the whole trial, but folks this has been an extreme

sacrifice. - I'm sure that the facts that occurred in this

/

case are kind of difficult to listen to, but I am satisfied
. , p

that we picked an attenti&e'jury( we picked—an intelligent

jury ana I, Mr. Jenkinson, Ms. Shuler and I we all feel we
picked é jury who will be fairvand deliberate:earnestly in
this case.A

" Now, the way thétAour 5ystem works, I get the chance to
do an opening stateﬁent.and tell you a little bit about fhé
law and I get to sit dbwn. Mr. Jenkinson thenAgets to:gét
back'up and he’ll get up and he’ll do a statement and hé’il
talk about why you should find his éliént not guilty. And
because the State bares the burden of proof, ultimately, I
get a seéond bite into the épple, so to speak, so I gét to

) :

stand back up and talk to you all again before you hear the
charges from the Jﬁdge.i Now, I'm going to be very brief
right now, I’11 be a ‘little longer later on, but I’ll be

brief right now 'and I”’11l +dust kind of tell vou what the
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charges that are available for your consideration.

First, is the murder charge. You all remember on
Tuesday I told you about murder? Murder is the unlawful
killing of another Qith malice aforethought? The judge 1is
basically going to tell you under that murder charge, we have

to establish that the Defendant took the life of another

human being. With malice aforethought means that it was

premeditated, it was planned in other words and there was an
intent to do harm or kill the victim: He’s also charged with
Burglary in the First begree'and let‘me_teil you.what the
elements are for Burglary in the First Degree. One, you have
to prove that he went inté the dwelling, somebody’s hoﬁe.

We clearly established through testimony in the case that he

_ went into the home of Annette Bradshaw. Two, we have to show -

that:he went in without consent. He didn’t have anybody’s
permission when he went into the house. Three, we have to
. { .

show that there is some aggravating factor in connection with

that burglary ﬁhatlmakes it a more serious burglary than

saying 'he broke in somebody’s shed:  We’ve got a couple of
different aggravating factors in the case. One aggravating

factor»is it happened during the night time. There 1is

" something about being, a Defendant breaking into someone’s

home at night, because at night is when most folks are
relaxed, most of us are asleep at two o’clock in the morning

and so you’re, at some point, unaware and not on your guard

and it makes it, makes you more vulnerable when someone
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breaks in your house. A second aggravating factor that you

all can consider, if you find that he did these things and
you should find him guilty of Burglary in the First Degree,
is thét when he entered the dwelling, when he .entered the
home of Ms. Bradshéw and Kenyan Dorsey, he had a deadly
weapont A firearm, such as the shotgun that you’ve seen in
evidence, 1is a deadly weapon. There is also a third
aggravating factor that 'you can consider that makes this
burglary a heightened burglary and it’s the fact that he
caused physical injury or harm, i.e. he killed somebody,
inside the residence and that person was not a party to his
crimes. So if you ‘find either. one or all of those
aggravating factors existed in this case, you will fihd the
Defendant committed those, vyou shéuld find ﬂim guilty og
Burglary in the First Degree. The third chargé thé@ you have
tO»consider is what we call Pdssession of a Weapon Du:ing'the
Coﬁmission of a Violent Crime. The judge is going to tell
you when all the lawyers sit down, murder is a violent crime
in South Carolina. Burgléry in First Degfee is a violent
crime in South Carolina. We’ve already said the shotgun is
a -deadly weapon, so if you find that’ he committed thg
burglary, hé committed the murder and he had the weapon; then
you should also find him guilty of possession of a weapon
during a violent crime. The last charge that you ‘all have
to consider in the indictmept is criminal conspiracy and

folks, criminal conspiracy is where two or more people, they
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make a plan to do something or to get something or to
accomplish something by unlawful.'meané or to commit an
pnlawful act aﬁd certainly the planning-of a murder and a
burglary are unlawful .acts. in South Carqlina énd so if you
fina and believe the testimony of Mr. Mack and the testiﬁony

of Dontrey Barr where he’s talking about, he testified that

Ronald Mack showed him the text messages on his phone.. Where .

he was text messaging Callie. I need some help down here.
I need to take care.of Kenyan and there was further

testimony, that’s the dude you’re cool with? He said yeah.

There was "all these text messages going.back and for. You
-mean gunplay? If you find --- that is where the criminal
conspiracy. was committed. ‘He didn’/t have to do_anything

else. When he basically agreed to come to South Carolina and
bring those guns at:the behest of Mr.'Mack, he committed and

he completed the crime of criminal. conspiracy and folks we

-ask you that the conclusion:of ‘all of the arguments and at.

the conclusion of the Judge’s instructions to you and at the

conclusions of your deliberations, we ask that you turn a

~guilty verdict on all four counts. Thank you all for your

attention.

Mr. Jenkinson: May it please’The Court Your Honor? Ms. Barr.
The Court: Yes sir. |

Ms. Barr: Yes)¥sir;

CLOSING ARGUMENTS BY MR.  JENKINSON:

Mr. Foreman, ladies and gentlemen, good morning. It’s
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been a long week and it’s been a tiresome week, but it’s been

an important week. And you’ve‘now had the opportunity to
hear that evidence and that testimdny from the witness stand.
You’'ve been locdking and listening carefully to what the
evidence and testimony is. I find this is very important in
a case over the last thirty nine and a half years of doing
this and I know I look much younger than that. You wouldn’t
think I'm quite that old. But you know, what I f@und out

being in a courtroom\is this. 1It’s important to listen to

. what you hear. Sometimes, and a lots of times, it’s Jjust as

important,as to what you don’t hedr in a courtroom. Because
when you don’t heér something that’s your .common sense.saying
it wasn’t proved. If you don’t hear it, you can’t imagine
it and if you aon{t hear it, it wasn’t proved in a courtroom
and as His Honor told you TUesday morning,~first thing,'you

must decide this case on what you see and hear in this

Acourtroom. Not on what you don’t hear. Not on what a

suspicion may be. Not on what you think it could be, but only

on what you heard and saw in a courtroom. Now what am I

-talking about? I’'m talking about failure of proof. CIf I

told you that I had five things in my hand and I only showed

yququur of them, would you say Billy Jenkinson, you ain’t
got five things in your hand? Because youAQidn’t show me but
four of them and that’s what I’'m talking about. 'I failed to
prove something to you. And the State, Ms. Barr and these

officers must prove their case to you and if they fail to
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prove that case to you,. then it is your duty and your common
sense and the law to bring back a verdict of not guilty. So
I'm going to be talking a lot about what you didn’t héér in

this courtroom. And then I'm going to be talking about what

N

you did hear in this courtroom,  because it is important,

because you have the ability to believe, hear and welgh out

justice and a true verdict in this case and that verdict
\ “

again, musf be on the téstimony, the evidence you see and the

law. 'But it also must Ee on the lack of évidence that you
didn’t see in a case. Because if you don’t see it, it didn’t
habpen or it must not bé s0. Now, in a case, ény?case,
anybody who sitsrin'the éamevSeat that KelinB. - ; is

sitting. in, is .innocent; he’s innocent right now. And he’s

only, only guilty when you go back in thaﬁ jury rodm, weigh

it out and you say there has been proof beyond a reasonable

{

‘doubt, under our law, that he’s ‘guilty:. You can’t go back

in there and say, well wait a minute, I'm not sure. I'm .

heéitating;f»l got doubts. Because that’s your.good sense and

our law éaying bring back a verdict of not guilty. And all
‘I'm saying in these things is I want to make sure when you

go back that you undérstand these things. For three and half

days we sat and listened to the Prosecution’s case. For

.about an hour and half you listened to our case and if you

s

go by a time clock on who put up the longest case, KelvinB.
loses, but that’s not our law. What His Honor will tell

vou he doesn’t even have to put up any proof. He doesn’t
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have to testify, because the burden of proof is only on the

State. KelinB. has no burden to prove, .none, zero, no
burden. He don’t have to prove anything, say énything or do
anything. 1It’s solely upon the State to prove a case beyond
a reasonable doubt. .NoQ, Kelvin B. did not testify and

you say oh he didn’t testify, he must be guilty. That’s not

',Odr law, that’s not our law. His Honor will tell you that

under our Constitution-and law_ a person does not have to
: )

testify. You can’t override the Constitution of this United

States, because that is a law and a matter of fact, he will

ﬁell you, you can’t assume anything. You can’t even discuss

,it in the jury room. To prevent that from happening. Because’

if -you sit there and your mind is" saying, well he didn’t
testify;’he must be guilty, then-you are Qiolating the law
yourself. You are violating;-youg oath, doﬁ’t do that.
Follow what you heard and saw in The Court of law. Do'as His
Hénorftells yoﬁ; These laws have been in place since 18,

1787. A lot loﬁge; that we’ve been here and they’ve guided

our country and served our system well, because'itMprotects

‘innocent people from going to prison. ' How bad would it Dbe,

how bad would it be to . find somebody guilty when they were
not?- How bad would that be? Now, in this case, KelinB.

has come into court and said I have an alibi. That means I

was not in South Carolina when this occurred and he put that

up through two witnesses that I'm going to .talk about invé

. few minutes. Because he wanted vou, through these witnesses,
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to know where he was. He says I was not in South Carolina

by this defense on April 4 and 5 when this crime was
committed. The law of this state places no-burden qn KeVinB.
to prove that defense. . Remember he doesn’t have to
prove anything? A law allows him to put.that defense up.
Actually the burden 1is on the étate_to prove he was here.

Okay, so, that becomes an important consideration. This case

is really' simple. There 1is no question, ladies and -

gentlemen,A thét Kenyan Dorsey was murdered, there’s no
question that the people‘that ﬁurdered him, a lot- of them are
in prison today, where they belong.. There’s no question that
he Qas shot in his QQn.home, and that'’s whyLwe have never
questioned the fact that he was murdered. We didn’t.haQe any
questions,” you didn’t see me ask any questions about it. We
nevef.disputed that. What we have only disputed in this -case
was tha£ Kelvin B. ' \wésn’t there. Everything elsé-that

happened to Kehyan Dorsey that night is true. You saw me

yesferday,jI~didn't ask‘any questions of that pathologist.'

The lady who 'did thé autopsyf I don’t even see why we had
to sit hefe almost two hours and listen to it, because we
admit that Kenyan Dorsey was Shot‘by those bullets and shot
by a shotgun. We a%mit that. We admit that he was shot with
this shotgun. That’s not, what this case is abouf. Kenyan
Dorsey is déad.and tﬁg people that killed him ought to be
held accountable, but the people.who didn’t do it don’t need

to go to prison either and that’s the only thing this case
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is simply about. The only question you got to ask,yoursglf

has it been proved beyond a reasonable doubt that KelvinB.

| was in South Carolina? Was it proved to you beyond a
reasonable doubt that he was present and did this crime.
That’s all. That’s the only question you got to say. It’s
not a quéstion about how many times he was shot or whether

that 'was the . shotgun or whether all these pictures of his

.trailer and all that’s true. That’s true. Let’s don’t get

confused by all this evidence. .And you say well why did we

~have to ‘listen to that? I don’t know. Because all -the

Solicitor really had was some bad pictures of a young man who

-was killed. All that is done, is to get your sympathy, to

get your blood up and say somebody got a pay and it might got
to bé'you."Doh’t let that haépen, don’t let that-happen.
The only case, and we could have tried this case‘in’a.day,
thé question is, was KelvinB. : here that night? Thét man

there. I’m not talking about a Callie, I’'m not talking about

- somebody with Tawanda,'I»m notQtalking about who the real

Callie- is. 1I’m talking about this man right here. That’s
the questions that I want you to focus on. Now, so I want
fo talk a little bit first about proof you didn’t hear,

because when you don’t hear something, like I promised to

have five marbleslin my hand and I only showed you four and -

you say you ain’t proved it. So what didn’t you hear in this
Ccourtroom, from this stand that would cause you to hesitate

to act? Number one, let’s don’t ever forget that'the burden

THIRD JUDICIAIL CIRCUIT
(803) 436-2153" ‘




1%

10

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18"
19
20
21
22
23

24

25

663

HEARING ’ ' 650

of proof is on the State. I'm a little bit older than ya'll,

put I read Dick Tracey in thé funny papers when I was growing
up. It was .about a police officer. He had a watch and you
could, it was like a computer that we ha?e today. ‘Who'd a
known fifty years ago that Dick Tracey would have had avwatch
that’s almost like our phones.today that you can see people

and do stuff? Magic watch, and he was a police officer. And

. s0 when you’ re growing up, then we ran into things like CSI

and things like that. We got a pretty good idea of how you

prove cases now. DNA, fingerprints, footprints, tire tracks,

‘all kinds of things to put people at a crime. I asked over

and over, do we have a single fingerprint to tie KelinB
to this crime. On that shotgun? Anywhere-out -at the house?

On one of these bullets? On a doorknob? ' Anywhere, no. Not

because they were wiped off; they didn’t look for them. Have

you ever heard a police officer not checking a weapon when
they find it, they always picking it up with pencils and
handling it real careful and wrap it up in something and take

it and dust it for -fingerprint. - Péople in grammar school

know that. Why wasn’t that done in this case? That would

have proved whoever handled that shotgun was the persoﬁ who
firéd it. DNo fingerpfints, no tire tracks, none whatsoever.
Nobody even bothered to look and yet he!sAsupposedly the
shooter of the shotgun. Now,'they say you know cell phone§

are almost magic for law enforcement. It’s a great tool for

divorce lawyers. The first thing you do is subpoena the wife

1
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or the husband’s phone records to find out who you been

calling and that’s where yéu find out who the boyfriend is.

And then you check it for pictures and you check it for text

- messages and you look at the phone and you examine it. And

if you don’t do that, you can send it off to a laboratory and
they can forensically go into ;t, opén it up and find out all
kinds of stuff. Even better yet, you just send to Farmer’s
Telephone or whoever your provider is and send them a
subpoena and they- just get: the monthly records, because
evérybody gets a cell phone bill and it tells you who you
call, the number you called, what'daté,you called, what time
you called, how long you talked and they even have records
of;where the cell phone tower was, they call‘pingiqg off of

it. If you're talking in Kingstree, YOq’re pinging off the

" Kingstree tower. If you calling to North Carolina, you.

pinging off a tower, if you're riding dowﬁ I-95 and make five
calls, you pinging off différent, they cén track you righ£
-down - I-95 off of théée céll phone records. All of them and
do we have any. cell phone that were important in this.casé?

Oh  my gosh. We got to see one right here in the courtroom.

_Kevin Mack’s, I mean Ronald Mack’s. The guy who was the

V trigger man on the nine millimeter who’s getting phone calls

from Callie. No records on that phone, but check his phone
'bill; the incoming calls, outgoing, did you do fhat? No.

Duh. Well, you know that KelinB. - had a cell, a phone,

- vou lost that Samsung phone, but vyvou don’t have to have’fhe
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phone. .All you got to do is just go to T Mobile, rigHtion

_the record and say T Mobile,Athis guy lives up here in

Maryland, .give us his records for April. Who’s he calling?
And they say a big spill aboﬁf whether or not text records,
text records existed or not. Weli, I can tell you this, they
sﬁre got a record of'wﬁo he called, because they sent him a
bill for i£. They didn’t bother to get it. fhat Qou}d prove
whether or not hé did it and remember he, they have got to

prove their case and is this regular -law enforcement,

criminal investigation. Where is it? Where is Tawanda

Allen’s cell phone record? Didn’t bother to check, oh my

gosh! And they want to send a man to prison for that? Oh

so they say, well KelinB. was living, this is what Ms.
Barr. says, KeiinB. is li?ing with -Tawanda Allen. He

lived in her apartment, she said it. You danhot,~lawYefs can

not be witnesses. Did you hear a single witness from this
'stand say he was living there? No. Now, you found two
'detectives,who said, well we found a baseball hat. Who’s

.baseball hat was it? Don’t know, but it’s a baseball hat.

Okay. Do women wear baseball hats? Yeah. Butzthat’s‘proof

he was living there? Oh but wait a minute, we found some

" Budweiser boxer shorts and a Budweiser tee shirt. 'Oh my

r

gosh, women don”t drink Budweiser and they don’t wear tee
shirts and they don’t wear boxer shorts. Give me a break.

Oh well we found some Dove deodorant. My wife uses it, but

I don’t. I use meh’s deodorant. Oh well, wait a minute he

" THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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had some clothes of his there. Okay, show me a picture of

them. Show me a picture of a closet with_the clothes hanging
in it or.something. Show me, show me his toothbrush with DNA
on it. Show ﬁe his razor, show me his shaving creaﬁ, show me
his hairbrush. Show me something to show the man iived
there. Show me one witness who said he lived there. Not -
one. You know, did you hear a single witness say they even
saw him inside is apartment? Not one. Not one single person.
sat he#e and-saia'we saw him at at aparfment. Yeah,'we did
sée him out' front getting in a car,ibu£»We never saw ﬁim

inside of a apartment. And then ‘they want yoﬁ to éay well

wait a minute. We found three pieces of paper with his
address on it though. Well, three pieces of paper . lived
there, but not KeNnB. Yeah, it has the address.

Tawanda Mack could have done that. Who did it? We don’t know.
It was just .there. And'that has him living there? That’s
proof beyond a reasonable doubt?. Not one éingle person said

he lived 'there, not one single item of Hhis >personal

- .

belongings were found there, but' he’s supposed to be living

there? Now was he going with Tawanda Allen? Yep, ain’t no

question. But where were they meeting and where were they

.going and what were they doing? T don’t know. A lotyof people

go out with women and go to motels and off and go places.
I don’t know. But you know, it’s so important for him to be

living there with that shotgun, under the mattress. Now

who’s going to sleep'on top of a shotgun on a mattress?
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Number one, it’s uncomfortable and number two who's going to

live and sleep on top of a mattress? - It just don’t make good

"common sense. Tawanda Allen did because she’s guilty. That

was her bed. Now, Quadir Wilson, Dontrey Barr testified.
Neither one of thesé witnesses ever said that’s Callié.
Neither one of these witnesses ever said that’s the guy we
saw, but they did say they saw Ronald Mack’s Iphone at, right
here, and there were -incoming messages and texts on it. Have

we seen anything on it? This exhibit number 85? No. And

_they’ve had it for twenty months. Twenty one months since

this crime, in their possession and did not test this phone

for those messages to prove that this man, KehinB. . is

Callie. Ain’tjdone>;t yet. Matter of fact, we tried to go
into it and saw there’s no evidencé‘that those text messaées
ever occurred on this phone. They can say well they were
deleted, well fine. Show me 'theAbills' then. | Show me
Something,_where’s the proof? That’s the prbof.that Kelvin
Bowen, he didn’t do it. Right there, that’s the proof,
because if it did, it would be connected to his phone. - We
don’t have one phone message, one record to show his phone
ever talked to this phone and this phone was recovered on the
7th of April, two -days after, three days after the crime.

Actually two days after the crime.. You know, one witness I

4 never heard say a word, this witness is the lead investigator

in this case that handled the whole file. Handled everything;

the phones, the records, was in charge of all these things.
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I kept saying where 1is Investigator Lail? ~ Why isn’t she

testifying? Why isn’t the lead investigator testifying in
this case? Unless she’s got some information they don’t want

you to ask about. Silence, not a word. She ain’t got nothing

~to say. She can’t prove anything. Don’t you know, if. the

lead investigator in this case had evidence and testimony
that KelvinB. . was Callie and did the shooting, she’d be
up there singing like a bird? Nope, not a word. Total
silence..What you didn’t hear in this coﬁrtroom. Now, what,
who did you hear a lot about in this courtroom committing

this crime? Ronald Mack. We heard enough evidence and

' testimony to put him in jail for 'at least fbrty five years

and guess what.. He is in jail, where he belongs, for forty
five years, because he is the confessed, pled guilty,
murderer in this case. His mama is Tawanda Mack Allen, in
prison for fifty years for her participation in this crime.
Neither one of those two people walked intO'courf and said
thére’s Callie. Never heard it. Now,. all of these are

reasonable doubts, what you didn’t hear. Let’s talk a little
bit about what you did hear. ‘What proof was preseﬁted that
Kelvin B. now, I ain’t talking about Callie, I ain’t
talking about anybody else, but this man sitting over here
canie dan to Kingstfee and'killedAthis young man? Yeah, I
called him a young man, but I also called him just, an old,

you know, he’s seventeen years old. What proof? Antonio

McClary is the only person out of three that has walked in
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this courtroom and said yeah that’s Callie. Now I got some
guestions to ask you that I want you to go back.in this room,
this jury room and I want to ask you to go back, cause your
job is 'to weigh the credibility and the believability of
Antonio McClary. Why Qould Antonio McClary all of sudden,
for the first time iﬁ history. Now, I undersﬁand.he conféssed
on May the 13th 2009. That 'was tweﬁty twd-months ago or
twenty one months ago, he confessed. Twenty one months went
by, because I asked the question of one of the investigators,
Investigator Collins, I said in-twenty something months, have
you ever taken one of these witnesses, and'taken,~éausé this
man been sitting in jail all that time, Kelvin B. Have

you ever takén him over to~his'jail cell and said who is that

guy rightvthere? Who’s that? No picture, I’'m talking about

who is this guy? Is this Callie or not? And they waited

until two days ago and you say why is that important? ' It’s

important for this reason. Back on April the 7th; when they

took the first statement of Antonioc McClary, he didn’t say‘

one word about Callie, he didn’t say anything about KelvinB.

he didn’t ‘know. He lied. Lied. May the 13* , first

,statement,‘he said I don’t know. I didn’t have anything to

do with it? He lied. Then théy put pressure on him and he

confessed and that’s what we call the confession statement.
He said that he saw some text messages. We ain’t seen the
text messages; -we know nothing-about any. There’s no phone

connedtinq with a person named Callie. On this statement,

THIRD "JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
(803) 436-2153



10
11
12

13

14

15

.16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

- 25

HEARING . 657

he said wé'asked} well who’s Callie? And he said Callie is.

Ronald’s 'step father. Okay. His step father. Well that’s

‘“iﬁtéfésting because Ronald has several step fathers. Okay,

thank you. ©Now, he asked him that twice, two different times

in that statement and he said step father. -He said that

Callie(showed up at Dontrey Barr’s hou;e at two o’clock in
the morning énd Calliie’s there. Okay. Well, what’s the rest
of the story?v He said, well that day, earlier, I got a call
from-Ronald”Mack and he was over at his girlfriend Dymon’s
in Hemingway and we went Qver'there and picked him up about
nine é’clock-that night. And riding back in the car, we were

looking at these'text messages from Callie, saying Callie

would, you come down here? And he wanted gunplay, remember:

that word?” He was up in Baltimore, Maryland. That’s what

‘they said between nine and. nine thirty. At two o’clock he

shows 'up in Kingstree? What he have a helicopter? Nine to

nine thirty, let’s just say it’s nine o’clock, let’s just

say. '~ Ten, eleven,  twelve, one,. two, five hours? Four

- hundred and eighty nine miles? Riding down the highway with

all these weapons, shotguns, waiting for the Highway Patrol

to.stop them. - I'don’t think so. Could you get here from

above Washington, DC on I-95 to Kingstree in five hours? I
don’t thiAK'so.‘ Yeah, could have a helicopter. Yeah, if
there’s nobbdy on I-S85 and he drove a hundred mileé an hour,
maybe, I don’t know. It just doesn’t fit. Now I'm going to

come - baék to it' in just a few minutes, because we got

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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sdmething that does fit to that time. An eight hour drive

from above Washington, DC, almost to Baltimore down here.

~You can’t drive to Richmond in five hours. Or if you can, you

can drive to Richmond in five hours, but not from Baltimore,

- Maryland between nine and nine thirty and get here at two

o’clock. That ain’t going to happen. Something is strange
and I’'11 come‘back to that. Now, he said in his confession

statement, they went in the house} I didn’t go into the

house. Well, how did he know even Callie went in the house

and shot anybody? Of course, you know, we’ll leave that one

alone, but guess what? He comes up later at his plea of

guilty and- says he did go in the house. Well, what is the

biggest reason that he(gave he knows Callie? What’s the
first thing a law enforcement officer going to ask you about
a strange persqn?' Alright you saw this man come in youf
house 5r‘rob you, what did. he loqk like? Tell us what this
ﬁan looked like and here’s what he said about Callie. He
said Callie was real tall ahd ‘sCrawny; he‘hgd Afro peezy
hair, not low cut, it was like an Afro; and he had brown
skin. Okay. ©Not light skin, not dark skin, but brown skin.
So, then two or three days later; he just happens to be §ver

in the Sheriff’s office, or taken over there, you know, to

" look at a picture and they only show him one picture. And

}
I "ask him and I held it up and I said tell me how tall he is

in is picture. He said{this is Callie now. How tall is he?

He said well vou can’t tell. I said tell me how _about his

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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afro haircut in at picture? He got a do-rag on. He could

have it braided down real tight, I guess, but you know, ain’t

no afro. That, I said, well is he scrawny looking? He don’t

‘look scrawny in that picture. Well is that brown skin and

he said well yeah, that’s brown skin. What’s brown skin and

what’s dark skin and what’s light skin? You be the judge.
Look aroundlis courtroom. You see-any brown skins heré or
thére? Or dark skins? I don’t know, I mean that’s just
thought to something, it is what it is. I'm not gqing to
argue about  that. That is,suppose/'he described in . his
-confession’exactly what we know to describe. No. And why

is that so important? Now that’s a good question. Why would

~he say that? The man is already confessed;- he said I am in

{
deep trouble, I'm going to prison, I got to get out as light

-as I can. I got to start helping out, - I got to start

cooperating so I can get me a light sentenée.‘ I don’ttwaﬁt
to be like the rest of them dudes. I ain’t going to, ain’t
going—té claim I had no weapon, I ain’t going to do nothing
and they going to believe me, cause I’'m going to put fhe hand
on somebody so they can put them in prison. Well we get to
the 1C*™™ of June in this statement and you heard his lawyer

yesterday. We ask him, is man Callie? And he looked at him

and said no, at ain’t Callie. So, what’s Callie look like?

Well he’s a real tall dude with an afro and oh by the way he

had piercings»in his ear and his face; Rough locking and I’m

sitting right .in front of KelinB. and his lawyer. No

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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law enforcement, just the lawyers. That’s scary when you're

a iawyer and you know your client is charged with murder and
thé peréon who’s supposed to be identifying him'saysAit‘ain’t
S0. feahL we wanted the-statement bad, but two weeks later
he changed his mind and said oh‘it's‘not true. Because he
thought -about that thing and he said you know if I go-ahd
téll that law enforcement I ain’t going té get that 1light
sentence. I'm a help them out. So he éoes to his guilty plea
and says let’s cut a deal. I don’t want no forty five years,
I don’t want no fifty years. I'1ll come te§tify,.I’ll put the
finger on the man; let me off light,riike in twelve years and
that’s what ' he gét. And you saw what he did yesferdéy,
éa&ing; op-day before yesterday, éaving~his own skin. I
brought KevinB. .riéht here; I wanted him to get a good
look and he sat right iﬁ the car with ﬁ;m and he saw.him;
I Said éid you see the moustéche on the man? The mustache
is pretty big. You can remembef ajmoustaéhe. Whethér or not
a’'person.has a Afro-and‘a'moustache. He never remembered thé
moustache on the man and he’s had it. I said do you remember
the'scar down his jaw? Six or eight inches long? He said
‘yéah,'I see the scar, but I don’t remember no scar. ‘These

‘are things you remember people Dby. Just didn’t happen.

" Ronald Mack, thé shooter,” the bad guy confessed. Told law

enforcement he did it, " pled gquilty, got fifty vyears.

Testified in his own mama’s trial, against his own mama,

oo

saving she participatedd Mama gets forty five years. I want

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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to talk to your common sense a minute. Would you come in

that courtroom to testify againsﬁ your own mama and look at
this man and say he’s not Callie, if you wasn’t telling the
truth? Would you lie on your mama? Or would yoﬁ tell the
truth for yoﬁr maﬁa? Or would you even testify or would you
‘lie for your mama? And wouldn/t lie for this man in court
either and today we asked is that Callie over there? He said
that is not/Callie. " That is not Céllie_and if he told the
truth in testifying against his own mama, is he testifying
the truth here? I ask you, is that human nature? God knows
we all love our mamas. He testified against his own mama, but
he didn’t testify, he teétified ﬁonestly in this codrt.
Would he be doingisuch a thing if it wégn’t trde: That
'speaks more toAthé truth and the cfedibility than anything§
i've heard in this court.- Now, he also said-his mama had two
boyfriends. Who'’s that other boyfriend? He didn’t know, he
said I just know.my'mama;had'two boyfriends. I wasn’t living
up there then, back in April. In his géped statement he
said, they were talking-abbut Kevin and Kelvin, two different
names completely. Yeak, they close. , Kelvin Washington was -
Sheriff of the county. KelvinB. sits over theféu There
a lot of Kevins éround, but that’s a different name;‘ He was
neve? taken and,ésked and shown Callie, identified as Caiiie

the whole time he was in jail. Tawanda Mack Allen, mother

of Ronald Mack, found guilty, serving fifty years. She

didn’‘t testify, she didn’t put her finger on him either. T

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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want to go back to the cell phones for just a minute. The

last Samsung T Mobile cell phone heard from ... tried to_get

it. I had permission, because we didn’t know what happened

to it. We were trying to find that cell phone. ' The last, .

according to Detective Luersen, the last it was seen orlheard
was this day. What they did with it, we don’t know.
Apparently, it was towed off, sold, the car Qas sold, we
don’ t know;(itrjust disappeared, gone. But the records

aren’t and those records, 1f law enforcement had gotten them,

I doubt if we.would be her today. Law enforcement must prove

their . case, justflike_foot prints, - fingerprints, DNA énd
checkiné out all of the ﬁotential.killers and you say wait
a minute.' Who are the potential other killers here? Weli,
Ronald Mack mentioned two names; A fellow by the name of Bam
and a fella by ‘the name of Tom Tom from Heming@ay. I asked
Officér,Justin~Whack yesterday, did you check those two guys

out? ‘Well somebody may have. I said oh) Investigator Lail

.would’ve .check that I ain’t heard anything from Investigator

Lail about-it. ' He had'at least two step fathers. Surely
they went and interviewed the two step fathers and found out

if any of them were tall and‘scrawny and had an afro or sbme

~piercings in their.face.'Nope, didn’t bother to do that

either. What is going on? We’ll never know, because they
didn’t bother to ask. 1In this casé, His Honor is going to

charge you that this case also has circumstantial evidence.

There’s two kinds of evidence; .Direct evidence is what you

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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see in this court. Here’s direct evidence right here;

testimony from the State, but circumstantial evidence is also
important, but there are rules involvihg éircumstantial
efidence. Where a person actually sees a crime, that’'s
direct. Circumstantial evidence_means proof of some other
ﬁact or facts which taken together collectively prove the
existence . of a particular fact. Before you caﬁ'conviét

Kelvin B. on some circumstantial ~evidence, the

circumstantial evidence must measure up to our law and that

‘measurement is this, not only must the circumstances be

proved, but they must point éonclusively,to the guilt of the
accused, conclusively. Must wholly be perfectly coﬁsistent
with- the other.  They also must absolutély be inconsistent
wifh aﬁy §ther.theory. Every circumstance relied upon by the
State must be proven by tests of stribt,proof. They mﬁsﬁ be
consistent and taken Fogether muét reduce to a reasonable and
ﬁoral éerfainty thét the Defendant, and no 6ne else committed
the'crime, or the Defendant didn’t commit.the crime. All
présumptions are in favor.of the innocent, so6 circumstantial
evidence is very strict and you got to be very careful. Now,
what are the circums£antial evidence in this case? That

Kelvin B. ‘ lived in that apartment because of these three

pieces of paper. That’s what they want you to say, well this

equals him living there, but nobody’s ever seen him there.

No clothes, no nothing. His physical presence out in front

of the apartment would be, they say that’s circumstantial

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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evidence, well it is, but that don’t prove anything. Théy

~ .
say his -i.d. card shows he’s from California, so he must be

{

Callie. Everybody who lives in thé‘state of California must
be Callie. 1If you’'re from Caiifornia, you’re‘names gotta be
Callie. That’s what Ms. Barr wants you to think. That’s all
theyAgoﬁ is an i.d. card. It don’t say his name is Callie
on it. His name says its KehvinB. grew up in, I think,
Long Beach California. But that don’t make him Callie. ‘You
know, what really happened, who is Callie? That’s a good

question. That’s what I kept wondering over and over in my

mind, because we don’t know. We have to rely on what law

,'enforcement_did. Who is Callie? We know, but we ain’t sure

~

of who Callie. is but we know that they have the burden of
proving it and we know he’s a guy,With a-Afro haircut. 'Now,
this picture 'was taken in March 2009, about 'a week or two

before “this.crime was committed. Do you see an Afro haircut

anywhere? Now,'ho. Do you see a Afro haireut in any of

these pictures taken prior to the crime? . Do you.éee one in
this picture?‘Y§u can car;y-tﬁose back with you and I want
you to look at them. Do you see one in this picture? See
one in this picture?. See .one in this picture? ’Yod see
sémebody with a moustache in this picture. Whylare these
pictures important? Because it ;in’t Callie. We know that

Callie was a step father based on every single statement. We

know that there are step fathers who were never interviewed.

We know that there’s two guys by the name of Bam Bam and Tom

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
(803) 436-2153 ' :



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

HEARING 665
who Ronald Mack said were responsible. We don’t know,
because they were never interviewed.. We know that there’s
no way at KelvinB. could have got to Kingstree, South

Carolina from Gien Bﬁrnie, Maryland in five hours. What does
that tell us? The real Callie lives closer than fi&e hours.
The real Callie may be right here in South Carolina. The reai
Callie may be around Kingstree or Williamsburg County.
Because we know he couldn’t have gotten here in five hours.
We do know those things. None of this fits KeNinB.

none of it. Not the description, not the time frame, not the
hair, not the moustache, none of is.. You know wha£,I féund
unusual, is aiibi defense, we put up Tiffany Bowen yesterday
and her son: And én aiibi defense, what y&u need to know.ig
this, okay, why do you. remember fha% day in question? How
doryou,remembér it? Because it was}two yearé, alhdst two
years since that crime. Well, her Husband wasn’t arfested
two years ago. A few weeks aftér hé, ‘this crime waé
committed, he was arrested and_the first words out of her

mouth, you couldn’t have committed that crime. You were with

‘me. That was right back after you got back from California

on a trip. That was when'yoﬁ put together our son’s'birthday,
present, because you wanted to play with it. You spent that
weekend at.home with us, the whole weekend. We called my

cousin . and sang happy birthday‘to her. You couldn’t have

Icommitted‘this crime. And -you heard young KB. You judge

.their'credibility and their believability. A wife trving to

. THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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" keep her family together, yeah he’s got a girlfriend and if
(i;-. o . he’s guilty of something, then .yeah, he’s guilty of haviné
| 2' a girlfriend. He’s guilty of beihg at the wrong place at the
> wrong time and messing with another woman. He’s guilty of
’ that. But don’t let that say he was in, bring him to éouth
? Carolina when there’s no proof of it. He’s guilty of hanging
° around é'cynical, bad, evil woman, yeah he’s guilty of that,
-k but not guilty of this/crime. It bothered me when Justin
° Whack took the stand, because there’s a lot of things about
2 this case that*béthered ﬁe and he said, I tfied, I called
10. _ Tiffany Bowen on Friday and asked her if she'would answer my - -
‘11 questions and she wouldn’t answer. Wait a minute, that ain’t
L2 what happened. An& I walked right.here and.I.said, Officer
3 Whack, you put your hand on this Bible to tell the truth aﬂd
14~ nothing but the truth, the whole truth didn’t you? Yeah.
/ 15@ I said but you didn't'tell‘us the whole truth, did .you? Oh
~ to yeah I did. I said well why don’t you tell the jury the rest-
‘17 " of that cénversation?“ngl what are you talking about? I
18 saiq weli, didn’t she say she would be glad to talk to you
1o on Monday and ﬁell you what she was going fo,say? Well yeah, -
20 she saidfthat‘she wanted ybu there. Yeah. I said well you
21 didn’t have a problem with that did you? ©No. I said éhe
2 didn’t know who you were, you said you were a deputy and she'
23 said, she coopérated and said she’d meet with yéu on Monday
>4 in person. That’s a lot better than talking on the'phone
(2} ' ?5 L disn’t- it? VYeah. Well sure vou talk to her on Monday. No.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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‘Tuesday maybe? Wednesday? Thursday? No. He just did that

~to try to, so he could sit on the stand and talk bad about
this lady becéuse that’s all you can do. If he didn’ﬁ
believe her, he’d been on her like a bee after honey on
Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, asking her. But never ésk her a
question, never, never. Who you going to believe? Somebody
that wants to tell you part of thé_truth or the whole truth?
You know, you’re sitting there and you’re troubled. You been
sitting here for -four days, well five aﬁd you say 1’ve beéen.
sitting here listening about avhorrible murder that this
man’s supposed to have committed. -You feel like, well gosh,
I've seen all.this stuff, maybe I need to find somebody
guilty sitting.here all this time.. Don’t fall into that
trap. Don’t fall into that frap. This is a system éf.
justice, not how many dbcuments and exhibits y¢ﬁ put in or
how many witnesses youipﬁt on the witness stand, it don’t
matter. It’s. about juétice and the truth. And proving
somebddy gdilfy be?ond a .reasonable dodbt.‘ So -what is your
verdict going to say Mr. Foreman and ladies and gentlemen?:
‘What shéuld your verdict séy? It éays not guilty.A You’ re
not saying you'’re finding him innocent. * What you’fe saying
is the State has not proved a case beyond a reésonable doubt.
Youzvé not proved your case, that’s whatryour Qerdict says.
But it says‘more. <ItLSays you havé-convicted‘Tawanda'Allen,

Ronald Mack and Antonio McClary. Three people who admitted

their quilt and have been proved quilty bevond a reasonable

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
(803) 436-2153




10

11

12

13

14,

15

16

17
18
19
20
21

22

23

24 .

25

681

HEARING ' 668

doubt. But in this instance, there’s not a complete case,
there’s not complete evidence. Many important facts have not
been checked out that should have been checked out. Your

verdict does not say stop. investigating this case. _ Your

verdict says law enforcement, go out and finish youf job.

Go find these step fathers, go find these other witnesses and

finish your job. You still have a right to convict people

of this crime. That’s what your verdict says. Your verdict

\says seek the truth. Do justice.. Go out and investigate

these step fathers. It saysiwe.can not put someone in prison

for such a weak identification, by a bunch of people who are

proven murderers.. We can not put someone and find someone -

guilty based upon the evidence and testimony and the law'of

this state as we have 'seen and heard it in this courtroom.

"We can not bring back a verdict on what we have not heard.

We can not bring back.a verdict .on suspicion. We can only
bring back a' verdict that seeks jﬁstice. I couldn’t thank
you for being here Monday, but I.can thank you today. Not

for being here, but on behalf of KelvinB. his Wifeh

Tiffany and young KB. I want to thank you for listening.

I want to thank you for hard work and doing your job. And

doing what the law requires and finding justiceé. Thank‘you.

The Court: | We’ll take a break now ladies and gentlemen.
Please go to the jury room. Please -do not discuss the
casé. | |

(Jury exits court room for break 11:25)

' THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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The Court: Alright, we’ll take about seven minutes. -

(Courf break)

The Court: Yes sir?

Mr. Jenkinson: Your Honor; I would just ask The Court to
make sure the Soiicitor proceeds with caution as to any
gang related activities in her argument. We ask to
make sure that’s not included in the argumehts.

The Céurt: Alright, bring the jury.

(Jury enfers céurtroom 11:39)

The Court: Ms. Barr?

REPLY CLOSING STATEMENT BY Mé BARR:
| Folks if T cén have about thirty minutes of your.time
and your attention agaiﬁ and then I'm going to sit down
and you all will have the most importént‘job and thaf;s
to render a decision. I feel for you, because it’s
tough, but we know that you all will do the.right thing
in this case. Ultimately, while Mr. Jenkinson and I
"may disagree on what the fight thing is in this case, 
ﬁltimately,?both of us want you to do what’s right and
,‘wha;’s jﬁst. This week has been a little weird for me!
Myldldest hiece and her husbkand, fhey ha%e beenlérying
' to have a bab& for the longest énd on Monday, i am very
proud to say,-they gave birth to a little baby gifl and
it was ironic because ‘she was born about two o’clock in
the afternoon. About the same time that we were

picking this jury on a case in which another mother

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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lost her child’s life and it made me, at that time, I

think, probably appreciate the sanctity’of life more so

~an I ever have in my career. She’s a little, tiny

thing, she’s less than five pounds, she’s still in the

neo-natal unit, but she’s fighting and it makes you .

N

realize how very, very precious life is. When I think
about 1ife and death, you know, we have words.for what
it means when you lose somebody special. If you lose
a spouse, you're consideréd a widow or widower. If a
child lose a parent, that child is considered an
orphan, but you know what, the£e~are nc words in the
English language to describe what you are when you lose
your child, because there are, no words for £hat.
That's, 1’'ve been told, the most horrible fate that you
can suffer. And it’s particularly horrible iﬁ this

case because. Annette Bradshaw lost her child in the

most horrible way. - I’m telling you that, Annette

doesn’ t want you to .feel sorry for her. - That’s not why

I tell you that. I tell you that because Annette wants

YOu‘to render justice. ‘That’s all she seéks when she
comes in the Courtroom. Kenyan Dorsey was seventeen
vears old when he was murdered. It wés in April of
2009, probably about a ﬁonth or two away from
graduating from high school, had his whole future ahead

of him and I’m going to address the whole notion of him

being in a gang obviously, because it’s evidence that

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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you heard and I'm sure it’s on your.minds aﬁd I'm sure
ybu’re probably going to talk about 1t when you get
back there. You know, wﬂen I was coming up, I’m not
éoing to tell you how long that was ago but when'I was
coming up, we had little gangs in our high schobl, or
we thought they were gangs. They were really more like
clicks.  Basically people got together, they wore the’
same kind of clothes, they all até lﬁnch together, you

know, they walked places togetHer.‘ Didn’t harm

_anybody, but you know, they call that a gang; And if

- in fact, if in fact, Kényan Dorsey kind of lost his Way ’

as ‘a young man and got'involved with Ronald Mack and
his crew and all that, for a moment lost his way, to me

that’s\particuiarly as 1t relates to Ronald Mack, makes

it so important for us to realize ‘as parents, as

adults, the level of influence that we have on our

children. We have an incredible impadt and influence

on children. You know, when Ronald Mack contacted his

" mom and contacted Callie, and let’s be clear, Callie is -

not some phantom person out there - in the sky at we

just, out in space somewhere that we don’t know who ‘it

o

"is. We know who Callie’is. Callie is KelinB.

sitting right there. Don’t be fooled, that’s callie.
As sure as I'm standing here, that’s Callie over there.
When he contacted them, and said listen, I’'m having a

problem with Kenyan. I need some help, I need y’all to
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(803) 436-2153




10

11

#

12

13-

14

15

16
17
18
19
20

21

22

23

24

25

685

» , HEARING 672
come out and help me. It didn’t dawn on Tawanda Allen

or'KdeB- man what’s the problem? You having a

problem with Kenyan, you come on dp here with us, you

come stay with'us'in Maryland. That was not, to me

now, that would have been thé typical résbonse of an
adult. That wasn’t his response. What do you need,
gunplay? And was more an willing, ready and able to
put all fhat eXpensive:gas in that truck and drive with
Tawanda Allen all the way from Maryland to South
Carolina to kill somebody he didn’t even know.vYou

know, when I think about-Kenyan,‘whehfI think about

Kenyan, I wohder‘whether'or not, if in fact, this child

was caught up in some kind of gang, whether he realized

that wait a minute, Ronald Mack is into some heavy

stuff. . Maybe he ought, I need to pull back from this.

Maybe that’s why him and -Kenyan, him and ROnéld Mack
wasn’t getting along in the week before he "got
murdered. Maybe he pulled'back from them and really,
really-y’all? If Kenyan was this big time gangster,
like Ronald Mack wants to be, why was.there no evidence

J

of any guns in his bedroom? Police went up and down

~

that-house, went in and out the bedroom, no evidence of

guns, of drugs taken out his bedroom, no rolls of money

taken ou; his bedroom. There was no evidence at he had‘

" any drugs in his system when they did the autopsy. So

I wonder whether or not if it is true, at some point,
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because remember, his mom said, alright now you can
come in here at one thirty in e morning if you want to,

you better be ready to get up and go to church in e

" morning. I wonder at some point, did he say, wait a

minute, I’ve got to pull back out of is. If in fact,
is what Ronald Mack says. Now, what’s kind of scary
about is case is e precise nature in which is murder
was carried out. I.tell you, I mean I’'ve prosecuted
probably thirty, férty murder cases. This is just
unbelievable.‘ These folks éut of Maryland? They're
ﬁot like anybody we know. They’re not like us. I mean
they just, they got a different mind set. I mean-just,
a complete;y different mind set. They carry but_this

murder, in and out in five minutes. They’re in and out

“that child’s house in five minutes and on the way back

to Maryland and. it doesn’t bother any of them. They go
on with their lives. . Ronald Mack moves up there, goes
to school there. Tawanda goes back to work, KelinB.

gets his license back, Tawanda gets Kelvin a job

~where she working. I mean they just carrying on with

their lives. &And it’s absolutely amazing to me, but

people please don’t be naive about what’s out there in

the wérld. Evil is‘out there in the worldnand this

Defendaﬁt,- the act that he committed was evil
o

personified. Now, Mr. Jenkinéon was .right about one

thing; when Ronald got in court he testified, of course
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Mr. Jenkinson wasn’t here during the trial and I was,

but when Ronald Mack testified in his mother’s case, he
threw her under the bus. Yeah spe dro?e‘down there,
yeah'Callie had the guns, yéahvshe waited outside in
the car while we went in the house and I put three in
him and Callie put five shotguns shells. Said all that
when he pled guilty, said all that when he testified in
her trial. You have to ask yourself the quéstion
folks, what is it about this. Defendant énd his
relationship with Ronald .Mack that would inspiré such
loyalty-from Ronald Mack? Yeah, you, Mr. Jenkinsoﬁ’s
righf. He testifiedvagainst his own mama, but when he

gets on that stand, I don’.t® remember. I don’t

 remember. When he come 1in this courtroom, he

eyeballing his buddy over there. I don’t remeémber, I

‘don’t remember. But now when Mr. Jenkinson started

asking him questions, yeah, I remember that part. Oh
his memory got a whole lot better. Because he ought he

was helping him. You'see, Ronald Mack knows, I'm.doing

my time, I’m doing my fifty years, ain’t nothing else

can happen to me, I can get up here and lie, I can

. purger myself -all day long, nothing else is going to

happen to me. And Judge row three; four more years on
me for perjury? I don’t care. My mama’s sitting up in
the Department of Corrections, she doing her time;

nothing else can happen to her. He’s not qoinq to hurt
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him, but folks, if he can help him, he’s going to try

to help him and that’s exactly what.Ronald Mack did.
And you have to realize as jurors, that you can’t, you
can’t always answer the question why. There’s some
things we’re just not going to know the answér to. I
mean, when I got this case7-y”all had it for five days,
I've had it for almost two years and I tried one

defendant in court, two other defendants pled guilty

.and I still can’t understand it: I still can’t

understand it, but the beauty about the criminal
justicé system is that this judge is not going to lay
that . burden at your feet. Nobody’s going to sit  up
there and when you come baég; and render your verdict,'
nobody’s going to come up and say well, now you got to

tell me why. Explain to me if you going to convict

this maﬁ. Madam Solicitor explain to me why he would

. want to kilf‘this child. There are some‘things that

pecple do in this world ?ou can never explain. I think

about that case with Scott Peterson, out df California
Wﬁere the guy was having the affair and killed his
pregnant wife._ And I ask myself, why would he do that?
I mean, hasn’t he heard of’divorce? I mean, why would
you do that? Some things you just can’t answer. The -
only thiﬁg you have to answer, is did he kill him. You
doﬁ’t'have to answer why. Because folks, there’s never

a reason to justify what this Defendant did. I think
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# in terms of the Viciousneés of this murder, if I can be
! grateful about 'anything,‘ it’s probably -simply‘ one \
z thingf: I'm grateful that Kenyén Dorsey pfobably did
3_ not know what hit him. I’m grateful that, aeépite ﬁhe
! fact he was surroundediby evii and malice and violence,
-5 none the less, he was still- surrounded by the love of
° his mother who was simply a few feet away from him. And
! I'm gréteful that, although the SOgnds of nine
‘?w millimeter handgun, sounds of a shotgun was blasted all
79 around him, all those sounds, the last sound that he
10 remembered was the words of his loving mother.‘ " You
: t see?_Kenyan Dorsey,‘uﬁfortunately, he was going to die
‘124' that-night.{ That Qas his time. ' There was nothing that"
(i}'» . ‘13 " anybody could do and these people, they didn’t'come all
L the way dowhrhere from Maryland for nothing, they were
<}5 "going to kill the boy.' I mean, if they had coﬁe to the
Lo 4houSe and firmly ¢onvinced and ten people were at the
L7 house, they would just sit and wait'qnfil ten people
%8“ left and.they would have come in and‘they\would have.
1o ~killed him; What is so ironic about that, his mother
20‘ was not supposed to bé theie, becauséegonald knew she
21 'worked midnight éhift.'nRonald knew that. He waited,
2 that’s‘ why. he came when he did. But it Jjust iso
23' happened, fér whatever reéson, that child was meant to
24‘ die that niéht, and despite the fact that she was
~<i; 25@ supposed to be at work, his mom was meant to be there.
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And perhaps because it was already predetermined that

He was going to die'that-night, maybe, you know, her
6nly.réle in all of fhis was to be the last one to talk
to him. To be the one to find him, his body. To be
the one to see thé dark SUV running from the house and
the one to call the police. Maybe that’s, maybe that’s
just how ‘it was meant to Ee. You know, you can’t
explain it. It’s just that’s how it is. Even despite
what'he’s done, I still, as I stand ﬁere, pray to the
good Lord in Heaven that de”B'V' never has to
suffer the kind of pain that he inflicted on this
family. l‘pray-fhat'neVer happens. You know,‘oftén

times, people are not who they present themselves to

~ be. People aren’t who they appear. People put on

masks for people. Mr. Bowen was very succéssfullfor a
th;é in putting on a mask to his'wife{ Lied ébout
%here he was going and who he was with andryou know, I
can tell you now} you can-putfa Defendant on a éhiny
suit and some nice, shiﬁy éhoes,'you can change what he
looks like on the outside all day long,'but you not
;oing to chénge the fact that on the iﬁsidé~he’s a
skilled, cold—bloodedé cold—heafted Killer. .The only
differeﬁce is .today he’s a skillful, cold-blooded,
cold-hearted killer with a nice suit on. You cén come

into this courtroom and parade the wife up. You saw on

Monday morning how Mr. Jenkinson, or Monday afternoon
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Mr. Jenkinson said, oh Tiffany stand up, stand up.

Kelvin B. - III stand up, stand up so the jury, you

can parade them in this courtroom all day long, it’s:

still doesn’t change the fact that they are the wife
and the-son‘Of'a skilled, cold—blobded; cold-hearted
killer. Yéu know, the time to be the proud papa and
the loving husband is when you laying up in Tawanda
Allen’s bed? You know, now that you on trialnfor

murder, don’t try to play a proud papa and a loving

husband now. You know, when I think about the proud

- papa, loving husband, and I think about Tiffany Bowen’s

statement, you know, scmething hit, me when she
testified yesterday. éhe said that when her husband
was arrested in Anne Arundel, Méryland, right after hé
was arrested, he calied.hér and I think she said he
calléd her first. I may be mistaken on’ that, but he

called her very shortly after his arrest and Ms.

“Shuler asked, well what did he say? And she said well

he told me that hé was arrested and I said arrested for
what? And he sald arrested for murder and her exac£
words were who did you murder? That’s just how she
said it, who did you murder? Now, i1f my husband call
me from jail, saying at he was arrested for murder, I’d

say, for what? Oh my:Gdd, are you serious? But her

reaction is as cool as a cucumber, who’d you murder?

You know that testimony and her reaction is very’
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telling, very telling. Because she knows her husband.

a whole lot better thah we do. And she also mentioned
that she asked him, well what waé the date? And she
said, no I know that couldn’t be. it because you were
home with me on that date. And I thought about it and
I said wait a minute now. Now mind you all of this is
happening pretty quickly. We didn’t have a warrant on
Kelvin B. T“ until after Antonio McClary came over to
the jail agg‘saw his picture on the computer. We just
knew him as Callie, we didn’t have a government name
fo: him so to épeak. And so after Antonio made ‘that
idéntification, then the Sheriff’s department would
have had to go on over to a Magistrate, type up a
warrant, have the warrant signed by the Magistrate,
have .it notarized; but it hadn’t been.served yet. So
how did Callie know the date unléss‘he was. ‘in Séuthq
Carolina and committed fhe murder? They remembered the
déte so much because they had to remember the date so
much. Now, how many of us, realistically, if I was to

th£ow out a date, November .16, 2010, unless that’s an
anniversary or birthday of some significance, how you
going to remembervthaﬁ? iYou\remembered that becau;e
you have to remember that because you want to spring
your husband. That’s why she remembers it so Qell.

When you talk about these guote ungquote alibi witnesses

and folks, when that little boy got up on the stand and
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- I said, you know,'I mean what do you do with a thirteen

year old? But when the wife geté up and I said Qell,

I mean, KelvinB. wasn’t spending every night with -

you. He was staying out all the time wasn’t he? Well
yeah. - I mean, even your own son said, you know that’s

a contradiction to even your own son’s statement

’_Wouldn’t it? Yeah, I guess. But they want you to

believe the alibis. And all of this notion about, you
know, Jusfin Whack calling Ms. Bowen on Friday and

trying to talk to her. When she goes in and says, well

‘no, you know, I didn’t mean it that way, I just said
I’11 talk to you on Monday with my husband’s lawyer.

.To me, if you have the.truth on your side, if yodu’re

telling the tfuth, wﬁy do you need a lawyér around_&hen
you’re telling the truth? I mean,.if your husband’s
charged with murder, folks that’s somempretfy powerful
evidence to come in. and say; no I know he aidn’t do it,
because he was with me when it happened.  When shé had
that telephone conversation, rsupposedly wﬁen shé says
well, you know, I know you didn’t do it becausé you
were with me. You don’t think a wife would have been
on the phone down. té the Sheriff’s -department of
Williamsbﬁrg County saying, y’all got the wrong man.
I don’t know what y“all got going bn, but y’all'got the

wrong man. My husband wasn’t there, I'm proof.

Listen, I’'m proof he was nqt there, I can show vyou. T
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HEARING 681
can show you the phone records where we were on a call

td my whoever it was in Texas.

Mr. Jehkinson: Your Honor, burden is shifting.

The Court: Objection is overruled.

Ms. Barr: No, they save it. Save it for court, because if
she gives a statement to law. enforcement, law
enforcement is going to start going back, well let me
see. You say this, let me go interview this person td
éonfirm éhat or éontradict it. .Or if you say this let
me go talk to this person to confirm that or contradict

it. She didn’t Want'to give them the opportunity to do

" that. She wanted to .answer his questions in the
presence of KelvinB. lawyer, because she didn’t
want to- deviate from the script. And without the

lawyer being there, she might'deviaté from'the script;
But‘these are the people we’re suppose to belie&e?
Let’s talk about Antonio McClary’s testimony; Here’s
why‘youlcan,believe AntoniO‘Mcélary. Let me, before i
tell you at, let me .just say is, did Antonio McClary
get less time than Tawanda Allen and Ronald Maékf Yes.
To some of you, does the idéa that he got less time
than-the other two, does that kind of leave you with
heartburn? If it does, thét’s fair. If you have a
problem that he got less time than some of the other
people. - Please faké that out on me and not on jus%ice

and not on this woman who seeks Jjustice for her son.
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Quite frankly, I’11l tell you that, did I want him to

testify? Sure I did. Absolutely, I'm guilty, I wanted

him to testify. He’s an eye witness to a murder in a

case I'm prosecuting. " If Donald ‘Duck was an eye’

witness to the case I'm prosecuting, I would"want
Donald Duck to'testify. Yes, I sure do. Was there
ever a point when I sat down-with his lawyer and I said
listen, you know, you tell Antonio to say A, B and C
and I'11 give Antonio X, Y and z2? ﬁo. His lawyef‘came
up andAéaid that. Yes Ms. Barr wanted him to come into
court and testify, because I just ;anted‘him to tell
the truth, whatever it>Was. I aiso wanted iawandé
Allen to testify, because I callea her as a witness in
my case. Now, Tawanda gets up and she asserts her
fifth Amendment privilege not to incriminate'herself.
I respect that, that’s hef right. Did I want Ronald
Mack to testify? Sure I did, absolutely, I'm guilty.
He was an eye witness to the murder, I wanted him to
testify iﬁ/my case.. I called him again, he ?ot‘in
here, looked atlhis buddy and all of a sudden he geté
amneéia. But now, the reason why you can believe
Antonio. McClary folks, is quite simple. Everything
Antonio McClary -said can bg corroborated. Everything.
You look at the crime scene phétos, you recollect his
testimony in everything is a hundred percent

consistent. He talked about the vehicle being a dark
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Kia. Well, low and behold we find- KelinB. and

Ronald Mack in a dark Kia. He talked about Ronald
Mack’s mom being Tawanda. Low and behold, we pick up
Kelvin B. and Ronald Mack and their in Tawanda’s car
in Maryland. He talked about nobody forced entry into
the house, they just happened/ much to their surprise,
to open the doér and it. was unlocked. That’s
consistent with the photos that show no forced entry.
He talked about going down to the house, in the -
bedrooms, didn’t ‘see Ronaldv Mack, Kenyan‘ Dorsey
initially. Saw him in the chair sleeping. Absolutely,
one hundred percent consistent and corroborated by the.

crime scene photos showing his body,sitting up in the

chair. Talked about him being shot by a nine
millimeter handgun.  Said at Ronald Mack 'did it.
Absolutely consistent. Ronald Mack pled guilty to

- shooting with a nine millimeter, we know that it was a

nine ﬁillimeter, because of the autbpsy aﬁd the SLED
experts testimony. We know that he was also shot with
a shotgun,_becaﬁse that’s, again, consistent with»the
SLED tesﬁimony and the autopsy report. Now,ﬂAntonio’s
no saint. Now, don’t get me wibng, but folks, he said
some things in this courtroom ‘once he put his hand on
the Bible that really made him look kind of bad. He
didn’t have to admit it. You know,‘ﬁe went in there

and he said, I went in and I didn’t want my face to be
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seen, but I, and I grabbed some clothes off the .chair

and look in the pictures and what do we see? The

clothes sitting on a chair. And he éays he put some

kind of shirt around his face. What do we see in the
crime scene photos? The lane in which that Kia was
/

parked, right‘there-on the ground, that same shirt that

he wrapped around his face. And folks, he even got up

~and said, yeah, I pointed him out, I said there he is.

‘He didn’t have to admit that if it wasn’t true. Why

would he? Why would he volunteer that if it were not
true? The problem that the defense has is that Antonio

McClary is too credible and y‘all that little‘dog'and

pohy show. When they bring Mr. Bowen over here. 1 want -

you to get real close, real close. Y"7all that’s the

'same part of that intimidation that started in the back

seat ‘of that car that night. - It’s the same part‘of the
intimidation that continued when they were in court,
after that preliminéry hearing and he continued to
carry it on when that young man was up on that.witness
stand. I'm going to tell y’all, I'm going tolbe jusf
as honest and just as candid as I'm standing right
here. .If I weré an eye witness, and I saw KelinB.

do to Kenyan Dorsey or do to somebody else what he did
t§ Kenyan DorSey, IAwould get up here a?d soﬁebody

brought him said ma’am, Ms. Barr, .is that the guy that

vou saw shoot the victim? I'd say no too. I sure
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would. No, you know what, matter of fact, I would

just, I would make it a little bit worse, I’d say no-
the berson who shot him was five foot two - -and light

skinned and curly hair and three hundred, I’d make it

just a complete opposite of who he was. Antonio
McClary knows what KelnB. is capable of. He saw
it for himself and.KaW”B- did not have an ax to
grind égainst that wvictim.. He was only doing what

Ronald ‘Mack asked him to-do. 'And you mean to tell me
Anténio- McClary, who is basiéall&, the only thing
staﬁding between KeivinB. - and his freedom, doesn’t
have reason to be‘afraid of him? Do we,‘are we really
surprised that hevwas afraid and intimidated by him?-
I remembered very vividly His testimony. He said, you
know,.?ou know how you get that feeling that somebody’s
watching you? ”And I was sitting in the back seat~of‘
thé '‘car and I had my head leaning against  the’
winashield  and "I séw“this reflection . and I turned
aro;nd and he called i£>mean mugging. Said,Callie was
sitting- there gust' looking at me, had the- nine
millimeter_pointed at me. .And he’s backvthere‘in that
little small room back there and they three feet aparf
and his lawyer come over and say, is thét the one who
\ ,

was with you that night? And we really expect him to

gef up and say, yeah, sure enough, that was him. And

he got to walk back over to the jail with him? Are we
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surprised? . But you know what? Why you can believe

Antonio McClary? When his lawyer presented him that
statement, he read that statement and said, no, I ain’t
signing that. Said Mr. Palmer, I’'m not going to sign
that, becapse that’s not the truth. He came back>and
presented him the same statement two weeks later. You
want to sign it now? No. No, that}s not true. That’s
not what happened. And by this time the lawyer’s like,
well he’s confused. He said well, Antonio why did you
tell me that?: Man I'm scaied of that guy. Antonio
said at he was wifh M;. Bowen, I think he said fifteen

or twenty minutes that night. Now,. you all had the

' ability ‘to observe Mr. Bowen for about maybe thirty'

seconds‘when'he came up and stood up. Is that 'a face

you forget? You saw that face, right here for thirty,

forty five seconds and then I let you observe him for

another fifteen .more minutes. You have a conversation

with him. You hear him talk. You think you’re going

to forget that face? I wouldn’t. "Their problem is, he
won’t forget it. He’s not like Ronald Méék. He won’t
forget it. Mr. Bowen’s problem, is he made two
mistakes. Two very fatal mistakes. His first mistake
was trusting Ronald Mack. See Ronald Mack was a‘litfle
seventeen year old »Hothead. i don’t know 1if he’s

wrapped up in the gang like at, you know, maybe he

" needed to get his first kill in and I dguess you dget
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points for getting a kill in or whatever. But see, when

he, Mr. Bowen made the mistake of trusting Ronald Mack,
Ronald Mack’s a little young kid. A little young'punk.
in my view. And he ran his.mouth too much. It wasn’t
enough for him to do is. He, he wanted people to know.

Oh I'm so bad, I'm so tough, I'm such a gangster. He

" wanted somebody else to know he did it.'vThat's why he

showed Dontrey Barr those test messages. You know now,
I love the way my good friend Mr. Jenkinson kind of

spun that text message thing. He said that they sent

the text message at nine o’clock. Well that’s not

exactly true. The evidence said Dontrey Barr saw the

. text messages at nine o’clock and he saw the whole line

, 0f them, which meant. they were sent earlier. And so

this notion about them being sent at nine o’clock and
therefore it would have been five hours between fhe
time they were sent and the time that the murder was
éommitted, that’s not true. We know that the text
messages were sent much earlier. That’s just what time
boﬁtrey Barr saw them, but see Ronald Mack wanted,an
audiénce. He wanted people to respect him' or fear him,

I'm not sure which. But he wanted an audience and so

+he had to try to play bad and show .Dontrey Barr the

text meésages, but that wasn’t enough for him. He

didn’t Jjust want to show somebody text messages, he

wanted somebody to see what he was capable of. S0

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
(803) 436-2153




4'\\\

10

11

iz

13,

14

15

16

17
18
19

20

21

22

23

24

25

70T

HEARING - 688
that’s why he ‘invited Antonio McClary along. And you

remember in his statement, he kept saying, Tony didn’t

evén'believe me. You know; he had a accident a céuple'

of years, he kind of off. He, you know, thought I was

. playing. He didn’t think I was serious.  You know,
. Antonio didn’t really do nothing, he just came, he just

came and saw what I did. People like.that, you can’t

be feared or respected unless people know that you just
is bad or is cold-hearted or whatever. So that’s why

Antonio McClary was brought into is. That was Bowen’s

first mistake. His second mistake was not following

his first instinct. When he came and picked up Antonio

McClary and Ronald Mack, he knew something wasn’t right -

abut that; he knew something wasn’t right about that.

You see, he’s a-little older, he’s a little more savvy.‘

He,knowsfprobably,'that you know, when you going to do

something like that, you don’t bring in new people.

You don’t add, you know, people at the last minute on
something. like this. I mean, we’re not talking about
me selling a crack rock to, somebody. We talking about

killing somebody and Antonio McClary was right. The

" entire time he was looking at him, sizing him up, like

can I trust you. The entire time and I bet he was

- wondering, I don’t know'about this, I don’t know about

this. He did not follow his first instinct which was

to not let Antonio McClary go and that was his fatal

(
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flaw, because ultimately, ultimately Antonio McClary

did tell the police and did tell on him. And fhat’s
why he’élsitting up in the courtroom today. Those were
his two biggest mistakes. Now, when you think about
Ronald Mack’s stﬁﬁement to the police and you couple

that along with Antonio McClary's statement to the

police you have to really askiyourselﬁ a question.'

Well, gee why would Ronald Mack say that Callie was

Kelvin Bowen, the man who was living with his mama?

Why would he say that if it weren’t true? Now this is

~his buddy. This is his home boy. Why would you pull

this gﬁy’s name and face out the sky out of everybody
élse in the entire world that you could blame it on?
Why>would you do it if.it wasn’t true? There’s been no
motive of any reason that Ronald Mack .had to liél If
anything,'there’s“been armofive of.é reason‘he had to
try to protect him at this point. AWhy\Would Antonio
McClary pull his picture out of everybody else’s
piéture in the entire woria if he. wasn’t the  one
participating in this crime? There was‘no motive for

them to lie. Couple .more points, then I’m going to sit

 down. When you look at this case, don’t fall for the

old .defense lawyers tricks. .You know, one of the

things that we learn when we go to these seminars and

I’ve seen as a prosecutor. Defense lawyers, they

hammer that you day in and day out, oh you didn’t have

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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this, you don’t have the CSI stuff, you don’t have

this,'you don’t have that. Therefore, the State can’t
convict beyond a reasonable doubt, you got to find them

not guilty. See the defense'wants you to fall for that

notion where you don’t see the forest for the trees.
They want to sit there and tell you, well you don’t
have this, you don’t have this, you don’t have this.

Now I want to ask you -something as precise and skilled

as this man .is, smart-enough to tell RéﬁaldlMabk to
~deieté his text messages, smart enough to wearlgloves(
‘smart enough to coﬁeAin,the middle of the night{‘ Do
you really fhihk”he’snging to leave fingerﬁfints on'.
. the gun? I mean, do yqﬁ really think that? A serial
nuﬁber filed‘off,shotgunjliouvreally thinklhe’s'sﬁupid,'
now all of a sudden he’s-stupid? Huh-uh, hﬁh*uh.;Don’t»

. fall for that ‘old defense lawyers trick. You have all

of the evidence that'you need in this case. There is

nothing else out there. And don’t be foolédﬁatltheir,’

you ‘know, we got some innocént man sitting up .in this

. Qourtroom. Low and behold we don’t want\fo send a

innocent man to prison. This man is anything, is

.anything but innocent. You know, Mr1 Jénkinsoﬂ_wént
" over there and pointed at Investigator Lail. ©Oh, oh,

"oh, ‘she’s silent. State didn’t call her as a witness.

Oh well, I didn’t call her as a witness. I didn’t call

-the ambulance peoble that came to pick up Kenyan’s
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body, T didn’'t call the driver of the car that took the

evidence from MUSC at the autopsy and took it to SLED,
didn’t call the officer from Maryland who stopped
Kelvin B. and Ronald Mack. I didn’t call any of

those people. Let’s say I did. Now, of course we would

~still be hére‘till next week, but let’s . just Say I

called everybody that knew anything about this case.

The reality is you wouldn’t know any more then, than

you know right now. ‘ThengfactS’simply are what they
are. We know that this~Defendant was inﬁolved because,

I'm not quite sure what "the défense~is it was three

" people involved -in. the murder? And not four or is it

.some other fourth person who.we don’t know about? But

what we do'kndw,‘for-sure, is that Ronald Mack and

-Antonio McClary didn’t have a gun. If they had a gun,

they wouldn’t have needed to ¢ali'Tawanda and they.

fwouldn’t have needed to call Kelwvin.. Why-would'ypu

“ha,ve“' them come all ‘the wa{y 'doWn_gﬁere when you got.

access to firearms? ‘They didn’t, so their‘job was to
bring the firearms. And folks,uthése.little three

pieces of.paper'that Mr. Jenkinson talked about, that,

just‘hagically appeared - in Tawanda Allen’s apartment,

now I'm going to ask you -something. That letter is
dated April 13%h, 2009. That’s KelinB. - this .
defendant, with her address, but he wasn’t living

there. Now, here’s the problem.I have with that. Thevy
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don’t want him living there, because they know the

murder weapon. was found there. .So that’s why they got

to try to remove him from that apartment. You know,

it’s okay if he, you know, come there, but they, we

don’t want him inside the house and we certainly don’t

want him living'there? Why in the-world would you have

.your address,. where you get the'job goihg to the house

you’re.not staying that? Now, the wife says she, you

know, he stayed there all. the time. That was;his home

:with her. Now,.'I can understand if you'got-a credit

card bill ét maybe got some'hotel receipts onfit that

. you don t. want - the w1fe to see and you may have that

g01ng to the glrlfrlends house .-I get that. That’

a:job, a letter saying congratulatlons, you got a jOb

'Certainly it’s a good thing for a man to have‘a jOb.

That’s somethlng you want to share w1th your w1fe

right? It’s okay to have that letter going to your

house. There 1s a second eXhlblt somewhere in here.

~State of Kansas. Department’of Revenue. Kelvin Mlchael
" Bowen, Jr. Same address where the mnurder weapon‘was'

- found..Got his license back. You.get your license back,

surely that’s something you can send to your house. He
did send that to his house: He sentfthat'to the house

he was living in. 'That’s‘the'house he was living in

with Tawanda Mack. And folks, when you talk about the

level of proof, I submit .to you we got the best
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evidence. We got an eye witness testimony, eye witness

who saw him shoot Kenyan Dorsey with thebshotgun and we
have forensics. We haye evidence that the murder
weapon was found under his ﬁattress oh his side‘of the
bed. That is the best evidence. The last thihg Mr.

Jenkinson and I are going to agree about. The people

" who killed Kenyan Dorsey ought to go to jail. I

couldn’ t ‘agree with him more than that. Three of them

“who were’ involved have gone to jail and there’s one
more that needs .to*go. And to me he’s the worst one of

"t them all. He was so smart that it, it’s almost scary.

You kaow, he had that Samsung cell phone than he was

arrested y all I’ m sure when they took hlm 1nto jall

he had a’ bunch of stuff w1th him. He probably would

have had hlS wallet, his clothes; his shoes, all that

"Presumably his wallet wouldﬂ have had cash in it,

valuable stuff Credit cards, social security’cards,
ld' . Folks, here is the proof that ‘he knew he was
guilty. out ofzall the valuable stuff'that was in his

personal belonglngs, all the stuff that he got arrested

~with, the only ,thlng, the only thlng that he was

worried about, getting out -of the hands of.‘law

-enforcement and getting into the hands of his lawyer’

was that Samsung telephone. Now you know, you sitting
up in Jjail, you got‘money‘in your wallet, you want

money to use the canteen. You got credit cards, vou

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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want to make sure your family‘membersvget your credit

cards so nobody else is using them. He wasn’t worried
about any of that. Please give my Samsung telephone to
ny lawyer. Because he didn’t want you all to see what
was con that éhone._ He leaves this state, he comes to
our state, commits a murder in our county. That’s his
way of doing‘ justice. | Mr. Foréman, ladies and
gentlemen of the jury, you all show him our way of
doing jusfice. Sir, please”take this pen, you render

justice in this case. Each and everyone of you and you

find him guilty. Thank you all.

~ The Court: Let’s stand for a moment.

JUDGE’ S CHARGE TO JURY:
Mr.‘Foreqan and members of the,jury,.you’ve heard the
testimong_and evidence and argumenté of the State and
the Deﬁendént. I will now explain to you the law £hat
applies Fo this case. Under the Constitutién, and laws
of South Carolina, you are the finders of tﬁg facts in
this case. I do not have a-right to pass upon them.or
express anx opinion that I might have as to them. This
is a matter‘soley for YOu,'the jury, to determine; As
. jurors theﬁ, it is your'dutyfto determine the effect,
value _the‘ weight and the truth éf the evidence

presented during this trial. You are also the judges,

the sole Jjudges of the credibility. That is the

believability of the witnesses who have testified in
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this case. And the evidence in this case. In passing

upon credibility, you may take into consideration many
things such as the demeanor or ‘the manner‘ of the
witness while teétifying, whether a witnesses’
testimony was contradicted on the-oné hand or éupported
and corrobérated on the other hand. You may believe a
small portion of a witnesses’ testimony and disregard
the larger or vice versa. You may believe one witness
against many or many against one. All these things you
will consider, béaring in mind that you should give thé
Defendént the benefit of -any reasonable doubt. It
becomes your duty as jurors to analyze and to. evaluate
the evidence and determine ‘that evidence which
convinces you -of its truth. There has beén evidence
rresented that the witneése;,héve made prior statements
which afe not consistent when.the witnesses present
téstimony. You may use thié evidence to decide whether-
to believe the witness. You may also use evidence of
the earlier contradictory sfatements to détermine the
truth of‘thpse‘statements, "It is up to you to decide
whether to believe the earlier statements or- the
testimony given in trial.- If a witness has-shown to
have knowiﬁgly testified unéruthfully, conce:niﬁg any
material matter, then you ﬁay consider this in
détermining whether to trust fhe witnesses’ téstimpny

as to other matters. You may reject all of the
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testimony of that witness or give all or part of the

testimony you think it desérves; I instruct you and

emphasis that the fact that. the- Defendant did not

‘testify is.not a factor to be considered by you in

détermining, not to be considered. I instruct you and

emphasis that the fact that' the Defendant did not

testify, it is not a factor to be considered by you in

any way in your deliberations and in your consideration
on the question of guilt or innocence of the Defendant.
It . must not be considered by you 1in any ‘manner

- whatsoever. The Defendant has the Constitutional right

. to remain silent. "And the assertion of this. light must

not be considered by you in your deliberations and I
repeat, under your oath,’ you are to draw no conclusions
whatsoever from'the fact that the Defendant‘in this
‘case did not testify. -The fact that this Defendant did
néf testify, should not even be discussed in thé jury
room. The burden .of pfoof, as I have stated to you, is
on the State. The Ddfendant is not required tolérove
his innocence. The burden of proof remains on the State
to prove guilt beyond a réasonableAdoubt. There are
two types of evidence thét are generaliy pfe;ented
during a trial:; direét evidence and circumstantial
evidence. Direct evidence is the testimony ofla person
who claims to have actual knowledge of a fact, sﬁch as

an eve witness evidence which immediately establishes
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a main fact to be proved. Circumstantial evidence is .
proof of a chain of facts and circumstances indicating
the existence of a fact. It 1is evidence which
immediately establishes collateral facts from/which the
main faqt'may be inferréd. Circumsténtial~evidénce is
based on inference and not on personal knowledge or

observation. " The law makes no absolutely no

distinction between the weight or value to be giveh

. ! o v
. either direct or circumstantial evidence. Nor 1s a

greater degree of certainty required of circumstantial

evidence than of direct evidence. Yoﬁ should weigh all
of the evidence in the case. . After weighing all of the
evidencé, if you are not convinced of fhe Defendéﬁt’s
guilt beyond a reasonablerdoubt, then you muét'fiﬁd the
Defendant not guilty. As a trial judgé, it isl my
responsibility to preside. over the tri;l of this.caéé‘
and’I also have the duty to rule upoA or pass uponvthé
admissibility of the evidence offered during this
trial. Ypﬁ are to coﬁsider only the testimdﬁy‘which
has been presented from this witness stand, together
with ény éxhibits,whiéh‘havevbeen made a part of the
record in this caée or any stipulations that counsel
made intoAthe record. I have the additional duty to
charge you the‘law applicable.to this case and as the
presiding judge, I am the scle judge of the law in this-

case. It is your duty as jurors to accept and apply
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the law as I now state it to you and then reach your

verdict. Finally, I charge you with this regard that

you should not be concerned with what you think the law

ought to be, but what I charge yoﬁ the law is. Now the

fact that 'thel Defendant was arresfed; charged and
indicted in this case, is not evidence and can not be
considered by you as evidence of guilt in this case.
Nor does it present any presumption of inference of
guilt. This indictment is simply the formal wfitten
instrument which contains the charges madg against the
Defendaﬁt. The indictment is the formal docupegt‘by
Which this case was brought = into this courtT | The
Defendant has‘pled not guilty to each charéeAihAthis

indictment. And that 'pled puts the ‘burden on the State

to prove the Defendant guilty. The person charged with

committing a criminal offense in South  Carolina is

never required to prove himself innocent. I charge you

that it is an important rule of ‘the law' that the
Defendant in a criminal trial, no matter what the
se£iousness of the charge.>may be, will always be
presumed to be not guilty of the crime of which the
indictment was issued unless guilt hés been.proven by
evidence satisfying you of that guilt beyond a
reasonable doubt. This presumption of innocence does
not end when you begin your deliberations, but it

accompanies the Defendant throughout the trial. Until

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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you’ve reached a verdict of guilt based on evidence
'(i;~' : ~ satisfying you of that guilf beyond a reasonable doubt.
% The presumption of innodence is liké a robe of
. > righteousness piaced about the shoulders of the
: Defendant, which remains with the Defendant until it
5 - has Dbeen stripped from the Defendant by evidence
° satisfying you of that guilt beyona a reasonable doubt.
7* 'The‘presuﬁption of innocence is not merely a theory;
° it’s not Jjust a iegal phrase. It 1is a substantial
2 right to which every défendant is entitled unless you
}On.~ the jury are satiéfied of the Defendant’s guilt beyond
H a reasonable doubt. The State must prove the Defendant
Lz guilty‘ beyond ‘a reasonable doubt>‘ so . what is a
‘ 13 "reasonable doubt éf law? -~ A reasonable doubt is a doubt
14 1 "which makes'a honest, sincere, conciéntenoﬁs juror in
15& search of the truth to hesitate to act. Proof beyond
e é.reasonable doubt must therefore be proof of such a
¥7 convincing charaéter that a reasonable persbn would not
18- hesitate to rely and act upon it in the most impértant
19- of ‘his or her own affairs. Proof beyond a reasonable
20 dpubt can also be described as proof that leaves:you
 21 firmly convinced of.thé defendant’s guilt. Now, there
‘22 are very few things in this world that we know with
23 absolute certainty and in criminal cases, the law does
24 not requiré proof that overcomes every possible doubt.
(cﬁ ?5 If based on your consideration of the evidence, you are
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firmly convinced that the Defendant is guilty, then you

must find him guilty. .If, on the other hand, you think

there’s a real possibility that he is not guilty} you

must then give him the benefit of  the doubt and find
him not.guilty. This indictment in this case, or the
indictment in this case alleges several different

offenses against the Defendant. The charges of murder,

burglary first degree, conspiracy and gossession of a

weapon during the commission of a violent crime. Each

indictment charges a separate and distinctaoffegse.

You must decide each indictment separately on the

evidence and the law applicable to it uninfluenced by
your decision as to any other indictment. The
Defendant may be convicted or acquittedAon any or all

of the offenses charged. You will be asked to write a

separate verdict Mr. Foreman, of guilty or not guilty

on each charge, oﬁ each indictment. The-Defendant is
charged with murder. The State musf prove beyénd a
reasonable doubt.that the Defendant killed ea'person
with malice aforethought. Malice is hatred, 111l will

or . hostility towards another person.’ It is the

_intentional doing of a wrongful act without just cause’

or excuse and with' an intent to inflict an injury or
under circumstances that the law will infer an evil
intent. Malice aforethought does not require that the

malice exist for any particular time before‘the act is
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committed. But malice must exist in the mind of the

Defendant just before and at the time that the act is

committed. Therefore, there must be a combination of
the previous evil intent- and the act. Malice
aforethought may be expressed or inferred. These

terms, expressed and inferred, do not mean different
kinds of malice, but merely‘tne.manner in which malice
may be shown to exist. That - is either by direct
'evidence'; or by inference from the: facts and
circumstances which are proved. Express malice is

shown when a person speaks words which express hatred

‘or ill w1ll or when ‘the person prepared beforehand to

do the act which was later. accomplished For example,

lying in await for a person or any other "acts of
preparation going to.show that the deed was within the
Defendant’s mindtwodld be express malice. Malice may
be inferred from conduct showing a total disregard for

human 1life. Inferred malice may .also rise when the

deed is done with a deadly weapon. A deadly weapon is

any article, instrument or substance which is likely to

cause death or great bodily harm. Whether an instrument
has been used as a deadly weapon depends on the facts
and circumstances of each case. The Defendant is
charged with burglary, with first degree burglary. The

State must prove beyond a reasonable doubt that the

Defendant entered a dwelling " without consent. A
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dwelling is any building or portion of a building in

;. .which a person ordinarily sleeps. In order to prdve

that Defendant entered the dwelling, the State does not

-hHave to show that the Defendant’s entire body entered

the dwelling. The smallest entry is sufficient. In

addition, the State does not have to prove that force

was used to gain entry. Next, the State must prove

-beyond a reasonable doubt that the Defendant intended
to commit a.crime, either a'feldny or’a‘misdemeanor at

the: time of the;entry., Mere.entryaintq a dwelling.

without consent is not burglary.‘ If the intent to

commit the crime was formed after the entry, it ie not

3 burglafy . Intent may be shown by acts and conduct of

the Defendant and other. circumstance in which you may

naturally and reasonably infer intent. Einally, the

State must pfove beyend a reasonable doubt that while .
enterlng the dwelling or when fleeing, the Defendant or-

an accompllce was armed w1th a deadly weapon and deadly

weapon is.any instrument which is likely to cause death
or great bodily harm.” "Secondly, when entering or while

in the dwelling or while fleeing or the Defendant or an

‘accomplice cause physicai injury to anyene not

participating in the crime. aAnd third while entering or

in the dwelling or while fleeing the Defendant or an

accomplice used or threatened to use a dangerous

object. Fourth, while enterinq, while in the dwelling

THIRD JUDICIAIL CIRCUIT
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or while fleeing, the Defendant or  an accomplice

displayed what was or appeared to be a pistol, rifle or
other firearm. Finally, five, the Defendant entered or
remained in the dwelling in the nighttime. Nighttime is

the period between sunset and sunrise, during which

‘there is not eriough daylight to reéognize a -person’s

face, except by artificial light or moonlight, the
Defendant is charged with quspiraéy to commit a mﬁrdef
and burglar§ in the firét degree. The State muét prove
beyond a rédsonable doubt that the Deféndénf, combiﬁed
with one or more persons, foi»the purpose of commitﬁiﬁg

an unlawful.act or by committing the lawful act by

unlawful means. There must be a mutual understanding,

agreement or common intention in plan. A mere passive

anowledge‘ of or "consent to ‘théA criminal conduct of

another is nét enough to make a person a conspirator.
There mUst_ be guilty knowiedge and partiéipation.
Similarly, the mere fact that:  the befendant»may have

associated with another person or :met with another

person and discussed common names and interests, does

not necessarily establish proof of the existence of a
conspiracy or that the Defendant was involved in a

conspiracy. On the other hand, it is. not necessary

‘that the agreement be a formal one, that it be in

writing, that the person hold a meeting Or express or

state the terms of a common plan or that the agreement
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is stated in the words between them. The agreement of.

a criminal conspiracy may come into being through an
implied, mutual understanding. The willful intention
and intentional and knowing and adoption of two or:more
persons of a common plan is sufficient. A conspiracy
may be shown by circumstantial evidence and fhe conduct
of the partiés; In order to convict the Defendant of

conspiracy, the State must prove beyond a reasonable

" doubt, not only that the Defendant knew of the unlawful

conduct, but that the Defendant agreed to combine with
other»persdns for the purpose of accomplishing the
unlawful conduct. . -The Defendant is charged with

possession of a weapon. during the  commission of a

. violent crime. The State must "prove beyond a

reasonable doubt that the Defendant was in possession

of a firearm or visibly displayed what appeared to be

~a firearm, during the commission of a violent crime.

A firearm means any weapon which will, designéd to or

may be readily converted to expel ‘a projeétile. In
order for the Defendént to be-gﬁilty of possession of
a weapcn‘during the comﬁiséion of a violent crime, you
must first find the Defendant guilty of either
committing a violent crime or attemﬁting to commit a
vioient crime. Murder and fi;st degree burglary are
both violent crimes. .Mr. Foreman and members of the

jury, the crime was committed by two or more people who

7T
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are acting together in committing a crime, the act of

"one, 1s the hand of all. A person who joins with

another to commit an unlawful act is criminally
responsible for éverying done by the other person,

which happened as a probable or natural consequence of

~ the acts done in -carrying out the common plan and

Furpose. For example, two peqple can be guilty of
killing another person when only one of the two had a
gun. There is only one bullet ana only one of the two
fired the shot that caused the death. If two or more
people are together or acting together, assisting each
othér'in éommitting the offense, thé act of one is the

act of all or as it is sometimes said, the hand of one

is the hand .of all. Prior knowledge that a crime is

going to be committed without knowing is not. sufficient

to- make -a person  guilty . of ‘that crime. The mere

:knowledge that another person is going to commit -a

crime, even if the Defendant is present when the crime
is committed, is not sufficient to convict a Defendant

as a principle. Guilt as a principle is shown by actual’

-or constructive presence at the scene as a result of

prior arréngement. Therefore, a finding of a pribr
arranged plan or common scheme is necessary for"a
finding of gﬁilt as a principle. The State must prove
beyond .a reééonable doubt by competent evidence and

theory of the hand of one is the 'hand of all. The
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principle in a crime, 1is one who either actually

commits the crime or who 1is present, aiding and

abetting or assisting.in committing the crime. When a

person does an act in the presence of énd with the
assistance of another, the act is done by both. Where
two or more are acting with a common plan or iﬁtent are
present at the commission of a crime, it does not
matfer who actually commits the crime, all are guilty.
The hand of one is the hand of all. Present at the
scene of the crime, means to be sufficiently near, to
aid énd abét and assist in the commission of a crime.
However, mere presencelat the scene of a crime is not

sufficient to convict one as a principle in theory of

aiding and abetting. Intent is also a necessary-

element, so there must have béen a common design or
intent to.commit the crime or crimes and the crime uUpon
must"have been committed pursuant thereto a ‘peréon
aiding- and abetting by some overt act. The intent
means, intending the result which aétually occurs. Not
accidentally or involuntérily. intent may be"shown by

acts of the conduct of the Defendant and other

" circumstances in which you make naturally and

reasonably infer intent. The State must prove these

elements beyond:a reasonable doubt. Mr. Foreman and .

‘members of the jury, an issue in this case is the

identification of the Defendant of a person who

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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committed the crime charged. The State has the burden-

of proving identity beyond a reasonable-déubt. You
must bé satisfied, beyond a reasonébie doubt\df'the3
acéuracy of the identification of the Defendant before
you may- convict the Defendant.‘ Iéentification
festimony is an expression or impressioﬁ by a witness.
You must determine the accuracy of the ideﬁtification
of the Defendant. You must consider the believability
of each identification'witness‘in‘the same way as any
oéher witness. You may considef whether tﬁé witness had
an adequate opportunity to:observe the Defendant at the
time of the offense. This will be,effected by things
like how ioﬁg or short a time has been, how far or
close the witness was,§ the- liéhting, whefher the
witness had the chance to see the peréén or know the
person in the past. . Once again, I-instruct you the

burden of proof is on the State. The burden:of.proof

- extends to every element of the crime charged. and

specifically includes the burden of proving beyond a

reaéonable doqbt, thé idéntiky of the:Defendant as the
person who committéd the crime. If after examining the
testimony, you have é reasonable doubt as to the
accuracy of the identif;cation, you must -find the
Defendant not guilty. The Defendant has raised the

defense of alibi. 1In order to establish an alibi, it

must be shown that the Defendant was at another

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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specified place at that time the crime or crimes was

committed and that it was therefore impossible for the

Defendant to . have been at the scene of the crime. Mere
denial of presence at the scene of thé crime doés not
éonstitﬁte an alibi. There’s no burden-on e Defendant
to prove an alibi; The burden is -on the State to prove
beyond a reasdnable doubt that the Defenaant- was

actually present at the scene of the crime, actually

participated in it and was not somewhere else. In

other words, the State has the burden of disproving the
Defendant’s alibi defense. Mr. Foremaﬁ and members of

the jury, you have been selected by both State and the

Defendant to be fair and impartial jurors. It is your
- duty then in your joint deliberations to determine the

truth in is case, giving the Defendant the benefit of’

every reasonably doubt on each and every issue. From

A 1,

the facts that you determine to bé true, you take and

4

apply the law which I have just given to you and thus
‘arrive at a verdict which speaks the truth of this
‘case. I've told you the standards YOu have to apply

- when the charges are murder,'first degree burglary,

conspiracy and possession of a weapon during the

commission of a violent crime. I will give you a copy

-0f these instructions in written form. During your

deliberations you may refer to the instructions to

ouide vour decision makind. You must consider the
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instructions as a whole and not follow some and ignore

others. Please return the instruction to the Court at
the time the verdict is rendered. You have heard the

evidence and now you have heard the law. Whatever your

verdict as to each charge Mr. Foreman, you will

indicate by checking guilty or not gquilty on the

verdict form. You will have a verdict form that has
all four cha;ges, check verdict guilty or not guilty as
to each charge. There is no significance in the order
in which I state these ﬁossible verdicts. Simply one
must be stated first. You Wi;ljthen sign fhe:vefdict

form and date it Mr. Foreman. Remember that although

- the foreperson 1is the only juror who signs' this

verdict, itfs,not his alone. ‘The verdict has to be a
unanimous verdict as to,éach charge. ‘Mr. Foreman you
are notlauthorized tQ write nor sign Ehe‘verdict.untii
all of youlhéve agreed as to what the verdict shouid
bé., Ladies and gentlemen, I'm going .to sendlyoﬁ to
your jury room;,but do not begin ﬁo discuss fhé case
until you have reéeivéd a copy of this jury charge,ithe
verdict form and the‘exhibits. Once you receive these
thingé, thét will be . your signal to begin your
deliberations. We)ve ordered lﬁnch for you and we have
three. or four smokers, i’m thinking about you all. So

befdre you begin your deliberations, I’1ll give you a

three minutes, take about ten puffs or whétever and

. THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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then you’ll come back to the jury room but then you’ll

“have food back there because we have: ordered lunch.
So, once you begin your deliberations you must
deliberate with -everyone present and participating

until you’ve reached a verdict. Once you have received
y

the, once you have had the chance, for thoseidf you who
smoke, to get your foot and once you recelve the
exhibits, the verdict form and a copy of these charges,
that would be ybur signal to begin your delibérétions.
The entire time I’ve said you can’t talk about this
case.. Once you begin'your deliberations you can talk
all you want, that’s your time. Once you begin your

deliberations you will deliberate until you- have

reached a verdict, at which time you will knock on the:

door, advise e baiiiff-and we'wiil bring ybg out to
receive your verdict. Now we’ve selected fourte%n
jurors, but only twelve can. participate in the
deliberations. The reason we select additional jurors,
is so that in the ‘event that sémething would happeﬁ to
the first twelve of you, we will have extras, since we
must have twelve. But since the first twelve of you
everyone seems to be in good shapé, if you’re not in

good shape let me know you can not participate in

deliberation let me know. Everyone seems to be fine

and in good shape so that means after the, except for

getting lunch, these two jurors, madame bailiff?

THIRD JUDICIAIL CIRCUIT
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. Except for getting lunch for these two jurors out of

the jury room, the twelve other jurors-Wiil go to the
jury room and you all will remain.with us, so please go
to the jury room at this time. |

Clérk:' The last two picked or the two

The Court: The last two.

'*Bailiff:_ The two alternates.

The Court: You all may not participaté in the
deliberations; only the first twelve. So, if y’éil
will now go to the jury room and‘madame‘clerk let them,
everyone else stay put, let those jurors who want to.
smoke get that smoke, get the lunch and.then'wait for
these things before . beginning your delibératibns.
Thank you very much.

(Jury exité_éourtroom 1:02 p.m.)

‘Tﬁe Court: Alright are there any additions or corrections -

to the charge?

Ms. Barr: Not from the State Judge.

- Mr. Jenkinson: None from the defense Your Honor.

The Court: , Alright; if you all would review the exhibits
and make sure they’re all straight;

(Exhibits viewed'and confirmed)

The Court: Néw, let’s talk to the altefnates and let
them go. |

(Alternate jurors excused)

The Court: I have received a note from the jury. It says we

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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.the jury request to hear exhibit 65, we request to hear-the

section of the tape where Ronald Mack identified Callie. Mr.

Jenkinson?
Mr. Jenkinson: Your Honor, please. We’ve identified that
portion and agreed --— in doing so, Your Honor, this

case -came into evidence‘.pgrely for purposes of
impeachment only, not for consideration by the jury as

to whether or not his testimony wés truthful to be used

against the Defendant. It was to be used against the

testifying witness as to impeachment him;"'And under
the case Qf-State_%eréuvailler, 262 SC1369, Qe would
‘éék, and that’s the case we sited that'éave a curity of
cur charge wﬁen it was read. WeAwdﬁId‘like for Ehe‘jury

to be reminded of what 1is evidence is, Dbecause

apparently; it’s become. crucial as far as testimony

goes and not what with whether or not he should be -

imbeached by it, but fhey-aré u;ing'this evidence in
vorder‘to détérmine gﬁiit or innoéense of the Defendaﬁt.
So we would ask that the taped first should not be
played, because it’s being asked fbriout of context and

in violation of your instructions during the trial.

The Court: Ms. Barr?

Ms.

Barr: Judge, I think counsel presumes what the purpose
in which the jury requests to hear the tape. Whether
it’s to consider whether or not ‘Mr. Mack was being

truthful, we don’t know that. Whether it’s to consider

HEARING 12
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whether or not Mr. Mack properly identified the

Defendant, that’s going to be on his guilt or

.innocence, we don’t know that.. The Court gave a

limited instruction before the tape was played; The

Court gave that same instruction concerning how that

testimony is to be used by the jury when you gave—jury'

charges and we think that’s appropriate and to deny

allowing them to hear it once it’s in evidence, we

would think that’s improper.

The Court: . The Court gave it’s instruction based on what

had been presented during trial at the time the item

was offered into evidence. Since . that time, the

Defendant’s cross examination of Mr. Mack in which Mr.

Mack was presented a statement by 'Mr. Jenkinson, his
testimony contradicting his earlier statement. of
course, Ifm'not,positive of the exact sequehée of it

all, but the gist of it all is that the entire

‘testimony in the trial is now, it’s all been done. The
jury has requested to listen to this evidence for

whatever reason. It’s the jury’s case at this point.

We're going vto‘ playv the tape, based Vonj what -they
requested and after they have<been-given'that, then
they will go back to deliberaté andbgiven no furt@er
instrﬁctions limiting, or otherwise conéerning the

evidence.

Mr. Jenkinson: .Just for the record may we proffer what our

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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next motion would be that we would ask the‘qourt to do? '

The Court: Yes sir.

Mr. Jenkinson: We would then, basgd on this same case,‘and
I'm reading directly from it. The record shows the
trial judge admitted the note then questioned solely
for the purpose of impeaching the witness. The trial
judge upon his motion request of both the state and
appellant charged the jury that the note had been
admitted only for the purpose of contradicting the
witness. The witness then could not be considered as
evidence against the appellant. . We would ask the
Court to do exactly what tﬁe Supreme done.

The Court: Alright. Your request'has'been noted. Briﬁg
the jury. Do you ﬁave it cued to that part?

Ms. Barr: Yes sir, Judge.

(Jury enters courtroom 3:03 p.m.)

The Court: Foreman and ladies and gentlemen of the jury,

n'you have requested to hear>portions of eXhibif numbér

65 and we will play that now please.

(Taped Statement of Ronald Mack played for jury)

The Court: . Do.you want it to continue to play?
Foreperson: No,'sir.

The Court: Alright thank you.

(Jury exits courtréqm to continve deliberations 3:05)

The Court: Any additional exceptions to what has been

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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Ms. Barr: None from the State Your Honor.
Mr. Jenkinson: None other than those stated.
The Court: Alright. " We’ll be at ease, waiting for the

jury.

(Break on this case waiting for jury)

The Court: For record purposes, as far as the sequence.

I do understand that the tape of Mr. Mack was played
after he got off the stand through another witness. I
Qanted to be sure that sequence is clearly stated on
the record, but it does not change my ruling in any way
as to giving any further instructions to the ‘jury.

Alright.

(Jury verdict reached 3:23)

(Jury returns to court room 3:24)

The Court: Have you reached a Verdict?

Foreman: Yes we have Your Honor.

The Court: Was it unanimous?

Foreman: Yes sir.

The Court: Alright, thank you. You may be seated. The

Defendant will stand. And you may publish the verdict.

Clerk: The State versus Kelvin Michael Bowen, Jr. We the

jury, by unanimous conéent, find the Defendant Kelvin
Michael Bowen, Jr. as to the charge of murder, guiity.
As to the charge'of first degree, guilty. As to the-

charde of c¢riminal conspiracy, guilty. As to the

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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charge of possession of a weapon during the commission
of a violent crime, guilty.

Tﬁe Court: The second one again was?

Clerki': The second one was - -as to the charge of .first
degree burglary.

The Court: You didn’t say that.

Clerk: Oh I'm sorry. If these are your verdicts, so say
you'all;v'PLéase let it be known by raising your right

_ hands. Okay.

‘The Court: Okay, the verdict appears to be unanimous. Is

there any reguest to individually poll the jurors? M;.
.Jenkinson?
Mr. Jenkinson: Yes sir'we would ask that the jufy be polled.
The'Court; ~ Will you call them individually Madam Clerk?
Clerk: William T. McCrea, were thbsejyour verdicts and

are those . still your verdicts?

‘A Yes ma’am.

Clerk: = Louis Dukes, were those your verdicts and are

those;still your verdicts?

A: Yes ma’am.-

Clerk: Matthew Blanding, were those your verdicts and are-

those still your verdicts?
A: Yes ma’am.
Clerk: A Debra éooper, were those your verdicts and are
thése still your verdicts?

A: Yes ma’am.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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Once again, ladies and gentlemen, I want to thank you

for your services in this case. Any post trial motions

Mr. Jenkinson?

Mr. Jenkinson: I do have post trial motions.
The Court: Yes sir.
Mr. Jenkinson: On behalf of the Defendant, we move for a

motion for a new trial under, procedure Rule 29 a
judgment. éittiﬁg as the thirteen jury.Your Honor, you
-haVé the duty to see that justice is done and may grant
a new trial if convinced the facts necessitate a new
trial. The State has failed to produce eﬁidencé fo
support a conviction, therefore a new trial 1is
warranted. There is insuf%icient-evidencé to suggest
Mr. Bowen committed this crime, for théareasons that
have been stated before in our closing argumenfs._qu.
Bowen was in Maryland at. the time of this crime. Our
further grounds for a new trial are that the Court did
not suppress or sustéin’ our . objection to the
identification procedure, {he~ lineup, photo lineﬁp,
which was unduly suggestive. There was cbmpetént
evidence to sdggest that the procedure was unduly
§ﬁggestivé and the Sheriff’s dgpartment intentionally
showed only one photograph and that single photogfaph
sélicited an improper identification of the Defeﬂdant.
Next, fhe Court  admitted some gruesome pictures of the

Defendant at the crime scene over our objection. The

" THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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J
Defendant stipulated to the murder, and according to

State versus Middleton, the photographs should have
been excluded. The photogfaphs were admitted to elicit

thewsymggthy of the jury énd not for another'purpose.

Next, Your Honor allowed testimony:-on hearsay evidence

about text messages that the Solicitor alleges was in:

furtherance of the _conspiracy, however, the! text
messages could not be authenticated and.were hearsay
for which there was no exception. Next the notebook
which was admitted of Ronald Mack that contained gahg
related writings. There was . nothing offered to
auﬁhenticate the notebook. The notebook’s not releQaﬁt,
it’s hearsay evidence and does not fall within the
exceptions of hearsay rules of prejudicial *and far
outweigﬁ the probative value. The Court allowed the
State to introduce the .Iphone of co-defendant Ronald
Mack. Nothing on the.phone connected the Defendant

with the crime. The telephone was not relevant, did

not contain evidence of the crime, was not produced by

the trial. It was clearly a violation of Rule 5 in the
Rules of Procedure iﬁ the case of Brady vs. Maryland.
Again, the autopsy photographs were likewise admitted.
Again, our aréument is the State versus_Middleton. We
argued yesterday those photographs should be excluded.
They are admitted to eiicit sympathy of the jury. The

Court allowed the tape of Ronald Mack to be played for

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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impeachment purposes during the testimony of

Investigator Cecllins of the Sheriff’s Department. The
person on the tape was Ronald Mack. Ronald * Mack
testified in the trial and the tape was not used to
impeach him duting his testimony. It was played by a
wiéness at a later point in the trial. It was an
improper impeachment that they allowed the witness to
testify two times. Ronald Mack. It wviolated the
Defendant)s Sixth Amendment Rights té confront the

witness. It violated his rights of due process under
the Fourteen Amendment. The United Statés‘Constitgtioﬁ

and the South Carolina Constitution. We-would further

-argue. that the Solicitor, over our objection, was

allowed in her closing a:gumeng to suggest that the

Defendant should prove his innécence through telephoﬁe
recérds. Finally, our motion in the request to play
the Reonald Mack tape. We asked for a limited strucfure

to that poftion of Ronald- Mack’s tape could only be

played for purposes of, well first we objectéd to it

because,~baséd On-Staté versus Miller, 263SC069 and

secondly if the court ruled that it could.be heard that

it would be heard ohly with the limited structure, that

that tape could only be -‘used for purposes of

impeachment and not be considered against the

Defendant. That is paraphrasing what I’ve heard and

those are the grounds for our request for a new trial.

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
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. The Court: . Do you wish to respono Ms. Barr?
l(fi ! Ms. Barr: Your Honor, as it relates to the.grounds for a new
? 'triai coooorning the admission of certain evidence,
& Judge I 'don’t have all of the grounds stated by Mr.
* ‘Jenkinson: I remember him talking about the admission
5¢ | of. the cell phone, The Courr allowed admiosion.of th%
° cell ohone of Ronald Mack that was seized by the Lake
X City' Polico : Deparrment because it corroborated
° " testimony from Dontrey Barr that he_had an iphone so we
"9 believe that’s the basis for the admission.‘ As it
1o relates to the text messages, Dontrey Barr tolking;
H : about soeino the text‘messagos. " It’s my‘recolleotioh
;2 that counsel did not object to him testifying.if he saw -
L3 theh and | so I believe fhar.'evidence ‘came in
Hae uncontradicted. - As it relates to the evidence of alibi
}5 obviously Juagé, that was a .credibility issue, that
Lo was a question of fact from the jury; They .heard from
L. ~our~witnesses; thei heard from the defense witnésées
+ and they chése to believe ours, soxthat’s solely Withio
o their providence toldo so. Your Honor, as it relates
20 to the admission of the autopsy‘photos, there were
?1 many, many photos that we sought to introduce that we,
22? that were not introduced. The Court made an anélysis
23 as to whether orrnot probative value of those autoosy
i photos and I believe we only got in maybe two or three,
CZ) .‘25. but vou obriouslv made an analysis aé to wherher or not

THIRD JUDICIAIL CIRCUIT
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the probative value was outweighed by the prejudicial

effect and so wé would submit that the admission of the
autopsy photbs was proper. The tape of Ronald Mack was
properly introduced because it contra&iéted a prior
inconsistent statement that heldoesn’t remember making
and under Rule‘6l3,‘astringent evidence of a prior
inconsistent statement and the witﬁess doesn’t admit to

making the inconsistent statement it allows it to come

"in. Your Honor the gang writings that was found in

Ronald Mack’s room were submitted intb evidence because
his ﬁame; was associated with the notebook and he
testifiéd that he:-was a member of a gang. So, we view
that'evideﬁcg as being properly.admissible. In my
closing argﬁment I did not try intend to shift the
burden whén the Defendant doés‘put up séme evidénce
then I'm allowed to argue th other evidence wasn’t put
up.  Also, the Court - gave TWhat. wé -vieﬁ to be .
appropriate and substantial instructions regarding the
impeachment value that’s to be associated with Ronald
Mack’s recorded statements and for those reasons we

would respectfully request that the defense motion be

denied.

The Court:- Alright, the Court respectfully denies the
2 - . . ' '

motion, under Rule 29. The question as to whether or not the.

Defendant is guilfy or not guilty is for the jury to

determine and. I support the Jjurv’s verdict one hundred
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(803) 436-2153




10
1i
12
13

14

15

16
17
18
19

20

21

22

23

24

25

7395

HEARING 723

" percent and find that the evidence of guilt is Qverwhelming ,

. and that justice, as far as the jury’s verdict has been done.

The State has proven each and every element of every offense
beyond a reasonable doubt and each and every juror has been
satisfied that the State met that burden. Regarding.the
request to suppress the photographs the defense claims that
the officer’s suggeéted to the Defendant,usuggested‘fo Mr.
Antonio McClary who to'pick, that’s not supportedmby the
evidence. The evidence presented during the triai said that
they were downloading a picture that came from.Mapyland. Mr.
McClary spotted  the picture and then said, do y<ail have
Callie? That wasn’t a part of any line-up procedure or any
type of trickery by la@ enforceméﬂt it was beneficial that
it oc¢urred at that time, as faf as the State’s éase. The

manner in which that happened, it gave them an opportunity

to identify Mr. Bowen. As far as the grueéome pictures, the’

Court applied the analysis that the Supreme the Court most
recently in December of 2011, outlinéd in State’s versus

Torres. " In which . the Court <clearly indicated were

‘photographs serve to corroborate testimony, it’s not an abuse

discretion to admit it and it fully outlined the limitations

that should be placed on the Solicitor pushing the envelope
on admissibility in order to gain the victory in a caséf In
this case, the State had seemingly a hundred pictures, so and

this Court went through those photographé and limited the

State’s photoqraphs, did not, definitely seem very druesome
. \
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photographs because it was a horrific scene and the Court did

not allow the jury to see those photographs because so that

they might not or would not be influenced by the photographs

as opposed to the evidence and the court in the Torres case

went, considered the fact that the Judge would not allow
horrific photographs and photographs were screened. The
photégréphs seen by the jury in this case, were limited to
the gunshot woﬁnds which would indicate and corroborate Mr.
Mack’s testimony that he came up and shot him in the head
while he was in the chair and tgat Mr. Bowen then didn’t
finish him off, because he was already dead, but just shot
him again wifh a shotgun and the piétures corroboratéd that
and' -had 'evidentiaty. value. Further 'tegarding the text

messages that Mr. Barr saw, corroborated testimony offered

during-the trial by both Mr. Mack and Mr. Barr and I do not
"find ‘hearsay there. Regarding the notebook, of course, the

- State offered two notebooks. Both of which contained

ektensivelwritings that seem to indicate gang affiliation of
the Defendant. Aléo, Mr. Mack’s mother and Mr. Bowen and the
Court limited the introduction to the one notebook which -had-
Mr. Mack’s-name'in it. The policé,officgr'testified that,
her daughter attended the same Sdhool and she knew the hall
pass that Mr. Mack was given indicated the fact that he was
there and lived there, was living there. The State would

have to put Ms. Allen and Mr. Bowen and Mr. Mack together and

that evidence helped to put them together. Not out in the
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parking lot where they were arrested, but inside the

.residence where the second murder weapon and evidence of the

first murder weapon what they confiscated. Regarding the

iphone, the Court took a recess to give Mr. Jenkinson every

opportunity that he might desire to look at the iphone that
was confiscated that belonged to Mr. Mack. The iphone was
confiscated by Mr. Mack, from Mr. Mack, two days after this

murder by Lake City police department after he was arrested

on a drug charge.’ The Court found that that had evidentiary

-value and that any problems with the State not having

previcusly shown that to Mr. Jenkinson was cured byigiving

/

him an‘opportunity to.inspect:it; which the State previously

did in responding to hiSARule 5 motion. Regarding the'tape

that was introduced to impeach Mr. Mack The Court gave the
: A

jury a limited instruction prlor to their beginning their

deliberation, but once the,jury'began this deliberation after

the Court had glven a full instruction of the law, the Court

-did not consider it necessary to glve or proper to give

‘:further limiting instruction concerning that request by the

jury, because, it would call upon the Court would speculate

- as to why the Jjury mlght want to listen to that bit of

evidence. ~ Rule 608 regarding evidence and bias shows that

any case that bias, prejudice or any motive to misrepresent
would be shown to impeach the witness. The tape that was

requested by the jury, Mr. Mack made reference to calling his

homeboy Callie and that Callie was his mother’s financé. All

~ THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
(803) 436-2153
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HEARING . 726
of that could be considered by the Jjury .for impeachment

purposes and their request to listen-to the jury to determine
which statement they. should believe whether prior
'incpnsistent.statements, whether they should believe - the
testimony at trial versus the State’s -exhibit' to law.
‘enforcement. In summary the ev1dence of guilt is
‘overwhelming. The jury has found the Defendant gullty and
I deny any notion to change the jury’s verdict.

Now, ladies and gentlemen, ence'you have decided someone

to  be guilty, then it’s my duty, obligation and

. responsibility to sentence the person. You have found Mr.

Bowen guilty . and we will'do senteneing at'fhis.time. Yeu
have no role in sentencingf'but you’re welcome to stay if you
want to. Bring the Defendant forward:

(Defendant comes forward ﬁith counsel).

SENTENCING OF KELVIN MICHAFRL BOWEN, JR.

Ms: Barr: Your Honor,.please the Court. Of course, my

‘comments will be very limited. Judge, you’ve had the benefit

of hearing the facts many times over dnring‘the ceursevof
guilty pleas of Antonio McClary and Ronald Mack and of course-
you were the presiding judge in the Snate versus Tawanda.
Allen and so there. is no need to bellinger the p01nt as it
relates to facts. I would just note briefly, for the record
Judge, the Defendant was charged in California for armed
robbery and assault in the first degree. He was convicted of

grand theft involving vehicles and, Your'Honor, that was in

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
(803) 436-2153
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1996. He was aiso charged with. false imprisonment and
battery by a prison. He was convicted of attempted theft and
resiéting arrest in 1996 and I believe that was in Kansas
Judge. In addition, Judge, and probably most importantly he
along with Tawanda_Alien have charges pending against them
out of .Florence county that relate to a shooting of Tawanda
Allen’s ex-husband and Judge after Ms. Allen and Mr. Mack
were arrested, for. the charges stemming from this -case,
Tawanda Allen gave a §tatemenf indicating.that in Jandary of
2009, which would have‘beeh tﬁree monthsrbefore.the murder of

Kenyan Dorsey, Ms., Allen had an argument with her ex-husband

abodt.money and she told the Defeﬁdant that she had had that

-argument and he. asked her, ‘what do you want me to do? Do

-you want me to kill him?’ and she says, ‘no, I don’t want you

to kill him. I just want you to make him hurt or make him
suffer’ or words to that effect. The  Defendant, alpng with
Ms. Mackrdrove frdm Maryland, South Carolina

The Courtg From where?

Ms. Bafr; I’ﬁ sorry from Maryland to South Carolina.
The ex—husbaﬁd,-l think his name is James Allen was living in
some apartment compléx in Florence. The Defendant then went
into the apartment or Qhatever he was living and pretended to
be looking for someone else and the victim in that case
answered the door and said, ‘no,'that's'not me’ and ‘nobody
by that name lives here’. Accordihg to Ms. Allen, he comes

back out to the car, seés Ms. Allen and Mr. Allen’s son in

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
(803) 436-2153 .
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HEARING : ‘ - 728
the vehicle and recognizes the resemblance between the man

who answered the door and the child and'says; ‘oh that must‘v
be him’, went back in and shot him in the leg with a niné
millimeter, by the way. Thankfully, he survived and the .
Defendant is .in the Florence County Detgntion Center in
connection with that charge as well as this charge. And
Judge, what we always believed was that the Deféndant was a
member of a gang which was the reason why he wés more than
happy to accommodate Mr. Mack’s request. Thére were
statemgﬁts made by M£. Mack that the Defendant was riot a
Blood, but a member of the C£ypts énd it was interesting‘that

he said that on the recording,.because Ms. Harding tﬁat was
qualified as an expert in gang writings and gang activities,
testified'that Bloods and Crypts,‘as we may commonly believe,
don’t neceséarily dislike each other. _That, y&u know, when

they have mutual interests they get along fine. And that’s

~exactly what Ronald Mack said on his tépe recorded statement.

A lot of people think Bloods and Crypts don’t get along.
But, - Judge, earlier in the week,. while Mr. Bowen was being

dressed for court, one of the Deputies noticed that he was

N

- just .covered in tattoos and some of the tattoos that he had

on his body, when I said covered I mean neck to ankle. Some
of the tattoos that he had on his body say things like “In
Murder we Trust”, ,“Pimp for Life”. I had some of the

photographs reviewed by law enforcement and he described some

of the tattoos on him as being related to the Crypts so

THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
. (803) 436-2153
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HEARING . 729
certainly Judge we believed that this is the reason why he

was willing to help Ronald Mack out of his situation.

The Court: All right. Mrl Jenkinson.

\Mrf Jenkinson: If, Your.Honor, please. You have heard
the facts on the mother aﬁd son. They have been found guilty
at ths point. That’s about .all we caﬂ say, Your Honor. You
have to impose a sentence. |

The Court: Mr. Bowen, anything you’d like to say?

Mr.‘Bowen: I have no comment, Your Honor.

The Court: All right. Ms. Bradshaw, would you like to
say anything?

: Ms. Bfadshawz Ne¢, sir.
: The Cbp;t:‘Apything éise, Ms. Barr?

Ms. Barr: ﬁ¢ gif? |

The Cou;t{iFOrfthe sentence of murder the sentence is

ninety-nine (99) years, burglary thirty (30) years, criminal

conspiracy five (5) years and possessidn of a weapon during
a -violent crime five (5) years. All sentences will run
consecutively to ‘each other.

Mr. Jenkinson: Thank you, Your Honor.

THIRD JUDICIAIL CIRCUIT
(803) 436-2153
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KANSAS

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

Mark Parkinson, Govemor
Joan Wagnon, Secretary
‘wiwvw.Ksrevenue.org

BOWEN JR KELVIN MICHAEL

GLEN BURNI

May 04, 2009

DRIVER'S LICENSE REINSTATEMENT NOTICE

01

DRIVER. LICENSE NWBEmF
DATE OF BIRTH: 09/01/19

YOUR DRIVING. PRIVILEGES WERE REINSTATED ON 05/ 0172009. ‘THIS MEANS THAT
YOUR DRIVING PRIVI'EEGES ARE, RESTORED PROVIDED THAT YOU HAVE NOT OTHERWISE .
BEEN SUSPENDED, REVOKED OR. CANCELED “IN ANOTHER STATE. -

AS A REMINDER; YOU MUST HAVE A VALID DRIVER'S LICENSE IN YOUR POSSESSION
AND A VALID LICENSE PLATE ON ANY MOTOR VEHICLE 'YQU' OPERATE, - TO OBTAIN A
DRIVEB’S LICENSE VISIT A TOCAL DRIVER'S LICENSE EXAMINING 'STATION OR YQUR

‘COUNTY- TREASURER'S- OFFICE.-

ALSO, IF YOUR. ADDRESS <] DYFFERENT FROM. THAT

SHOWN ABOVE .YOU .NEED TO INFORM US OF THE CHANGE TN WRITING PER K.S.A.
8-248. YOU CAN CHANGE YOUR ADDRESS. ON THE INTERNET AT Win.KSREVENUE.ORG,

BY MAIL OR FAX, OR BY GOING TO ANY KANSAS DRIVER'S LICENSE EXAMINING

STBT ION.

A DRIVER'S LICENSE IS A PRIVILEGE WE :SHOULD ALL. RESPECT. PLEASE DRIVE
SAFELY AND RESPONSIBLY..

DCSO0 RVDCVJIH

DRWER CONTROL

Sincerely,

* Marcy J Ralston

Chief, Driver Control Bureau

Docking siate Office Building, 915 $W Harison St Room 100

PO Box 12021 Topeko; KS 66612-2027

Telophone: {785) 206-3671 FAX: (785):2966851 hilp://www Ksrevenue.org/

747_'

PN ——
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WITNESSES
_SHERIFF'S OFFICE

Pamela Lail

' DOCKET NO. 2009-GS-45- / X ﬁ

The State of South Carolina .
County of WILLIAMSBURG

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

JULY TERM 2009

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER

MO060828-M060834, M060847-M060849,
MO060853-M060856, M060836, MOG0843
- & M0B0850 ‘

THE STATE -
s,

P

RONALD HAKEEM MACK

KELVIN MICHAEL BOWEN, JR.

D/A: 9/11/08

ANTON[O LAVELLE MCCLARY

sm——

ACTION OF GRAND JURY
\._,7/(»\_9__@ (O_O

TAWANDA MACK ALLEN

”

Foreperson pf Grand Jury -
Date: -

VERDICT

indictment for

'MURDER, BURGLARY ~ FIRST
DEGREE, CONSPIRACY AND

POSSESSION OF A WEAPON DURING

VIOLENT CRIME

Foreperson of Petit Jury

" Date:’

C. KELLY JACKSON, SOLI-(-Z-IETOR

8yl
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" . STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )

INDICTMENT FOR
: ) ‘
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSBURG )

MURDER, BURGLARY - FIRST DEGREE,
CONSPIRACY AND POSSESSION OF A
WEAPON DURING VIOLENT CRIME

_ Pf‘t a Court of Geheral Sesslons, convened on July 6, 2009, the Grand Jurors of |

. WILLIAMSBURG County present upon their oath:

COUNT ONE - MURDE

a—y

That RONALD HAKEEM MACK, KELVIN MICHAEL BOWEN, JR., ANTONIO
LAVELLE MCCLARY and TAWANDA MACK ALLEN, did in Williamsburg Gounty on
- or about April 5, 2009 feloniously, wilfully and with malice aforethought kill one
Kenyon Dorsey by means of shooting the victim multiple times, and that the saxd v;ctlm

did die as a proximate result thereof, in violation of Code Section 16 -3-10, Code of Laws

" of Soiith Carolina (1978), as amended.

COUNT.TWO - BURGLARY — FIRST DEGREE

That RONALD HAKEEM MACK, KELVIN MICHAEL BOWEN, JR., ANTONIO
LAVELLE MCCLARY and TAWANDA MACK ALLEN, did in Williamsburg County on
or about April 5, 2009, enter the dwelling of the victim without consent and with the

‘intent to commit a_crime therein and said defendant entered or femained In said
dwelling “in the nighttime” and while armed with a deadly weapon " and caused phgmal

" Injury to person who was not a parhmpant in the crime, in violation of CodefSeﬁt:oa_ i

N = = .
16-11-311, South Carclina Code of Laws (19786), as amended. : »g[;'i: f., -
- - ) - . FT)\_J]’(] Y] ﬂ
1"\
™ = 9
U)é‘;—' : 1 ﬁ
PR E o

S
9t
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COUNT THREE ~ CONSPIRACY

That RONALD HAKEEM MACK, KELVIN MICHAEL BOWEN%, JR., ANTONIO
LAVELLE MCGLARY and TAWANDA MACK ALLEN, did in-Williamsburg County on
‘or about April 5, 2009, violate Section 16-17-410 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina
(1976), as amended, in that the did unite, combine, conspire, confederate and/or agree
‘with each other for the purpose of committing the crime of Murder and Burglary in the
First Degree. . o |

COUNT FOUR - POSSESSION OF A WEAPON DURING VIOLENT CRIME

That RONALD HAKEEM MACK and KELVIN MICHAEL'BOWEN, JR. did in
Williamsburg County on or about Apni 5, 2009, possess or visibly display a firearm dunng
the commlsslon or attempted commission of a violent cnme in v;olatlon of Code Section
16-23-490, Code of Laws of South ‘Carolina (1976), as amended

- .Agalnst the peéce and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such.case

méa’ﬁ aﬁd prowded o |

ﬁ"} P, =
436 :

\n) E '-,.C,Jt; T . o
w0 el ‘
s g 5 : ‘
. = 2a% ' 4

P et : SOLICITOR

QL .




751

STATE OF SOUTH CARCLINA IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

)
)
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSBURG ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2009-GS-45-0180
STATE VS. ) . .
KELVIN M. BOWEN, JR. ) AW M0B0853
AKA; . ) Date of Offense: Aprll 05, 2009
Race: Black . Sex: Male Age: ) §.C. Code §: 16-03-0010, 6020
DOB: September 01, 1977 SS#: ) ) CDRCode#: 0116
Address: . . .,Long Beach, CA 90803 )
, ) SENTENCE SHEET
DL# : . Sip# )

In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was 0 CONVICTED OF or D PLEADS

T0:_{Aurder v _ :
inviolation of § __ {{p— 8~ 10~ of the 8.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code #____ O | !+ /) 16

[J NON-VIOLENT OVIOLENT (3 SERIOUS (X MOST SERIOUS [ Mandatory GPS {0 §17-25-45
S {CSC w/minor 1% or Lewd Act) ' '
The charge is: NAs Indicted, D Lasser includsd Offenss, [] Defendant Walves Presentment {o Grand Jury. (Defendant inltial)

The plea Is: [] Without Negohatlons or Recommendaﬂon [[J Negotiated Sentence, {7 Recommendation by the State,

ATTEST:
w:él@é[? /] ﬂ:

* Defendant | Attorney for Defendant /  SCBar#

WHEREFORE the Dafendant Is committed to the EHState Department of Correcﬂons {“lcounty Detention Center, )
fora determlnate term of Z days/month '@- [ under the Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years

andforto pay afine of § ; provided that upon the sewice of days/months/years and/or payment of§ ; plus

costs and assessments as ap}i_l,lcable*: the balance Is suspended with probation for month'slyears and subject to South

Carolina Department of Propatlon. Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of probation, which are Incorporated by reference.
[] CONCURRENT or (K] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: Covit 2.

[} The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to 5.C. Code §24-13-40 to be calculated and applied by the State
Department of Corrections.
O The Defendant Is to be placed on Cenlral Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant o S.C. Code §17-25-135.

PURSUANT TO 18 U.8.C, Section 922, it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Sectlon 16—25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence) to ship, transport, possess, of receive a firearm or ammunition,

SPECIAL. CONDITIONS:

CJRESTITUTION: [Deferred, [1Defendant Walves Hearing, [1Ordered PTUP
Total: $ plus 20% fee; $ ~_ days/hours Public Service Employment
Paymsnt Terms:  ° - I . Obftain GED [T
[ Set by SCDPPPS Attend Voc, Rehab. or Job Corp.
Reciplent: i ‘ - _ May serve W/E beginning -
*Fine: ! . Substance Abuse Counseling [J
§14-1-208 (Assessments 107.5%) S Random Drug/Alcohol Testing  []
§14-1-211(AX1) (Conv. Surcharge}) $100 _§ Fine may be pd. In equal, consecutive weeklylmomhly
§14-1-211 (A)(zg {DUI Surcharge) ) $100 _$ _pmts. of § beglnning .
§66-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) $12 _§ $ paid to Public Defender Fund
§66-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 _§ ;
§47.12 (Public Def/Prob) - $600 _§ Other:
§14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 % ‘
§14/41213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $100
§60-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fes) . $50 _§
§66-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assassment) - $40/ea _$§
§90.7 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 _§ - “IJ Appointed PD or appointed other counssl, §47.12
3% to County f pand in Instaliments) ] requires $500 be paid to Clerk during probatlon

D %

1]

Judge Code: 2.2
Sentence Date: 2.1 Y 1 2olll

SCCA/217 (06/2009)

...PRESIDING.JUDGE..........L /. AV 2 A4 S ——

4



{0 The Defendant Is to be placed on Central Reglstry of Chlld Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25.135.

SPEGIAL CONDITIONS:
E]RESTITUTION. [CIpeferred, [IDefendant Waives Hearing, [lOrdered ©~ PTUP . . :
Total: $ plus 20% fee: $ days/hours Publlc Service Employment
Payment Terms: - . j Obtain GED [ : :
_[[] Set by SCDPPPS_~ B Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp
Reclplent: ) e May serve W/E beginning .
*Fine: : $ Substance Abuse Cotnseling 8
. §14-1-206 (Assessments 107, 5%) A Random Drug/Alcoho! Testing

§14- 1-211§A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge} " %100 _§ Fine may be pd.in equal, consecufive weekiylmonthly
§14-1-211(A)(2) (DU Surchargs) $100 _§ pmts. of $ beginning
§56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) : $12 4 $ - patd to Publ!c Defender Fund
§56-1-286 (DU Breath Test) $25 8 - . )
§47.12 (Public DeffProb) . $500 ~§ Other:
§14-1-212 (Law Enforce, Funding) $25 .
§14/1/213 (Drug Court Surcharge). $100 _
§560-21-114(BU! Breath Test Fee) . $50 ¢
§56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) . $40/ea _§
§90.7 (SCCJA Surcharge). $6 _§ ] Appomted PD or appainted other counsel, §47.12
3% to County (If paid In Instaliments 3 L requires $500 be pald to Clerk during probatt\

PRESIDING JUDGE __( / _— vv EARAAL

... dudgeCode: .. ..__ & L[N, .
Sentence Date:. 2.0 g7 T2oll]

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

)
)
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSBURG ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2008-GS-45-0180
STATE _ Vs, ) :
KELVIN M. BOWEN, JR. )  AW# M060B54
AKA: : "}  Date of Offense; April 05, 2009
. Race: Black Sex:Male . Age: ) 8.C. Code §: 16-11-0311 -
DOB: September 01, 1977 'SSif: } CGDRCods#: 0079
Address: * i.ong Beach, CA 80803 )
) SENTENCE SHEET
DL# ' SID# )

In disposition of the S&ld indictment comes now the Defendant who was G{CONVICTED OF or ] PLEADS
T0:_Burglany ih e Fret Degree

in viclation of § 7(’4 ~Jl-3ti of thejs.c. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Cods # o & I 7 ! 7
[J NON-VIOLENT JVIOLENT  [JSERIOUS X MOST SERIOUS [] Mandatory GPS : (] §17-25.45
' {CSC w/minor 4* or Lewd Act)
The charge Is: {¥As Indicted, [] Lesser Included Offense, [ Defendant Walves Preseniment to Grand Jury. {Defendant initlal)

The plea Is: [J Without Negotiations ot Recommendation, CI Negotlated Sentence, '] Recommendation by the State. : !
ATTEST: i . ] ) N o :
. : ‘ s

Solicitor SCBar # Defendant Atiomey for Defefidant 7 SCBar #°

WHEREFORE, the Defendant is committed fo the lXIStata Department of Corrections, [ ]County Detention Center,
for a determinate term of E days/montor [ under the Youthful Offender Act nct to exceed years

and/or to pay a fine of $ : provided that upon the service of ___ days/months/years and/or payment of $ ) ; plus -

costs and assessmants as applicable*; the batance s suspended with probation for monthsfysars and subject to South
Carofina Department_of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of probation, which are Incorporated by reference.

[ CONCURRENT or [R CONSECUTIVE to sentence om: . aau Wi owe,

[ The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant o S.C. Code §24-13- -40 to be calculated and applied by the State
Department of Corractions.

PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. Section 922, It Is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Ssction 18-25-20 or 16-25-88 (Criminal
Domestic Violence) to ship, transport, possess, or recelve a flrearm or ammunition,

1

SCCA/217 (06/2009)




STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

)
COUNTY.OF WILLIAMSBURG ; INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2009-GS-45-0180
STATE Vs, ) gy
KELVIN M. BOWEN, JR. : Lo ) FNO WARRANT
AKA: . o } Date of Offense April 05, 2009
Race: Black Sex:Male - Age: y S.C. Code §: £ lo—~ 17410 KB
DOB: Septomber 01, 1977 . SS#:. ) 'CDRCodei: 0880-X8 Co4q :
Address: Long Beach, CA 90803 )

) SENTENCE SHEET
DL# _ siD# )

In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who wasﬁZ] CONVICTED OF or [} PLEADS
1o:_(rimiial Congpivacy
Inviolation of § _{& = /-4 0O of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # Oi1. .o | 4 1 4

' M NON-VIOLENT OVIOLENT [ SERIOUS {J MOST SERIOUS {1 Mandatory GPS [ §17-25-45
(CSC w/minor 1% or Lewd Act)
The charge Is: MAs {ndlcted E] Lesser lncluded Offense, [] Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (Defendant initial)

The plea is: [] Without Negotiations or Recommendaﬂon, [] Negotiated Sentence, [_} Recommendation by the State.

ATTEST: ;
2 B, &443 W& Teufios, Qf

\/ Sadlicitok” . _ SCBar# Defendant Attorney for Defendant 7/ SCBar#

WHEREFORE, the Defendant Is committed to the @State Department of Corrections, [JCounty Detention Center,
for a determlnate term of 5 days/months{years'or [] under the Youthful Offander Act not to exceed _ " _years

andldr to pay a fine of$ ‘5 provided that upon the service of _ ___days/months/years andfor payment of $ ‘ ; plus

costs and assessments as applicable*; the balanca Is suspended with probation for months/years and subject to South

Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of probation, which are incorporated by reference. -
[J CONCURRENT or [ CONSECUTIVE to sentence oni __ Loy Nty oVe

[J The Defendant Is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C, Code §24-13-40 to be calculated and applied by the State

- Department of Corrections.
[7] The DefendantIs fo be placed on Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S. C. Code §17-25-135

PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. Sectlon 922, it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Secﬂon 16-25-20 ot 16-25 65 (Crnminal
Domestlc VIolenca) to ship, transport, possess, or recelve a firearm or ammunition,

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
E]RESTITUTION [neferred, [J0efendant Walves Hearing, Domered PTUP
Total: § plus 20% foe: $ dayslhours Publlc Service Employment
Payment Terms: . Obtaln GED [7J .
_[setby SCDPPPS ' —_ Attend Voc. Rehab, or Job Corp.
. Reclpxent : i _ < May sarve W/E beginning
*Fine . $ Substance Abuse Counseling H
§14-1 -208 (Assessments 107.5%) : 8 Random Drug/Alcohol Testing
§14-1-214(A){1) (Conv. Surchargse) $§100 -§ Fine may be pd. [n equal, consecutive weeklylmonthly
§14-1-211(A)(2) (DUl Surcharge) . $100 _§ pmts, of § beginning
§56-5-20806 (DUI Assessment) $12. paid to Public Defender Fund
§56-1-286 (DU Breath Test) $25 "3 )
§47.12 (Public DefiProb) $500 & _ Other:
§14-1-212 (Law Enfores, Funding) - $256° ¢ -
§141/213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $100 _§
§60-21-114(BU{ Breath Test Fee) $50 8
§56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea
§90.7 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 _ ) D Appointed PD or appointed other counsel §47.1
3% to County (if pald In Instaﬂments) ' A . requires $500 be pald to Clerk during probation.
. PRESDINGJUDGE [ 7 - AVIAALAUN |
Judge Code: vl
Sentence Date: 7 4 1 o)t

SCCA/217 (06/2009)
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

COUNTY OF WILLIAMSBURG ; INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2009-GS-45-0180
STATE VS, )
KELVIN M, BOWEN, JR. ) AW M060855
AKA: ] ) Date of Offense: April 06, 2009
Race: Black Sex: Male Age: ) Sc. Codoe §: 16-23.0490
DOB; September 01, 1877 SS#. ) CDRCode# 0549
Address; ' _ . Long Beach, CA 90803 ) )

- ) SENTENCE SHEET
DL# sip# )

. In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was &CONVICTED OF or [[] PLEADS

T0:_Pseesawn oF Wedpnn Puring Vident- Crime. -
inviolation of § _{ (o~ 234 Qé of the S.C. Cods of Laws, bearing CDR Code # O/ & tH / 6

EYNON-VIOLENT ~ [JVIOLENT [JSERIOUS  [JMOSTSERIOUS - L] Mandatory GPS [1§17-2545 -

(CSC wiminor 1% or Lewd Act)

The charge Is: [SJAs Indicted, [ ] Lesser Included Offense, {] Defendant Walves Presentment lo Grand Jury. (Defendant initial)
The plea Is: [ Without Negotiations or Recommendation, [] Negotiated Sentence, [] Recommendation by the State, ,

ATTEST: ) . .
A A3 | £ e
Sollcitor : SCBar# ’ Defendant Attorney for Defendant SCBar#
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commilted to.the @State Dapartment of Corrections, [ JCounty Detentlon Center, -
fora determ!nate term of- 5 days!monthr {7 under the Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years .
. andfor to pay aflne of § ; provided that upon the service of . days/months/years andfor paymént of$ - , plus
costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for . months/years and subject to South’

Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Servlces standard conditions of probation, which are _In'corporated by reference.

] CONCURRENT. or [ CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: Coywt sz

[J The Defendan! is to be given credlt for time served pursuant to S:C, Cods §24 -13-40 to be calculated and applied by the State

Department of Corrections..
{3 The Defendant is to be placed on Central Regxstry of Child Abuse and Neglact pursuant to S.C. Code §1 7~25-135

_PURSUANT T0.18 U.8.C. Section 922, it Is unlawful for a person convicted of a violatlon of Sectlon 16-25-20 or 18-25-66 (Criminal

Domesﬂc Violencs) to ship, transport, possess, or recelvo a flrearm or ammunition.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
[OResTITUTION: [Jbeferred, [Jpefendant Walves Haarlng, {TJordered PTUP
Total: § plus 20% fee - $ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms; i Obltain GED []
[1'Set by SCOPPPS — Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
Reclplent: ‘ _ May serve W/E beginning
*Fine: ~ ] Substance Abuse Counseling H
§14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5%) .. _% Random Drug/Alcohol Testing
,14-1-211(A;(1) (Conv., Surcharge) $100 _§ Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
14-1-211(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 _§_ - pmts of$ beginning
56-5-2985 (DUl Assessment) $12 ¢ $ ‘paid to Public Defender Funa
56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) ) T $26 3§ .
47.12 (Public Def/Prob) - $500 _§ Other:
y14-1-212 (Law Enforce, Funding) $25 §
14/1/213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $100
50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50
§56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ca _§
§90.7 (SCCJA Surcharge) $56 _§ - [J Appointed PD or appointed other counsal, §47.1
3%0 fo Eounty (if pald in instaliments) 3 . requires $500 be pald to Clerk during probation.
. ERESIDING JUDGE . .&L«_—V VL AAAATN
Judge Code: Ao I T
Sentence Date: 2.1 4 T 40]]

SCCA/217 (06/2009)
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CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL F OR APPELLANT

Counsel for appellant certifies that this Record on Appeal contains all material proposed to
~ be included by any of the parties and not any other material and that this Record on Appeal
complies to the best of my ability, with the August 13, 2007, order from the South Carolina
Supreme Court entitled “Interim Guidance Regarding Personal Data Identifiers and. Other
Sensitive Information in Appellate Court Filings.”

August 14th, 2013

Susan B. Hackett
Appellate Defender

South Carolina Commission on Indigent Defense
Division of Appellate Defense
PO Box 11589
Columbia, S. C. 29211-1589 .
- (803) 734-1330

' ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT



